Phoenix Journal # 186



By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

Table Of Contents

FOREWORD	1
TUE., OCT. 29, 1996	1
CANADIAN DEBT CALL ON U.S.	
DISEASES	1
HALLOWEEN TREATS	3
GERM WARFARE	
LASER TECHNOLOGY	4
DEATH RAY GIVEAWAY	
BANKS AND BANKING AND THE ELITE	6
FED, GOVERNMENT DEPRESS ECONOMY	6
CENTRAL BANKS' ROLE	7
WHAT IN THE NAME OF ROMAN CATHOLICISM?	8
LAST CZAR, NEW SAINT	8
WHO'S SORRY NOW?	9
CHAPTER 1	. 10
SAT., OCT. 5, 1996	. 10
MEMORANDUM REGARDING PRIOR WRITING	. 10
CHAPTER 2	. 14
TUE., OCT. 8, 1996	. 14
FRAGILE EGO(S)	. 14
OTHER BIG BAD WOLVES	. 14
ONES TURN AWAY?	. 16
NOAH'S BOAT	. 19
CHAPTER 3	. 22
FRI., OCT. 11, 1996	. 22
WATCHING, WORKING, AND WAITING	. 22
REWARD OF SOUL	. 23
A LESSON FROM HIGHER TEACHER-MASTERS	. 25
KNOWING GOD YOU FREE YOURSELVES	. 25
CHAPTER 4	. 31
MON., OCT. 14, 1996	. 31
BLINDNESS IS A CONTAGIOUS DISEASE	. 31
AMERICA WEST AND CONT(R)ACT (TRUST OR INC.?)	. 31
AL GORE AND ANTI-SEMITISM	. 32
YOUR BLINDNESS IS GOING TO KILL YOU, AMERICA!	. 32
WHEN ARE YOU GOING TO RECOGNIZE YOUR ENEMIES?	. 32
IRAQ NO-FLY ZONE	. 32
CHAPTER 5	
TUE., OCT. 15, 1996	. 38
TODAY'S COMMENTS	. 38
TURNER-TIME WARNER	. 38

FARRAKHAN—CLASS ACTION: CIA/CRACK ETC.	38
CHINA WARNS AGAINST WEST IN DOCUMENT ON VALUES	39
E-BOLA OUTBREAK IN YOUR DOORYARD!	40
AND WHAT ABOUT LIBYA? (BLOW HER AWAY!)	43
CHAPTER 6	46
WED., OCT. 16, 1996	46
TODAY'S EARLY AND INTERESTING OBSERVATIONS	46
THE FARRAKHAN EARLY REPORT	46
EARTHQUAKE ALERT	47
HATRED FOR IRAQ WITHOUT CAUSE	47
CHAPTER 7	
FRI., OCT. 18, 1996	52
HALLOWEEN CAUTION	52
WHAT ARE OUR ARMED FORCES DOING IN SAUDI ARABIA?	52
TURKEY	52
WHAT IS GOING ON "UPSTAIRS"?	54
CHAPTER 8	57
SAT., OCT. 19, 1996	
GOLD IS NOT GOOD OR BAD-GOLD "JUST" IS	
MEN ARE GOOD OR EVIL WHILE GOLD STILL "JUST" IS	57
NOTHING HERE?	
THE CLAIMS AND THE MONEY	60
CHAPTER 9	
SUN., OCT. 20, 1996	64
WHERE ARE WE GOING AND WHAT ARE WE GONNA DO?	
GRANDMA	
NEW DECADENCE LAW	
REPERCUSSIONS	65
BACK TO GRANDMA!	
VOTE FOR PEROT	67
SOIL ADDITIVES	
CHAPTER 10	
MON., OCT. 21, 1996	
TRANSMUTATION	
PLANTS VS. PEOPLE	70
CHAPTER 11	
WED., OCT. 30, 1996	
READ IT AND WEEP—THEN GET SERIOUS!	
SHEPHERDS	
MANDELA IS MY SHEPHERD	
OLOF PALME, SWEDISH PRIME MINISTER	78
NEW REVELATIONS TIE PALME MURDER TO BUSH,	
THATCHER-LINKED ARMS CARTEL	
THE "ASTEROIDS"	
NEW PALME MURDER REVELATIONS MOUNTING EVIDENCE	80

CHAPTER 12	83
THU., OCT. 31, 1996	83
ALL SATAN'S DAY	83
BANK IN TROUBLE	83
FIRED COPPER TRADER ARRESTED IN FORGERY by Mari Yamaguchi	83
ILLINOIS POWER COMPANY	
THE SILKWOOD CASE	85
SURVIVALIST BO GRITZ DENIES ROLE IN KIDNAPPING PLOT	85
DEMOCRAT LINKED TO FOREIGN MONEY GIVES TESTIMONY	86
MY FINAL DAYS AS A GRUB	
CHAPTER 13	89
BLACKOUTS!	89
[QUOTING, Part 4:] FIRE FROM THE SKY; PART VII by Calvin C. Burgin	89
ENRON AND THE GODS OF POWER	89
ONTARIO HYDRO	
MAURICE FREDERICK STRONG	
HYDRO SPAWN	
OTHER CONTROL GROUPS	
CHAPTER 14	
BLACKOUTS!	
FIRE FROM THE SKY; PART VII by Calvin C. Burgin	
ANNOUNCING: COMING SOON TO YOUR	
NEIGHBORHOOD: MAJOR POWER OUTAGES!	
WHAT TO DO DURING AN OUTAGE	
GENERATORS	
FIGURING YOUR NEEDS	
A BIG DON'T	
CHAPTER 15	100
PART VI MORE FROM: FIRE FROM THE SKY	100
FIRE FROM THE SKY, PART VI THE KILLING CONTINUES	
by Calvin Burgin	100
THE PATRIOT MISSILE HOAX	100
SCUD PATRIOT	100
ANOTHER HORROR TO WORRY ABOUT	106
PORT CHICAGO	107
NUCLEAR TEST IN 1944	107
RED MERCURY	108
ANC DAILY NEWS BRIEFING SATURDAY 22, APRIL 1995	
ARMSCOR-STAR by Marianne Merten	108
DEADLY ALCHEMY	111
RED MERCURY COMES OUT OF THE COLD	111
MORE REFERENCES ON RED MERCURY	113

FOREWORD

REC #1 HATONN

TUE., OCT. 29, 1996 7:22 A.M. YR.10, DAY 074

TUE., OCT. 29, 1996

We will call this a "Foreword" simply because it is the next writing. I have been focused this week on distant situations which have needed my full attention so the recent writings have had to be private and regarding, mostly, urgently needed considerations.

CANADIAN DEBT CALL ON U.S.

We have to take note of the heating up of conflict between the United States and just about everybody else. The Canadian Border problems are about the most intense issue today. I consider it a very good thing for you-the-people and I hope you will not simply let the opportunity of bearing sweet fruit die on the vine. There are trillions of citizen dollars tied up in the "call" on the U.S. to pay the Canadians for property seized, but agreed to be paid fairly for, at the end of the Revolutionary War for Independence. The ONLY way the nation is going to be able to honor such agreements, now with billions of dollars in interest added, is to honor THAT GOLD CERTIFICATE ESTABLISHED IN *VALUE* BY THE GOOD OL' BOYS' BUSH CLUB. It alone can pay off ALL the debt of the United States owed on such treaties and agreements. But will the Privately owned and European-operated Federal Reserve Banking network also WIN? NO. Just remember, readers, ALL of your income taxes go to servicing that DEBT to THOSE banks—not to running your government or for your own services.

DISEASES

I need to remind you AGAIN of things taking place today in the world of micro-organisms as a weapon of choice being used against you-the-people.

During this very current period of time there was a full blown political plan of the Shadow Government orchestrated through the corrupt portion of the CIA and the Elite, yea Banksters—to release millions of infected fleas as well as introduce spores and organisms through aerosol carriers, into the population at major airports, train and bus terminals and into the shopping malls—right through Christmas.

The diseases are now running rampant through populations of different nations as the Olympics participants have carried the original infections back home to share and tell. The initial symptoms are first recognized as colds and flu. The bouts worsen into full-blown disease only after the first cycling comes and goes and you think you have bested the organisms sickening you. No, these are genetically altered microorganisms which mutate to each new host. ALOT of lies are being foisted off on you, however. Beware of major hype articles which will simply push you off into rash and unlawful behavior and get great numbers incarcerated and/or killed. There are a lot of correct presentations but among the REAL come the foolish lies as well. Use your minds, sort carefully, and be prepared as much as you can. YOUARE ALREADY EXPERIENCING BOUTS OF PUBLIC-ACQUIRED ORGANISMS AS EVEN RESTAURANTS ARE BEING TEMPORARILY CLOSED BECAUSE OF OUTBREAKS IN FOOD OR THROUGH FOOD HANDLERS.

What are the expected diseases, for starters?

1. PLAGUE—Yersinia Pestis.

2. ANTHRAX—Bacillus Anthracis.

3. CHOLERA—Vibrio Cholera.

4. TYPHOID FEVER—Salmonella Typhi.

These are all "recognized" diseases and all are known to be deadly in Pandemic ability to spread through insects, food and water supplies.

NOW THEY ARE CROSSED WITH VIRUSES WHICH MUTATE AND ARE THEREFORE "MISSED" IN DIAGNOSIS MOST OF THE TIME.

It is not unusual to pick up a variation of say, Salmonella, (food poisoning) and most of the time the diagnosis is simple food poisoning when actually there is present Botulism—so PAY ATTENTION to your own sniffles. Certainly, do not panic and go off the deep end with antibiotics for a case of "cold" lest you build up resistance. However, I suggest that if you can do so, have some antibiotics on hand. The best way to store such is through colloidalized solutions such as Titanium, Copper, Silver and Gold. These are totally harmless to the overall body cells but destructive to the invaders. Only the OxySol and Silver, however, act as an immediate antiseptic. Almost any recognized "antiseptic" agent, however, will kill the surface organisms. There will come a time when ONLY the colloidalized items, mentioned here, will work at all for internal infection.

I ask that you be especially aware of PNEUMONIC PLAGUE. This occurs when cells of Y. pestis are either inhaled directly or reach the lungs during bubonic plague bouts. Symptoms are usually absent until the last day or two of the disease when large amounts of bloody sputum are emitted. Untreated cases rarely survive more than two days. Pneumonic plague, as one might expect, is a highly contagious disease, and can spread rapidly via the respiratory route if infected individuals are not immediately quarantined. This, of course, IS the carrier organism for that old "new" "mystery virus" which kills in a matter of hours. THERE IS NO MYSTERY about it except what is intended for your consumption and a full expectation that the disease itself will be "treated" in such a way as to enhance the introduced virus reproduction even if the carrier organism is killed. So, we can simply refer to this advanced type of plague as Septicemic Plague.

Billions of those Septicemic Plague organisms are being released in flea hosts. The fleas remain dormant in cold temperatures, so this time of the year, along with Spring, are the ideal dispersion times. The fleas can be chilled, put into "thermos" bottles or containers, and dumped at sites where, when warmed a bit, the flea becomes animated—AND HUNGRY. There are several different insects used as carriers, but for Plagues the ideal carrier is the flea.

And how can you tell if your fleas are non-dormant? Well, perhaps you can't because they can endure intense heat and intense cold without damage. You CAN, however, accurately measure temperatures by several of the other insects and realize that the flea is among the same grouping. You can "hear" the temperature changes if you learn to LISTEN. Obviously, since the grasshopper is a herbivore and only eats plants, it won't work for a human host because you have to have a BLOOD-SUCKER.

The grasshopper, as a for instance, is loudest at 95° F and is *unable* to chirp when the temperature falls below 62° F. This is why the winter nights on a farm are so silent. All the insects who sing and chirp are sleeping. A grasshopper which can fly very well in the summer, cannot fly at all at a temperature below 45° F, and at 36° or 37° F is unable to jump. Therefore, whenever you hear a grasshopper, you know the temperature is at least 62° F.

At 40° FALL insects are silent, and at 33° or 34° F the insect thermometer ceases to register because all the insects are helpless. Ah, but like the hungry bear in the Spring—those insects awaken with voracious appetites.

I would also note that fleas especially tend to clump on hosts when the temperatures reach above 105° F. This is for the "cooling" needs as much as for food supply.

HALLOWEEN TREATS

One "community" plan of the Adversary this and subsequent years is to mist the areas where children in highly populated areas will be Trick- or-Treating on Halloween. It is easy to do this and nobody will be recognized as everyone will be dressed up to hide identities. VERY, VERY DANGEROUS, THIS TRICK-OR-TREATING! This is not called All Saints Day where we come from—it is ALL SATAN'S DAY!

Just remember something very, very important: the disease you see is no longer the "disease you have".

GERM WARFARE

It is touted around that "germ" warfare will come from a foreign source, such as Clinton's spewing that somehow Iraq is capable of utilizing this mode of war. Well, that may well be so—but they got the damned microbes FROM THE UNITED STATES—and therefore, Clinton won't go to Iraq to use them ON YOU. And YOU, brethren, are TOTALLY UNPREPARED FOR THIS TYPE OF WARFARE.

I do suggest, however, that you seriously consider GETTING THE HELL OUT OF THE MIDDLE EAST, U.S., BECAUSE WHAT IS ABOUT TO ERUPT IS GOING TO BE SIMILAR TO WHAT-EVER YOU CONSIDER TO BE, HELL.

The U.S. *and* ally Israel are now accepted everywhere on the globe as "**the naked aggressors**". You have turned millions of friends into enemies and your days are numbered for you stand at the brink of total disaster.

I have to remind you now of something else we wrote about many times but it NOW TAKES ON OMINOUS MEANING.

LASER TECHNOLOGY

Do you remember when we told you about lasers that melt eyeballs? Do you also remember that we told you about the U.S. supplying Israel with such technology? No? Well here it is, better stated than did we for we did not focus much on the whos and hows—but be ready, readers, Iraq not only has Germ Warfare capabilities but also has this Laser technology and is just waiting for you to suck Her in—again! To make the point of this deadly weapon I related it to the Photon Belt passage wherein there would PROBABLY be an igniting of the Radiation Belt around your planet. This would produce such intense light radiation as to accomplish blindness in most of the population.

We have been laughed at and ridiculed by the best "patriots" you can offer, i.e., Monarch Herr Col. James "Bo" Gritz, et al., for our suggestion to have instantly available some extremely dark glasses and preferably some of the darkest welder's goggles available. We were accused of possibly owning stock in the goggle factory. I wish we did!

As an example as to how accepted this is, now, let us just reprint here a copy of a special request for massive distribution of an article in *Spotlight*, Oct. 28, 1996 entitled:

[QUOTING:]

DEATH RAY GIVEAWAY

"Israel Acquiring Banned American Laser That 'Melts Eyeballs' of Enemies" is the headline of a "Special Report" in the July issue of *The Washington Report on Middle East Affairs*. The author of the story, Tim Kennedy, describes a weapon so horrible that it is forbidden to American troops—but is being given to Israel.

Here is what Kennedy had to say, in part, in the *Washington Report*:

Yielding to pressure, last September U.S. Secretary of Defense William Perry banned the fielding of lasers designed to cause permanent blindness. However, it now appears that Perry and President Bill Clinton intend to give an anti-personnel laser to Israel in exactly the same category they have banned for American military use. And neither the Pentagon nor the White House intends to prohibit Israel from using this devastating weapon to destroy the eyesight of its enemies.

Back in May, Warren Hough, exclusively informed readers of the Spotlight:

A "death ray" laser weapon, U.S.-designed but denied to American forces because it is thought "too inhuman", will be handed over to Israel this year by the Clinton administration.

The public announcement of the gigantic defense giveaway, timed to coincide with Israel Prime Minister Shimon Peres' recent state visit to Washington, identifies the weapon only as the "Nautilus anti-missile" laser. The "Buck Rogers-style" weapon can destroy missiles in flight with deadly accuracy.

But there is only one (and a lesser) potential use. It can be used on the ground to instantly immobilize and permanently blind thousands of combat troops in an instant.

Kennedy further reports that "The laser is effective against targets up to 12 miles away," and quotes an eye specialist at Walter Reed Army Hospital in Washington [H: And, oh boy, they should know!] that: "Simply put: total, permanent blindness," will be the result of the use of the weapon. The laser light literally "melts the eyeball", this specialist, who served as a medical consultant for several anti-personnel laser testing programs, told the magazine writer.

The *Spotlight* identified TRW, a major defense-technology conglomerate, as the company where research on anti-personnel laser weapons has been going on for 17 years. Code-named MIAAD-182 (Mid-range Infra-red Advanced Antipersonnel Disabling system), it has been renamed "Nautilus". **[H: Read it again—it is NOW called "***NAUTILUS*".**]**

The *Spotlight's* Hough quoted one expert: "War planners foresaw a time when the mere terror of a swiftly, silently gliding ray that 'melts'—literally incinerates—the human eye would panic hostile troops and rout them without firing a shot."

An expert on laser technology and weaponry told the *Spotlight* that "The Nautilus represents the ultimate combat technology. Properly engineered, it will destroy anything in its path."

And there is one more point of interest: As with many *Spotlight* exclusives, readers sent the reports to their representatives and senators in Congress and were informed by these worthies that the *Spotlight* had no idea what it was talking about. [H: How many times have you heard that one?] These constituents were told that the Defense Department had assured Congress that no such weapon existed and we certainly hadn't given away any such things.

Perhaps readers can now ask their representatives and senators if *The Washington Report on Middle East Affairs* is also lying—along with the people quoted. Or is it the government?

[END OF QUOTING]

This is a time of serious threat specifically to any troops in the Middle East but the germ warfare is going to take place AT HOME, wherever you call home. That same laser, by the way, is intense enough to ignite that Radiation Belt of which we have just spoken. You are safe NOWHERE. However, there will be a full intent of protection for God's true people. It simply IS and there is no need for arguments. There will also be places "off limits" to direct attack. I can't give you those coordinates but I suggest you do some indepth *Journal*, and back issue of *CONTACT*, reading.

Whether or not you actually "*have*" an Armageddon—you shall certainly have an Apocalypse, for there eventually comes a time when these rampant threats against the population take their devastating toll. We

are now speaking of deadly assaults which do not take into consideration specific and focused group such as the "*homosexual*" community for starters. Just as with AIDS, the microbes make no distinction as to sexual preference, sexuality, OR SEX—period.

Neither will eyeball melting be selective to any of the above characterizations.

BANKS AND BANKING AND THE ELITE

While we write of things of war we may as well go on and update on happenings within the Corporate Banking Community. I did not say "corporations"—I said "Corporate."

Your non-heard-of Green Party candidate, Ralph Nader, commented on banks and money. He said: "Bill Clinton reappointed the Republican chairman of the Federal Reserve, which is part of the permanent government in Washington that makes the economy safe for the financial industry's profits—no matter what its mischief and speculation. The federal banking agencies serve the banks under Clinton as they did under Republican presidents, using massive bailouts of crooks and swindlers. Taxpayers will pay half-a-trillion dollars between 1990 and 2020 in principal and interest for the savings-and-loan scandal alone." Better listen up, readers, because you are literally into a race for your money—as *well as for your lives*.

Along the lines of this topic, writer James L. Green has done another superb job of presenting some interesting information.

[QUOTING, SPOTLIGHT, Oct. 28, 1996:]

FED, GOVERNMENT DEPRESS ECONOMY

[H: Note that when the market DROPS there is usually speculation the there is *ECONOMIC GROWTH* and it never makes any sort of REASONABLE sense. That is because you are talking about only a FEW major corporations that comprise the "averages" and NOT the actual economy. Either way it doesn't mean anything except realization of full MANIPULATION by the Elite Banksters.]

I usually think of crossties as wooden beams that support railroad tracks. In a broader context, crossties are any interdependent supports or connections. Crossties should be clearly definable, but even the most obvious are sometimes too subtle to grasp.

Today's corporate entrepreneurism is the hallmark of business. Corporations from the Fortune 500 to thousands of smaller businesses are legal entities with stated rights, privileges and liabilities distinct from those of their shareowners. Significantly, corporate crossties connect the massive economic resources demanded by ever-changing technology and markets with a growing concentration of capital flows and financing.

Corporations create jobs, they create wealth and distribute income which provides the mass markets they service with a continuous flow of goods and services. The credo: Service customers with quality goods at competitive prices.

Now, let's check the crossties. Since private corporations evolved with the American Industrial Revolution at the turn of this century, their role as powerful cogs in the machinery of the economy has been suspect by those holding political power.

In recent decades, this rivalry has quickened. Both governments and corporations seek to develop nations and markets culturally and commercially. The resiliency of market successes contrasts with the failure of government-planned economies.

Political interventionism in the United States, however, has seemingly abandoned the goal of equality of opportunity and heralded equality for all, regardless of qualification, training or suitability. Through "command and control" mandates, government has long endeavored to turn the very considerable corporate economic/social contributions into the public benevolence of a "caring government". A prime tool used by government in this endeavor is its monopoly control over our debt-based money system.

The money power is a means to direct economic performance, to redistribute income, and to control and manipulate economic activities to gain political ends. At every turn in the economic environment, government grapples for the control of wealth and the exercise of economic power.

Given this continuing rivalry and interference, it is no surprise that economic growth, investment, productivity gains, real wages and economic stability have been winding down since then-President Richard Nixon cut all ties to sound money in 1971.

We can be assured that in the coming deep economic contraction, the raucous demands to "share the wealth" and redistribute income will bounce off every political sounding board.

The crossties are weakening. As the pace of change quickens, both social and technological revolutions are underway. More and more entrepreneurial corporations are tethered to the money power to garner financial access to massive capital requirements, to the expertise corporations need to survive and to fast-changing technology.

CENTRAL BANKS' ROLE

Corporations operate in markets where they allocate resources, build technology into productive capacity, hire labor services, finance, produce and sell their goods and services. All markets are subject to ups and downs triggered by the depreciating dollar and its loss of value as the money power rises.

Central banks control transaction-money availability and short-term interest rates. With a pen, central bankers can bankrupt a nation and bring its economy to a standstill. Central banks have crossties to regional spheres that transcend nation-states.

Monetary crossties of central bankers determine *who* gets the money, *who* keeps the money, *who* spends the money and, importantly, *who* drives the economy and in what direction. However, crossties of the monetary power causing the long-term devaluation of the dollar remain uncorrected and irreversible. At some point, the money power crossties crumble. *Then real economic trouble erupts, and we face monetary reality*.

[END OF QUOTING]

This writer did not present some important additional facts but we weary of repeating and repeating the same old tales. The world economy is near collapse for the citizens. This is only ONE OF THE SIGNS of approaching devastation of society as you have come to realize it. We refer to it as the Sodomizing and Gommorahizing of the globe. When such massive evil erupts and so totally corrupts all facets of societal structure and behavior, the inevitable and unavoidable consequences of that deviation and deterioration of moral and physical standards accomplishes total Evil in consequences.

WHAT IN THE NAME OF ROMAN CATHOLICISM ...?

Even in your imaginings would anyone come up with this new information regarding Russia and only from the joint actions of Catholic-Israeli (Judeo-Christian) attitudes and misadventures comes this new turn or events and declarations. Some "Saints" have been hundreds of years in the making and yet comes along, now, one of the biggest LIES ever told to find its conclusion in misrepresentation in the very places of Czarism. But, citizens of the world—THIS TELLS MORE ABOUT TRUTH AND FACT THAN ANY PRESENTATION YOU CAN FIND.

[QUOTING, from U.S. News and World Report, Oct. 28, 1996:]

LAST CZAR, NEW SAINT

Almost 80 years have passed since Bolshevik assassins killed Czar Nicholas II, his wife, Alexandria, and their five children. [H: Already the lies are borne forth: All of the Czar Nicholas II's family WERE NOT ASSASSINATED. In fact, none of them were assassinated AS HAS BEEN PRE-SENTED IN THE HISTORY ANNALS.] But now Russia's last royal family is about to get its due complete with halos. Last week, the Russian Orthodox Church formally recommended that the entire family be recognized as martyrs of the faith and canonized as saints. Since 1981 [H: At least one son was still LIVING: H.I.H. Aleksei Nicholaevichy Romanoff, The Heir to the All-Russian Imperial Throne. Tsarevich and Grand Duke of Russia, Head of the Russian Imperial House, etc., etc. So, doesn't this smack of some kind of misdirection in intent? I will note, however, that you TRUE Christians might well take HEART from this silent recognition that Russia, as was once known—is and was not, what she came to be after the Jewish Zionist COM-MUNIST takeover BY THE BOLSHEVIKS IN 1917! FURTHERMORE, JUST "WHO" HAS THOSE COSMOSPHERES?] the czar has been considered a saint by the church's American branch which was unconstrained by the hidebound atheism of the Soviet regime. Even in the newly open Russia, the decision is controversial: Communists have long regarded Nicholas as a bloody oppressor whose excesses led to the even bloodier Russian Revolution. But church officials hailed the czar as a symbol of purity murdered as a representative of Russian Christianity. The church's Congregational Synod will render a final decision in February.

[END OF QUOTING]

I would like to end this writing with an observation of these politicians who get up and expound that

somehow you "are at peace" as a nation. NO you ARE NOT for *PEACE IS LIBERTY IN TRAN-QUILITY*. And readers, THAT fact was recognized by Cicero many, many generations past and he never even made it to *Sainthood*!

You have NO PEACE for there is NO TRANQUILITY—ANYWHERE.

Even Ted Turner has been sacrificed. He, at the least, occasionally let some worthy news slip through. Now he is married to a Jewess who manipulated his way right into the trap of *Time-Warner* ENTER-PRISES, INC. And he already bites the bullet and then the dust.

WHO'S SORRY NOW?

Ted Turner has apologized to the Anti-Defamation League (**ADL**) [**H: British Intelligence of British Israel.**] of B'nai B'rith for comparing fellow media mogul Rupert Murdoch to Adolf Hitler. But Turner didn't apologize to Murdoch. "Murdoch is like the late Fuhrer," Turner was quoted in remarks comparing freedom of reporting between media outlets owned by him and those owned by Murdoch. Abraham Foxman of the ADL called for "an explanation" and Turner immediately came through with an apology for "an unfortunate choice of words".

Fine, he ALSO LOST CONTROL OF HIS OWN NETWORK!

In the above statement attributed to Turner, it reads "Fuhrer". That could mean any head of state in Germany. Do you see how insidious and insipid is the focus on Anti-Semitic (which the Jews are <u>not</u>, Semitic) anything and such as this kind of trashing? But, in addition, just watch how quickly come the Elite apologies.

Ah, friends, it is time to take note of the Manifesting Realities.

Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn October 29, 1996

CHAPTER 1

REC #2 HATONN

SAT., OCT. 5, 1996 1:55 P.M. YR.10, DAY 050

SAT., OCT. 5, 1996

MEMORANDUM REGARDING PRIOR WRITING

Before circulating the prior writing willy-nilly, it becomes very important that we speak on the topics covered in that writing. The information itself (excerpts), is by necessity taken out of context from its surrounding content and therefore can be as easily MISinterpreted as any "religious" doctrine taken out of context and presented as a sole item of focus.

My intent is not to further "RELIGIONS" and this has an EXPLICIT MEANING. "Religions", good or bad, ARE OF MAN'S CONCEPTS AND DOCTRINES ACCORDING TO OPINIONS, PERCEPTIONS, AND INTERPRETATIONS OF WHAT IS "BELIEVED" BY THE FOUNDERS, TO BE SO.

SPIRITUAL TRUTH is that communion and UNDERSTANDING in comprehension of the relationship between God, Creation, and MAN. When "I" am caused to have to use the term "false" in either repeating a statement or presenting a quotation from documents used in presenting information, it is often MIS-INTERPRETED.

For instance, in the prior writing we have quoted a document which states in the portion from page 107, *And They Called His Name Immanuel*, it reads under "MOHAMMED PROPHESIED" the following, which is invariably misconstrued simply by the TRANSLATION FROM ONE LANGUAGE TO THAT OF ANOTHER, IN THIS INSTANCE FROM GERMAN INTO ENGLISH:

"He will create a new cult and have people call him a prophet, and he shall....."

"Cult" is simply a word which represents a "a group following a singular idea which is most often misused in concept." "Church or religious belief regarding a central theme or focus..." These two definitions are adequate for my purposes. What actually came from Mohammed was a New Concept in Idea Focus but in the acceptance by MANKIND became a "Religion". I personally would have used another term than "Cult" and/or "religion" for neither is true in concept as accepted in today's thought-flow.

Also, note that to speak of Mohammed or Mohamm(a)d becomes later recognized as a conceptual focus called Moslem, Muslim, Muhammadanism, etc. You see, even the origin is lost in the retranslations from Source. Then following on comes the Nation of Islam and we are offered The Honorable Elijah Muhammad as a teacher. This is exactly what I meant above when I referred to "out of context" formation of misconstrued possibilities. The point IS: Religion and Spiritual Truth ARE NOT the same word-meaning for one is Spiritual and the other of Physical perception. It does not mean that one is not applicable and the other correct as to "religions", it simply means that "cult" doesn't fit and neither can the other perceptions be in

total unity with the WHOLE concept of God, The Creation, Creator, etc.

Within the same few paragraphs the "translation" has been made as to using "false prophet" and "false doctrine". If a man is a prophet and recognizes himself as a prophet—he is a prophet and there is nothing "false" about the matter—right or wrong. In addition, a "false doctrine" CANNOT be accurate in this translation because a "doctrine" is neither false nor right—a "DOCTRINE" is simply that which is set forth by the man writing the doctrine. GOD DOESN'T WRITE—THE HAND OR MAN'S MIND "WRITES", if you want total description in definition. If your "doctrine" be to kill every third person you meet, then it is YOUR "doctrine" and therefore to call it "false" is foolish for the observer. If you claim, however, that God has a doctrine that says you are to kill every third person you meet, then the definition is FALSE. Please see the difference.

The point the original writer was trying to present, and did poorly in my opinion, was to cause you to recognize that any OTHER than the source cannot have valid and perfect accomplishment of "MEAN-ING" when set to language. Therefore to claim Mohammed to be a False Prophet OR the Doctrine, False, is MISINTERPRETATION AND MISTRANSLATION. Perhaps this is an excellent example of HOW PEOPLE COME TO HATE ONE ANOTHER—BECAUSE OF MISUNDERSTANDING.

However, when you have a group NOW CLAIMING the birthing of your own Christian DOCTRINE when they are in total 100% opposition to the very DEFINITION MEANING, such as Judeo-Christian, is totally absurd. Thus in this instance, for instance, the Islamic IDEAL IDEA is far MORE CHRISTian than is "Judeo-ChristIAN". What is more important is that YOU HAVE NO ABILITY TO TRANS-LATE THE TERM "FALSE" FROM THAT OF WHICH IMMANUEL USED 2000 YEARS AGO!

I feel a real need to clarify these points because it will come through those ones who attend the God aspect of right actions, the change of the concepts of man from that which has become degraded into that which is more nearly TRUTH and from that beginning can come the TRUTH in FULNESS. MAN is imperfect and revelations are only understood from that which is brought within the revealing being. Isn't it TIME you each got square with GOD and SELF? You are birthed knowing right from wrong, evil from righteousness and RITUAL expression may have meaning—but only ONE on ONE connections can be accurate for any ONE being.

There can be many doctrines and frankly—every one is valid. However, that does not mean that any are correct in accuracy of HOW IT IS. Each experiencing being and group of beings will INDOCTRINATE into their concepts and perspectives that which portends to fill their own destiny as perceived and accepted. He who is enslaved will have, most certainly, specific changes in his living doctrines. What you don't seem to understand, Mankind, is that the Evil Emperor Banksters and Criminal elements have used and abused and enslaved all of you in one way or that of another.

There comes a "time" in sequence when the fire must be countered by a reverse flow of fire in order to extinguish that which is burning the entire wood or grass land.

If, for instance, the enemy has enslaved you through use of non-value while lying to you and manufactures shackles from his systems of deceit and "banking" procedures, usury and outright theft—you need a LOT OF SOMETHING SIMILAR BUT WITH REPRESENTED "VALUE" TO COUNTER THE FLOW

OF "GOTCHA".

In this instance I trust that I have explained why I chose to not correct the former quotations regarding a great Teacher. It is important that YOU see and recognize the possibilities and stop the war of misperceptions. LONG since the days of that particular "speaker" in Jerusalem, have the goodly beings of the area been persecuted and the thieves allowed to bilk and strip the countries within the areas of the Middle East. It is NOT RIGHT no matter who is the perpetrator of the evil intent. However, "right" does not prevail simply because it is "right"—MAN must make it "right" by reversing or correcting the ill-intent.

Will all men who use God's gifts be GODLY? No, but every reversal must begin with the turn-about. Out of heading in the direction toward Lighted Rightness comes the ability to grow and eventually earn FREE-DOM for as long as you travel deliberately down the dark pathway to the LIE, you cannot find TRUTH.

Hal Lindsey wrote a small volume on *Satan Is Alive And Well On Planet Earth*. Well, readers, SO TOO IS GOD ALIVE AND WELL ON THE SAME PLANET—JUST AWAITING YOU TO TAKE CONTROL OF JUSTICE, ENERGY, RIGHT IDEAS, AND PUT DOWN THE EVIL WHICH PRE-VAILS AGAINST YOU. In this instance, most of that turn-about must be done from that portion which is CONSIDERED by the so-called "leaders" in this time of chaos as to be the dark countries for the evil Elite have been able to hide the LIGHT which flows from the lamps of those well-oiled lamps. These insipid perpe-TRAITORS have taken the oil from the very lamps of the people who OWNED THE OIL. Then these same so-called leaders have addicted and mesmerized, through drug flow, the very beings of the masses. But at some point, these nations of people must be allowed to seize the moment of God's gifts in order to regain their balance from the assaults of invaders and foreign takers. Note that I did NOT say "aliens". If equality is ever to come even nearly balancing in fact—it shall have to be through a united effort of those who are "foreign" AND those who now live in a controlled nation, whatever that nation might be.

Many men speak of God and use HIM as their source of being able to deceive you—BUT GOD HEARS THE EARNEST PLEA IN TRUTHFUL OUTCRY FOR HELP. GOD TOO HAS A PLAN 2000! The Enemy of the Government of the U.S.A. is not necessarily the Enemy of YOU-THE-PEOPLE of the U.S.A. In fact, you-the-people are still asleep and live in a sham illusion that you have FREEDOM! YOU HAVE NO FREEDOM IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER AND YOU HAD BEST START THINK-ING VERY HARD ABOUT THIS LIVING FACT.

There are some very, very powerful vehicles running and ready to run the race. Even the camels are taking strength to run the footrace toward victory. Getting through the eye of that needle may test a few but I suggest that with God they shall prevail. There is always more energy and strength where that came from—infinitely more, it's available for the asking.

Blessings be upon the ones who hear and see for theirs shall be that victory.

No, you local viewers in Kern County California, U.S.A., that was NOT a meteorite streaking through your sky night before last! And no, it was NOT my ship. A lot of things are taking place in YOUR SKY so don't be silly and bite on the gibberish. I do suggest you keep your eye to the heavens from where comes your help. The Eagles are gathered even yet while the vultures have their feast on the dead.

I lift my cup in honor of your service and commitment, team, and I bend my knee in humble appreciation for passing your testings for it is the measure of my ownself as Teacher. The LIGHT is blinding in its wondrous radiance as the darkness is ever so steadily put asunder.

I am asked about the "beauty" of the features of the Christed person(s) and I am quite amused for it is so that of the most "beautiful" and physically perfect of "Men" was the representation of that which FELL. Truth is that which is perfect and beautiful—INFINITELY. The sham which is projected by physical expression is an illusion.

Can "I" put down your enemy? Why would I do such a thing? Your perceived "enemy" is not, probably, mine! The LAWS OF GOD AND THE CREATION are quite explicit so perhaps the need is for you to study those laws a bit more carefully lest you flunk Physical Life 101.

I believe this is sufficient for our needs today, Dharma. Thank you and may you all begin to solve the riddles presented.

Salu and good day. May the Camel races be more fruitful than simply "interesting". Keep the engines *revved* because there is a great opportunity afoot when the gathered shall enter the high-octane vehicle race. I believe that is to be around the mid-October period of calendar dating. We shall see and rejoice in God's victory.

CHAPTER 2

REC #1 HATONN

TUE., OCT. 8, 1996 7:21 A.M. YR.10, DAY 053

TUE., OCT. 8, 1996

FRAGILE EGO(S)

Every day we face a new set of experiences, some destined to be exquisite and some which will be strained and stressed—each by our own construct.

What can possibly impact you that can rise beyond the shelter of your LIGHT? NOTHING! You can only perceive that some incident or that of another usurps the peace and rest within God Creator. Again, you prove that you have ONLY perception, OF ANY AND ALL THINGS, upon which to base every-thing that touches your universe. Example? Let us consider ANY problem but for stress make it a murder accomplished. If that murder is of someone you never heard of in a far distant land, you have no response or reaction for you most often know not of it. However, if that murder is of one you hold dear and consider part of self—you are often rendered helpless in your grief, anger, pain, and certainly in your desire for vengeance on the perpetrator.

Nearer to home and with far less magnitude is a more apt example. We had recently a wonderful son who wrote for me. It was a private message and most was for a personal message outside of Dharma so that she could SEE and HEAR in a bit of privacy. I asked that the message not be published—for several reasons. Now that party is "traumatized" by my request. I also said that we cannot print even a minute number of writings and thus and so. Sometimes we have to consider our own errors in judgement and, as is so in this very case-perhaps we erred in ALWAYS printing everything the "new" receiver penned!! Whose "fault" is this? There is NO FAULT, for goodness sakes. We have here a paper of very pertinent and impacting NEWS with hardly any space to share the urgent and utmost of importance, items. To some the SPIRITUAL lessons will be all that is desired but for most at this time a distant "Master's" lesson for the beginning student will be ill received. There will, further, be manifest great dispute and reference to mundane garbage as to "source". Nonetheless, some readers grasp for these straws of living LIGHT to allow making it through one more week. But alas, if the writer/receiver is so "traumatized" as to refuse to further write—so be it. We have managed up to this point to bear the load and therefore we can continue to do so. The loss is marginal to everyone else-THAN THE WRITER/RECEIVER to whom the denial might well be "everything" important. If the student cannot take the objection, which was NOT even an objection, of the professor-who errs? I will not err to appease an ego tantrum in the student! EVER!! So be it.

OTHER BIG BAD WOLVES

If you accept a job, how comes it to be that you meet not your duties? Well, for many reasons a person will not have a feeling or a need to meet the schedules and/or hours, or whatever, of the ONE in out-of-

step sequence. If business is run from morning to evening—as is the WORLD of business, then decisions and construction of mandatory handling of each thing that arises is an obligation of whomever is having to face and solve the problems and confrontations which may arise. This is LIFE in its blunt form and not what singular parties prefer to have happen.

If you have a carpenter but the carpenter never wishes to build until perfection of his tool acquisitions are in his pouch, or to be at the job when the other sub-contractors are there to hammer and nail, and who would rather teach a secretary to type than be in the midst of the builders, then works when none of the builders are present—YOU HAVE A PROBLEM! It is always good to LOOK AT SELF and what you do BEFORE you complain to ME! And even then you had best be prepared to get your hair trimmed if there be complaints about ANYTHING which you COULD HAVE HANDLED HAD YOU BEEN PRESENT.

There is no place for prima-donnas in this tribe. We have absolutely all we can handle and more and we are doing an INCREDIBLE job beyond anything ever attempted or experienced on PLANET EARTH. So, please, I suggest that no one start giving us orders, making problems, or otherwise trying to get us distracted into your nonsense—for it will not "fly" gently onto our backs. Those of you who have to RUN SOMETHING are not going to be happy long with us for we have had to work with NOTHING, against all odds, and your input in demanding irritations is NOT ACCEPTABLE.

Let me example and this is hypothetical in order to not tread toes: Dharma and E.J. got 50 baby chicks so that when Dingmans get moved there will be "started" pullets to lay eggs next spring. They reside quite nastily in the LIVING ROOM in a five foot high brooder of four pens. Jeff is making a "run" as quickly as he can in his "off" hours to be ready to house the babes. Now some come and tell us they know all about chickens and you "should do this or that" and "I would do this or that..." and so on. THEN WHY DIDN'T YOU THINK AHEAD, TAKE RESPONSIBILITY AND RAISE BABY CHICKS FOR THIS PURPOSE *IN YOUR LIVING ROOM*?? Don't come tell us what we do wrong—we ARE DOING IT WHILE OTHERS, OFTEN INCLUDING "YOU", WAIT AND WAIT AND SUPERVISE. NO, THANK YOU!! We don't have any group here so there is no claim to all the jobs but don't come take our plans and usurp them or complain about that which we produce. Ones who REALLY WANT TO HELP, come seek, find the need—AND SIMPLY FILL IT!

This does not mean, come hop into the fray with no talents—people see the needs here and GO LEARN HOW TO DO THE TASK THEY RECOGNIZE—FROM HERBOLOGY TO SOIL ENHANCE-MENT. You cannot learn these things from flashes of "insight" from your cot or couch. YOU MUST EXPERIENCE WHERE AND WHEN OTHERS ARE EXPERIENCING.

If you feel that others around you might be somehow annoyed with you—look first to self to see what annoys YOU and then consider what you do that just MIGHT annoy another—and then perhaps you will be less irritated. If you are still terribly irritated, check your EGO and, after you find you "have no ego problems", I suggest you see what can be done to meet the problems responsibly.

Some people perceive themselves as the proverbial "teacher" and yet, I agree with the MASTERS that you cannot be considered nor called a TEACHER until you have met the criterion of having experienced as the student in THE SPECIFIC LESSONS YOU CONSIDER TEACHING.

Always be considerate and respectful of those around you. If you continually get your interchange with those outside your working circles as almost a ritual of regular attendance—something is WRONG! If THOSE friends and "teachers" are soothing but troublesome it would behoove you to PAY ATTEN-TION. Sometimes it is better to take time and go forth and spend time on THEIR TURF and see that which makes THEM so appealing and perhaps you will find that there is great ego stroking and allowances which make you "feel good" but are actually drawing you further and further away from your accepted task. Be careful, each of you, for the pull is subtle indeed. Remember that WE HAVE A JOB, and it is very physical in its necessity. That means that we have to have a very physical presence IN THE WORLD AS IT IS while working our way through in Spiritual TRUTH while so doing—without being pulled into the chaos of every "religion" and Evangelical quagmire into which the "other" well-meaning troops have bungled. We KNOW how and what is our job to do and accomplish so we weary of the pretenders who offer and then have a response of, "OK, why don't we…?" while meaning "…why don't YOU…? and "…get it running and I'll take it…" Say what? If I get it running, do all the thinking, all the money earning, all the structuring, and all of the incredible work of "start-up", why then, do I need YOU?

Why am I working on this subject? Because of some things that have recently happened. I have literally had a couple of people tell me that it "...looks like you are going to get your shit together and when you do, I'll come on back and run it for you..." Wow, what an offer that is so good how can I not refuse? My response? Go thee away from mee for mee and thee are not going to get along well for I work for GOD and thee works for THEE and in this instance the twain shall never meet.

I have another one that might fit some of you: "I can't read that stuff in my house because Mary Doodle or John Diddle won't allow it in the house..." Or, "...don't talk about those things because it upsets me..." or, "...if you continue in that trash you are OUT and if you leave me one more time in favor of that E.T. garbage..." and I think you get my drift—"I am leaving you..." I would suggest you are well rid of the albatross about thine neck. How can I be so crass and blunt? Because if you have a relationship with SO LITTLE RESPECT FOR YOUR SPIRITUAL DIRECTION—you have NO VALID LOVE RE-LATIONSHIP! You are working in purely tyrannical circumstances. And furthermore, IF YOU ARE NOT STRONG ENOUGH TO HANDLE SUCH CIRCUMSTANCES AND SUCH OTHER PAR-TIES—YOU MOST CERTAINLY ARE NOT STRONG ENOUGH TO HANDLE THE TASKS WE ARE ASKED TO DO EVERY HOUR OF OUR EXISTENCE.

You who dwell in places of the waters and quakes—so be it and Salu. IF you think I will snatch you out of your choices of whatever may well be luxury of the moment—think again. I will not! If you are waiting for ability to honor your call—fine, you will ALWAYS be exactly in the right place. If you simply wait for Dharma, or E.J., or Rick to pull it all together FOR YOU—the wait will be long indeed for you will never know when THEY have "arrived".

ONES TURN AWAY?

I write these things which seem harsh and, oh boy, do we get complaints back which are everything from "How dare you speak to me like that..." to "Doesn't sound like God to me..." or worse, you take from us, tattle information which is painful, join the enemy in your need to gossip and prattle your own ego thrusts and then "...well, I want my share..." What exactly is YOUR SHARE? Sometimes the deserving of "share" is a bit of time in the lock-down as it begins to appear from this vantage point.

In addition, what IS IT exactly that you expect? Indeed, you who have participated, waited, worked for nothing, worked for something—whatever, KNOW THIS IS NOT FOR YOU. But when you come forth and offer us pain and disadvantage and then expect a full belly on hungry Tuesday—you may well REMAIN QUITE HUNGRY! What Margie may well have in her larder—is NOT YOUR LARDER just because you think you know Margie.

Readers, you know if the shoes fit—so don't continue to blast us for writing for 6 billion people and you take everything unto SELF. The interesting thing is that only you who really are in "the choir" are the ones who seem to read the music. The remainder are waiting for God to dump goodness and wealth on their beanies. IT WON'T HAPPEN! If you are not faithful and fruitful when there is no abundance—you certainly will not be faithful and bearing of sweet fruit if wealth is somehow tossed onto you. Perhaps a good idea is to ponder God's ALREADY ACCOMPLISHED TESTING—DID YOU PASS? **DID** YOU PASS? **DID** YOU PASS? **DID** YOU PASS? **DID** YOU PASS?

I hope you will remember an old tale: *God made the FIRST garden; Cain made the first city!* The garden was perfection; the city is what you have become on your journey through the physical maze. YOU don't have to rebuild the GARDEN—ONLY the city. HOW MUCH DO YOU KNOW ABOUT CITY CONSTRUCTION? WHY? HAS SOMEONE STOPPED YOU FROM LEARNING AND EARN-ING YOUR "WINGS"? When you respect and take responsibility PERSONALLY for your knowledge, and YOUR LACK THEREOF, you may be ready to start truly LEARNING WORTHY KNOWL-EDGE. When, further, you ONLY attend that which pleases your comfortable self—you are STILL NOT ON THE TEAM BECAUSE, UNTIL YOU STRETCH BEYOND THE "COMFORTABLE", YOU AREN'T WORTHY OF HANDLING THE SUPERVISOR'S JOB. Because you recognize a hammer and a nail does not a contractor make! Neither does it even make a carpenter! Without reference how many of you can NAME a dozen different nails lined up in front of you? How many of you can pass ten grain fields of different grains and name them all? Any? How many of YOU who would even work with spelta or wheat—know it when you see it raw or growing? NO GUESSING! GUESSING WHEN YOU COULD HAVE "KNOWN" IS A DEADLY CHANCE TO TAKE IN LIFE!

Oh I know, I get all the time, "...but I'm not interested in grain, I AM INTERESTED IN MAKING MONEY!" OH? And how, dear sirs, is a chunk of gold going to go down the gullet? Do you actually think Dharma is high-centered on growing grain? How about building domes? Do you think she loves raising chickens in the living room? When are you going to do something YOU DON'T LIKE JUST TO PROVE YOU CAN LEARN AND DO IT BECAUSE IT IS NECESSARY FOR THE GROWTH OF THE WHOLE?

A lot of people, even right around these parts, GIVE a whole big lot and others simply TAKE and demand more. No, it isn't going to "ride" much longer. If you DEMAND—you had BEST BE PREPARED FOR ATTENDING <u>SELF</u> BECAUSE YOUR TENDERS ARE JUST ABOUT THROUGH ATTENDING. WHY ARE YOUR DEMANDS ANOTHER'S PROBLEM? If you are laying on your back upon the floor with a broken leg—I will pick you up without your asking—if I can. If you ASK!! If you demand because you just want me to serve your demands—you can lay there until you heal or perish—YOUR CHOICE! And yes indeed, some are pushing that envelope of "serve me as slave, you servant" and it is simply producing inability to function in a world of give and take while demanding, yet being totally infirm BY INTENT. Charity is for helping those who PLAN, INTEND, AND WORK DILIGENTLY TO

HELP THEMSELVES. WELFARE IS THAT WHICH IS DEMANDED BY THE RECIPIENT WITH NO INTENTION WHATSOEVER OF HELPING SELF—EVER, IF POSSIBLE. Sometimes the "tough love" is of utmost importance—Audrey! Soon YOU will have a choice, precious.

Hard teacher? Yes indeed! If a teacher is unworthy of other than giving "A's" for simply soothing the student's druthers—the TEACHER is NOT A TEACHER; he is a cop-out. If a baby is on the track and a train is bearing down—lift him physically to safety. However, if an adult rogue is standing on the track and you warn him of the train and he simply curses you and gives you the sign of the finger—LEAVE HIM TO HIS CHOICES! WHO MAKES "YOU" GOD OVER "HIS" LIFE?

The most ignored, by me, inquiries is the one that asks "What are YOU going to do about MY plight?" NOTHING! If you are sane enough to ASK, you are SANE ENOUGH to offer some suggestions for SELF! Then, when I respond in offering solutions and you ignore the solutions, demand more and more and more attention—forget the demands, brother, for until you want to help self—don't plague me with your demands. Your "wishes" are not my "commands", NOR SHOULD THEY BE ANYONE ELSE'S! If you like being totally ALONE then I suggest some of you keep right on going down the pathway you have chosen—for alone is exactly where you are headed and consequences are always YOUR OWN—resulting from the choices you, alone, make.

We all walk whatever path we feel leads to the direction we intend to go. If your pathway does not lead to your "goals", then you don't understand your goals. You will go wherever you CHOOSE to go. If you "perceive failure" at the end of your trail, then "failure" is what you intended and I cannot make it different for your better "feelings" about it or self. The facts are that in God's world you have ONLY SUCCESS— never failure. If you only, however, succeed at FAILURE—*have you not succeeded?*

I literally have ones tell me now that they have supported me and, if I am going to be so "ungodly" as to be this demanding, then they are "out of here"! Bye bye!! What else do you wish us to do? Release is one of the first requirements of God to each of us regarding OTHERS. Release them as we would have them release us. Remember that GOLDEN RULE? I FIND IT MORE LIKE: "YOU WILL NOW HAVE SOME GOLD SO ALLOW ME TO RULE FOR YOU." No, thank you; we who have "managed" will continue to manage—somehow, even if we gain funding for our projects.

God does not measure the widow's mite relative to the rich man's INTENT but GOD DOES MEASURE "INTENT". If you cannot manage self why would I entrust GOD'S GREATEST MISSION into your management? And yes indeed, readers, RETURN A HUNDRED FOLD IS THE REWARD OF THE OFFERINGS! If you have given forth pain and agony—expect pain and agony in a hundred-fold return. If you have shared openly and graciously toward the goodly tasks—riches will be your reward—in every instance. THIS IS THE PROMISE OF GOD AND THE UNIVERSAL LAW OF RETURN.

The interesting thing about "receiving" always ends up with those who gave so graciously and willingly and allowed passage—never want anything back and can't seem to be as gracious at receiving as in the giving. No, precious ones, you must ALSO RECEIVE FOR IT IS THE "BALANCE" OF SAME THAT MAKES THE HARMONY OF CONTINUING CYCLES OF GROWTH IN GIVING AND RE-CEIVING, GIVING AND REGIVING, AND THAT IS GOD IN ALWAYS GIVING MORE AND REGIVING MORE AND MORE THAT GOODNESS FLOURISHES UPON THE LANDS.

Even in the planting of crops is proven the faith and trust IN GIVING. For there are times when the belly cries out to eat the seed grain TODAY rather than have the abundance next month. These are choices which allow or disallow the continuation of species and development. How much abundant grain may be in the seed when, in the eating, it is only ONE GRAIN? If, in addition, you plan not for fertile soil upon which to plant the grain of seed—you my well be pushed aside by the thistle—so in God's just universe you must attend in WISDOM that which you do and that which you choose—lest you be left ALONE to face the bleak circumstances of your silly and foolish choices of the MOMENT in passing time. Only in the plane of dimensional life expression is there PASSING "time" for you to grow or perceive or CHOOSE.

Therefore, if you are sane enough to demand and obnoxiously treat another—you are sane enough to face the immediate confrontation of those demands for another is not a kicking post for your ill-behaviors. Even a child, undisciplined, is unworthy of anything save requiring discipline so that he might have learned to achieve harmony and balance in relationships. Love is the key to learning in balance; however, you cannot BALANCE *FOR* ANOTHER and when the child has passed his age of accountability—consequences must be the rule of the day and action. A bad "childhood" is actually no REASON for a bad adult—only a miserable "excuse" for further misbehavior. You are required to LOVE THE PERSON—not the wrong actions! You don't even have to "LIKE" the person in point. You can love your child without liking or approving his behavior—but as he grows he must face the consequences of his chosen actions and outbursts.

NOAH'S BOAT

Why am I preaching on behavior? Because Noah has built his boat—again. This time WE NEED ATTEND IT. Many did NOT go on Noah's boat—then—and shall not now. I do not care a whit in you know where, what you think of my presentations or my lessons or my attitudes. If you don't like ME or mine—get thee from me for there is NOTHING which holds you to me. You who perceive you have lost something FROM ME OR MINE—think again! YOU HAVE LOST NOTHING UNTIL YOU ACTED OR ACT IN TOTAL FOOLISHNESS. If you have invested in the stock market into a given stock which loses value on one day but comes back and surpasses the value on another day—you have LOST NOTHING unless you CHOSE TO DUMP YOUR STOCK!! WHAT YOU CHOOSE TO DO IS NOTHING TO DO WITH WHAT I AM COMPELLED TO DO FOR WE ARE, HERE, COMPELLED TO ACT JUDICIOUSLY WITHIN THE LAWS AND REGULATIONS OF ALL INVOLVED—NOT THE DEMANDING AND FOOLISH CHOICES OF THE ONE OR TWO WHO DO NOT EVEN UNDERSTAND *THEIR OWN ACTIONS*. God provides the "way to accomplish righteousness in every event"—but YOU must walk the walk and be prepared to meet your own consequences of actions and, if you have LIED, you can expect the TRUTH to bury you!

Am I housecleaning? I suppose you might well call it that. For if you have not enjoyed being in "my house" why would you continue to wish to stay where you are unhappy and distressed? Is it to "save" someone else from your perceived personal opinions about another—such as me? Well, if they move with you, away from this centered place, we wish them well, as with you. We have no groupie church here that demands we hold you hostage to some membership list. We can't even seem to PAY some to go when they claim to "love" us so unconditionally as to bury us in their wisdom in constant disappreciation.

When we walk through these days of seeming chaos and confusion, you will never find yourself alone

unless you choose that singular pathway—for chaos cannot long exist in the ordered balance and harmony of KNOWING GOD. This does not mean that every moment will be quiet order without jangled nerves or need for deep and clear thinking. What it means is that you have a foundation strong enough to hold through any storm presented.

When I ask, for instance, that you be in bed and ready for work at midnight and you CHOOSE to not do that—then do not expect me to choose YOU for my management team. I know what I am doing and why I am doing it and YOU HAVE NO WAY TO KNOW. I have a sleeping or sleepy one here and there and ones who are just too fatigued to have ability to properly function because you have not bothered to meet my schedule for input of ANSWERS to your needs. THERE IS NOTHING AS IMPORTANT AS THAT TIME YOU SPEND WITH YOUR TEACHERS IN READINESS AND OPENNESS OF MIND FOR *INPUT*.

You know better? We shall see! And again—please—if these moccasins don't fit your footsies—then don't put them on YOUR feet! However, some of my team are running so hard and so long with holes in their moccasin soles as to have blisters and STILL THEY MEET THEIR SCHEDULES OF NEED. These are, once more in repetition: YOUR CHOICES! However, when you are staying up past midnight to plan how to spend MY MONEY, OR WHAT YOU ARE GOING TO DO WHEN IT IS ALLAVAIL-ABLE FOR YOUR PERFECT NEEDS—it is not so wise in the long-consideration. If you are spending time repaying loans allowed and offered for use, fine; if you are working for the better survival of the world—fine, but I don't really see enough of THAT to keep many of you awake past midnight! So be it and Selah. What you do is up to you—the demands on ME, however, are NOT YOURS to which I respond. I serve GOD CREATOR—NONE OTHER, AND YOU KNOW SOMETHING? HE DOES NOT "DEMAND"!

I cherish you each; I love you all—absolutely. I can also love you enough to leave you to your own choices and release you to those demands of self. That is GOD'S INFINITE GIFT TO YOU, MANKIND—CHOICES AND ABILITY TO REASON!

I am amazed at the numbers of you who pray diligently and unceasingly that God will change ANOTHER'S mind. No, God can only assist you in changing your OWN—no other. Perhaps if YOU stop trying to force another to change his/her mind—they will see your "better way" (if it indeed be better in freedom of will)—and change on their own account. Those things are up to you and, until YOU CAN SEE GOD'S GIFTS, you are not the best TEACHER! God sends opportunity upon opportunity to have most simply die by the wayside. How many wondrous opportunities have you lost just today? Oh yes, YOU HAVE! And, this "doesn't sound like God?" Oh, and what, exactly, do YOU know about GOD? Oh??? I can most certainly promise you that this is EXACTLY THE WAY OF GOD! YOU HAVE OPINION! GOD <u>IS</u>.

Yes, we are getting ready for the final lap of the run in this segment of preparation, and whether or not you wish to complete this run WITH US is surely up to you—but it is our race, our brotherhood and, yes indeed, OUR SHIPS, and we follow ONLY the laws and rules of GOD as concerns the "ships" in HIS sea. Your wishes will be respected—but the rules and regulations of the Ship Owner will be honored. Welcome aboard or have a nice journey on your own dingy; we pressure you NOT one way or the other. You can wait for WHATEVER you expect without any nagging from me and yes, I will miss some of you, but I do not hold any who desire to be away from me. In other words, THE HOSTS DO NOT ABDUCT

ANYONE OR ANYTHING—PERIOD! Stay with your grays, your lizards, your false replications that is your choice, but they will NOT BE A PART OF MY PASSENGER LISTING PAST THE FIRST STOPOFF. Unfortunately for you, as an isolated species of Earth-bound man, you are considered TOXIC WASTE and it is time you clean up yourselves or be left to whatever befalls you in your blind assumptions of OTHERS OPINIONS.

TRUTH is there for all to see and KNOW. Therefore, if you choose to live in darkness WITHIN THE LIE—you have made your bed, so to speak, and we hope you sleep well within its covers; for where we are going, we need no COVERS.

I bid you a wondrous day TODAY for we cannot change yesterday and we know not yet, tomorrow. Ah, but the potential is magnificent if you use it well. Salu.

CHAPTER 3

REC #1 HATONN

FRI., OCT. 11, 1996 8:57 A.M. YR.10, DAY 056

FRI., OCT. 11, 1996

WATCHING, WORKING, AND WAITING

Part of our journey here is to know how and when to watch, to work, and certainly the most difficult to discern: when and how to WAIT—*upon God*!

What we do usually is to take up the stance of somehow carrying a great burden of both responsibility and WISDOM. If you have *wisdom* you shall have insight and ability to meet all responsibilities in timely fashion without it being considered some terrible burden. It needs no babbling with the tongue and lips it bears thoughtful and, often, silent realization in WISDOM WITHIN. Politicians babble infinitely until you wish to throttle them—WISE people have something of TRUTH to say when they do so. This, of course, is when there is something worthy of discourse, for conversation and communication must always include the speaking so that each understands the other's ideals, ideas, and motives. Politicians babble, gossips prattle, and hopefully, after you come to have realization in Truth and Wisdom—YOU will COM-MUNICATE. Further, you will cease to feel abused, accused, or somehow slighted if another takes no note of you or reaches beyond your perhaps limited input. If you don't participate totally then you CAN-NOT have the sufficient knowledge to understand or perceive properly in any circumstance—only in those things for which you train self. So many people try to interject management into situations wherein THEY have NO KNOWLEDGE WHATSOEVER. Beware of this TRAP.

If you assume responsibility, say, for a job, then you also assume the responsibility of being on top of EVERY impacting circumstance. You cannot manage anything of which you have lacking PARTS. A jigsaw puzzle cannot be completed if you have missing parts. This means that YOU must have more input than any other within your equation—not less. Nothing can be run in routine absence from the ongoing play. How can you direct a play if you never go near the rehearsals or the stage? That is what would-be tyrants pretend to be and do—a director from a seat of power and not from the stage edge while the actors inclusive are on the stage.

Then, consider this: When you understand the centralized focus on and within God—you have achieved that which allows those perceived burdens to become nothing save little interesting experiences to be lived in whatever you perceive to be the "real world". However, the REAL WORLD is that which is even farther beyond the play or the experience.

Why do I turn into this subject? Because if you move along totally absorbed by the habits and experiences within the play you will forget the POINT of the play and the message you are presenting. If you only go, for instance, for a glob of money and your whole focus is on the money—you will forget WHY you wanted the funds in the first place. If it is for personal ego reward of physical pleasure—it will eat you alive. If your

goal is betterment through abundance of the "whole"—then you have gained WISDOM and the reward will be worthy of the intent. In that very realization you will find it impossible to not gain that which is sought that the mission in goodness might be fulfilled. Some, it seems, must give the life experience and others simply a contribution of working physical change of conditions in presentation of a better way. It is far easier to give up the physical experience than to stay focused on GOD AND THE GOAL OF GOOD-NESS and achieve abundance without falling off God's wagon.

If there is absolutely a need to be up, in service to God and Brothers to, say, be still working on a project at 4:00 a.m., after I have asked you to be sleeping and working with me by midnight, it is apparently acceptable to others who are controlled by higher and more urgent need than my wishes. However, if you demand that others work with you or they must always and consistently be up at 4:00 a.m. to meet YOUR needs-it is not acceptable. These are the "compromises" which allow others to meet their obligations to higher purpose and not simply be appeasing a "boss" or a perceived and acting-out eccentric personality. When YOUR management allows for the fulfillment of other's needs—you have achieved that which portrays management in EXCELLENCE. However, the manager in point must meet the further needs of the parties otherwise attached to a mission or task by BEING THERE AT ALL TIMES WHERE THE "STUFF" IS GOING ON ON THE STAGE OF ONGOING AND EVER-CHANGING EXPERI-ENCES. IF THE LEAD ACTOR IS MISSING FROM ANY PLAY'S ACT ON STAGE-THERE IS NO PLAY BEING OFFERED—ONLY A SHAM OF POSSIBILITIES WITHOUT PROBABILITY OF BEING PROPERLY CONCLUDED. You might well be the smartest, potentially, and best educated person on the globe but if you use it not, who cares? It means NOTHING! It only means that you demand, in selfish call, the adjustment of others who weary of answering your call or demands and the others will rebel.

REWARD OF SOUL

This is why so few workers for God, achieve! There is always that temptation, by the person in point in any leadership circumstance, to say: "I'll do God's work but by God I'll do it my way, on my schedule." NO, WE WHO DO GOD'S WORK DO NOT CALL IT "WORK" IN ACTUAL BURDEN MEAN-ING, AND WE ARE ALWAYS OPEN TO DOING IT ABSOLUTELY ACCORDING TO GOD'S WILL! We lovingly and willingly meet whatever guidelines are acceptable to allow others to fully meet their own potentials. When we require that others simply meet our own selfish needs when we could do and act "*otherwise*" in our own position, we fail miserably as a wayshower. This puts aside all reference to outstanding ability or capability. If, in addition, you cannot meet this burden, if you perceive it to be a burden, then you are not going to be able to fulfill the demands of A MORE IMPORTANT OR DIFFER-ENT TASK. The least, seemingly, task is often the measure of the person by the Teacher and not the academic aquirements of a past expression.

What I get constantly is a barrage of, "Let me do something," and then, "Oh, well, not that..." and/or, "...you can depend on me" and then only to find, "Well, you traumatized me and I won't do that any more..." If you cannot or will not fulfill that PROMISE, then HOW can anyone depend on YOU when the roadway gets difficult? If you are going to help Dharma, but the minute you are crossed in any way, you then refuse to write or assist—HOW IS THAT "HELP"? Those are the most disappointing circumstances of all—to depend on the assistance and be left hanging out to dry in a tornado because you didn't write in order that the other have a column in the paper—as a for instance. Never mind, then, is the response from we the scribblers—we could have done it ourselves on our own schedule far more easily than "catch up" under direct pressure. You are NOT here to wishy-washy your way through life experience and when you understand that mission, you will see things differently. If you can't be depended upon to do the tasks in goodly work—you won't do your tasks elsewhere!

How many have come and claimed commitment only to not only go away but go away after stealing, lying and cheating us?!! If you are making promises and then you change, you go, you turn and damage-how can trust ever be brought unto God of Wisdom for YOUR position? "But doesn't God know?", you might ask. Yes, but your brethren don't and even YOU may not know self until opportunity to focus on SELF, totally, hits you along the trail. Or, you need to cover up your acts of indiscretion as you stumble along the way without openly doing the RIGHT THING through RIGHT choices. Lies, by their own definition, can only perpetuate and compound LIES. Truth simply ALWAYS IS and, eventually, if you hang in there long enough in truth-will OUT! Can you make the world recognize that truth? Yes! For TRUTH is of GOD and GOD wins-remember? The worst plight in which to find self, however, is to come to BELIEVE your own LIES. This allows a compounding of another and another lie built on the false foundation as laid forth regarding any topic or action-and others, as well as you, can never have a stable construct. If you base your actions and your words on TRUTH-you begin with a stable foundation upon which you can build and build and build and at some point YOUR construct is all that is left standing after the judgement of JUSTICE passes by. We will not here discuss the INJUSTICE in SYSTEMS that reward the liar instead of the Truthbearer. That is a part of the very foundation of building on LIES which topples nations and worlds-and wipes out innocent people by the cazillions. But you can't hold on? Well, if there is enough desire in wishing to succeed, you not only WILL hold on, but YOU WILL FIND A WAY IN WHICH TO FUNCTION AND YOU WILL CREATE THAT WHICH IS NECESSARY FOR YOUR JOURNEY TO THAT DAY OF SUCCESS. The goal, however, must be worthy of the journey. It MUST be a desire founded on RIGHT REASONS. When that RIGHT REASON becomes the only focus and goal-there is no way you shall not achieve it-and, furthermore, it will not seem a "BURDEN" but rather, only an experience with a few interesting nasties along the way.

Man likes to joke and play along the way and this is fine, until, of course, his jokes and play produce the appearance of irresponsible actions. Then, whether or not a party is actually perpetrating a thing or actually performing an act of incorrect and irresponsible fashion, the ASSUMPTION is present and will be the ACCEPTED attitude in REASONED perception. This means that all of, and each of, you must always look at what perceptions can be received by ones looking on or participating in some manner, with you. If, for instance, you have a guest in your home who is violently allergic to spinach—you would not feed him spinach. Likewise, if you are laying abed in the next room from a guest who is against all appearances of adultery and you have an opposite, or like, sexual partner in your same bed—the assumption is that "hanky panky" is taking place and it is an insult to your guest—either way. Then, if you move further along and deny any incident when the APPEARANCE is obviously otherwise, the "noise" is obviously otherwise, and then you call your guest a liar for assuming such conduct—you may well have erred. The greatest error of all, however, is the silly defense of self—even if the conduct was only "the appearance of" for the INTENT WAS PRESENT AND IT IS THE ENERGY WHICH IS ACTUALLY PERCEIVED—NOT THE NON-**SEEN ACT OF SOME KIND**.

Next, you must then turn to a solution of the confrontation in which you who erred in offering the appearance before your guest, and you must clear the confusion. You DO NOT go about calling everyone who knows the "guest" and denounce him to salve your own guilty conscience which is nagging because you KNOW you were, at the least, giving the appearance of inappropriate behavior. This is why you have been taught that the lusting in the mind is the same as the actual deed. I believe it may even be more damaging because if you cannot control your THOUGHTS then you have no business teaching others to control theirs! The point is: LIVE YOUR EXAMPLE. And remember something, kiddies: the DOWN-FALL OF "MAN" is through his need of POWER and his misuse and misperception of that power—gained through sexual irresponsibility. A man most often measures his worth only through his pocketbook and his sexual conquests of one kind or another—and the more powerful he feels the more obscene are his sexual abuses. INDEED, GOD CERTAINLY KNOWS EXACTLY *WHERE AND HOW* TO TEST MANKIND!

Well, my intent was not to give lessons on sexuality this morning—that is YOUR business, but it needs a lot of close scrutiny of self, intents, wishes, desires, AND RESPONSIBILITY IN ALL THE REFERENCES.

<u>A LESSON FROM</u> <u>HIGHER TEACHER-MASTERS</u>

We offer you the lessons as presented in the introduction of such as the "Rainbow Masters" but the living word is often missed, either deliberately or inadvertently, in the living of daily perceptions. You fail to recognize that to LIVE YOUR LESSONS IS TO COME TO KNOW GOD. In coming into the KNOW-ING of GOD, you FREE yourselves and we might look at that topic right here and now.

I would honor our friend "Terry" for the next heading for in his studies with the Immortals for over seven years of his Earth life, he came through with some insights beyond that which the ordinary man is offered. Every man is birthed with this KNOWING, but the knowing is replaced by TRAINING and the mind-conscious forgets. You, like a computer, must have "trigger" ideas or codes to bring the memory to the screen of the monitor or to the conscious mind in realization of thought. If you do not remember from where comes your freedom and knowing, you are locked in the confines of limitation.

KNOWING GOD YOU FREE YOURSELVES

[H: Because the accepted recognition of the Christed being in your age is referred to as Jesus, we shall use the label. However, this is the being recognized by the ancients and higher energies as Sananda and on up the line, God, Aton, etc. This is simply for clarification to you "inquiring" minds who have to have every detail repeated because you think "somebody else" needs to know what we think.]

"When Jesus spoke the words to the people, 'Come to me all of you; you are weary and heavy-laden and I will give you rest,' this is not the true statement of the words as described in that *Bible*, that he actually spoke. The true statement of these words were, 'Come with your mind centralized and focused in me.' That is, God/man, the IAM, will give you rest. When you rest in the IAM you change from the Son of Man of burden to the true God that is *rest* in peace. For this, you no longer carry 'burden'. God the Father is Man's power to think rightly and directly through any condition presenting. Man as he thinks of himself as some poor worm in the dust, is not in God's consciousness. This is only the expressing of mankind in the 'worm consciousness' without reality of what he is doing or thinking. This is man in his

lower mind power wherein man is in limitation and in a most dreary condition within that consciousness of self. Therefore MAN becomes the 'condition' perceived and is the man you see as old, sick, and even dead. Your religions with their self-appointed leaders make you believe that your destination is your origin, i.e., 'dust to dust'. This is a most unfortunate error of all mankind. This is also where the burden and fatigue overcomes and destroys the body and the mind-individual and brings man the immortal and limitless to be a weak and limited dead man. And believe me, there are more walking, breathing, DEAD MEN than you can imagine in your wildest imaginings.

"Let us consider that you are taking aim at the center of a target with bow and arrow. You focus all your thought to the direction of the target. You will find that you do not even take breath at the time. You stand balanced and still focusing all the mind toward the technical 'drifts' and 'drafts', rise and fall, etc., on that central target. Then with all your will and might and while in complete focus you actually see nothing except the central mark on the target. Then poising the bow in full pull-back you release the arrow, still not changing focus or motion. When the arrow strikes the target, and it will after practice and focus, you will have accomplished the goal. The pattern is the same if you seek God. When your ideal is God in relationship to self, then you will find that, just as your ideal is God—so too it becomes a reality—if you maintain your focus and intent.

"It is so also that when you pray and communicate with God, the IAM presence, you must recognize your divine ideal and that causes the very IAm presence within your own being to come forth in the miracle of attachment. It is in this way that you bring forth the divine SPIRITUAL man, the Christedness of GOD. God is the WORD, for words are expressions of thought in communication. GOD IS THE WORD. Through physical expression is the WORD MADE MANIFEST. When the word is made manifest as flesh—then too, you have God made manifest for there can be no other realization. YOU are a fragment of GOD made manifest—you become 'created'. Herein is the mystery most manifest. If you disallow God to continue as the focus manifest, you will move away from the creative power of God. You will only be able to tinker and tamper with that which is already made manifest BY GOD. Realization of truth in Divine Infinite Power of Creation is only available when MIND realizes its oneness with that Creator Source.

"It becomes mandatory, then, for a world or a MAN to remain within the LIGHTED PRESENCE of God Totality. Man must continually maintain a pathway directly toward the objective of experiencing, and creating, in wisdom, the divine spiritual life that is God within."

(Editor's note: Due to the difficulty for Dharma of translating Terry's notes to an easily read text, Hatonn apparently took over at this point and, still following Terry's material and ideas, began to dictate to Dharma, as he usually does when the format shows [QUOTING:].)

Man must always search the reflection of himself in his mirror of recognition and never move away from desire and purpose of perfection in purity of soul intent. No one ever accomplished anything unless it was a desired intent, recognized or ignored. This can be either "good" or "bad" in perception. Even if you are drifting in a thoughtless pattern of experience you will end up drifting into the very streams of consciousness wherein your level of knowledge, fear, and passions take you swirling along in the flow. You will be caught in that which takes your mental focus and this is why FEAR will bring you directly to that which you fear the most. You will be wherein your thoughts reside.

If you command self to act as God, demanding of self that your attention be fully focused on that which is Godly, it becomes a part of your very existence and choices are no longer difficult, for you will see no alternative save that which brings you ever closer to the totality of God presence. You will simply make decisions which will not cause you to need to hide, cover, or fear discovery. You will actually find yourself ceasing even the appearance of that which is most often hidden in hopes God or Man will not take note. God always takes note, anyway, and Man assumes that which is presented, whether or not it is "reality".

There is another fact which should be considered at this juncture: consideration of that which you try to HIDE from others but, more importantly, from SELF. You will convince yourself that black is white if your desire is to fool self—and therein is found the greatest FOOL of all. You can fool all of the people occasionally; you can fool some of the people all of the time; you can fool self—BUT YOU CAN NEVER FOOL GOD! The follow-on of that fact is that you cannot fool, long, the Godly people, for in wisdom of knowledge you will show the mark of the fool if you be the fool, and the wise will KNOW you for that which you are—a deceiver, a Fool indeed.

In this same context it becomes necessary for you to express God. It is necessary for you to let God stand forth through you, into outer expression. In this expression you have ALL YOU NEED to create whatever might be your goal infinite. You won't need help from outside sources when you know that the source of all knowledge, the spirit of all knowledge, the understanding truth, is only within. What is expressed here is that you may HAVE perceived help but that help will come as a creation in direction and recognition of the mind which plots the course of actions desirable to reach your goal(s). The old saying: "When the student is ready the Teacher will be present," is excellent in concept for God-Mind in creative power will produce the Teacher/Leader/Thing next needed for your success of goal acquisition in your "reality" of expectation.

The mind will create the way to solve every problem. However, it is WISE indeed to KNOW what you ask lest you have no idea as to how to create the solution or even if you arrive at same. You must also recognize opportunities, for the very solutions will often come forth in totally unexpected manners and in full disguise. If, for instance, holding a corporation might be THE solution to a problem you have but you have no notion of anything about or the workings of corporations—YOU WILL MISS THE OPPORTU-NITY FOR YOUR SPECIFIC SOLUTION TO YOUR EXPLICIT PROBLEM. Do you follow the reasoning? This is WHY, in our own mission, we are seemingly delayed while the team becomes IN-FORMED and knowledge becomes practical application. This requires hard attention, no rest at the oars, and no waiting for wisdom or riches to shower onto your heads like the proverbial snowfall brings white flakes of crystals upon you. YOU MUST KNOW WHAT YOU ARE DOING AND *HOW TO DO IT*. This is why some are passed by in the walk to success—because they would rather hug a tree and hope for whatever is in La-la-land rather than attend the needs of CREATING.

In this cycle of thought progression we come right back to the subject at outset of this writing: YOU MUST ATTEND CLASSES IF YOU EXPECT TO LEARN THE LESSONS. You cannot drift through specific sets of necessary actions and recognitions if you fail to meet the learning requirements and fit the program as laid forth in functioning format. It is perfectly alright to do what you will and according to your choices—BUT BE CAREFUL OF WHAT YOU CONVINCE ANOTHER, IN YOUR PERCEPTIONS, IN CASE THEY POSSIBLY BE MORE PERSONAL THAN PERFECTION.

But still the worst destroyer of individual soul is to BETRAY, and then, to deliberately betray another for perceived annoyances or disagreements, becomes vengeance, and is THE destroyer beyond all others. Betrayal and becoming a Traitor to cause, nation, person, OR GOD is to doom soul to the pits of one kind or another. Errors must be flushed out and confronted while there is yet opportunity for correction—but betrayal, even in innocence of specific actions, is the poison of soul progression. And, people, if you don't KNOW ALL THE FACTS OF ANY CIRCUMSTANCE, it is betrayal anyway, if you damage the parties involved in any way whatsoever—for your intent is of necessity of fact, betrayal, if you feed gossip and/or your ignorant perceptions. NOTE just WHY you have a usual tendency to first believe the LIAR!! Once you believe the liar you are then trapped, aren't you? You become even more trapped if you know not all the circumstances and you take great sides and toss arrows at the goodly and truthful party whilst you play and pretend you "don't think God would..."

The problem most prevalent among long-time "seekers" is the usual falling away of truth in those that you set up as your example. When the "person" human responds as human in your perception of what "ought to be" according to your own "illusion" you jump on the bash-bandwagon and find no way to turn back when you find the liars and cheats are actually on your newly directed bandwagon. You then go about justifying the actions of the WRONG parties to placate your own perceptions of SELF and hide your full intent or hasty actions. Next, the party in fault will usually proclaim to "just allow" and "not judge" when you have ALREADY MADE FULL JUDGEMENT AND ARE ALLOWING WRONG TO PREVAIL. THIS KEEPS YOU JUST AS WRONG AS THE ORIGINAL WRONG-DOERS. This is why the Master said in the name of God: YOU ARE EITHER WITH ME OR YOU ARE AGAINST ME. And, friends, it is time to make your decisions for YOU ARE EITHER WITH ME OR YOU ARE AGAINST ME, for in our work there ceases to be a mid-point for standing in indecision according to the way the wind blows in the moment.

If you claim I, Hatonn, am not of God because you think otherwise-think again, for if you can believe that I am not of God nor Christlike-then you have NOT STUDIED MY PRESENTATIONS-PERIOD. WHEN YOU ARE PERFECT, THEN AND ONLY THEN, MAY YOU JUDGE MY IMPER-FECTIONS. You judge by your own imperfections and that is a poor reflection of another's soul, separate from your own. You can only REFLECT that which you ARE! Think about this as you pontificate on great and mighty opinion-for you are going to find the errors you make will make you, truly, the FOOL you are. You are welcome to try and prove ME the fool-but I promise you, the game will backfire for we can play at foolishness until those proverbial "cows" come home. Is it, however, a worthy game for thee or me? Can we not simply respect one another for that which we are come to accomplish? I come to accomplish a return to God-ness and Truth as relates to Creator/Creation. What is YOUR mission? What is your purpose? If you don't know-how expect ye to gain it? Searchers who FIND and then turn away are the most pitiful of all-for they shall never be given ability to find-only recognize one day in retrospect that they missed it. SEEKERS do not wish to FIND TRUTH-for they would have to give up their misperceptions of which they have become so fond of holding unto self. You may hold whatever you choose-but do not expect me to play your silly game! I will not give you reward for your foolish misperceptions and dogmas which have become so powerful and important to a warped ego stance.

In this, could I be wrong? NO—BECAUSE I KNOW GOD and if you play such silly games in hide and pretend—YOU DO NOT! Where man usually errs is not in realizing his ONEness WITH GOD—but in his ever-lingering thought of himself as knowing more and being MORE THAN GOD CREATOR. When

you disagree with the laws of The Creation and God Creator, then you place yourself in the dunce-cap and become the total FOOL. I did NOT say the MAN-MADE laws as presented as being GOD's LAWS. I said The Creation and God Creator's LAWS. The two are NOT the same and yet you still JUDGE GOD AND GOD'S PEOPLE BY MAN'S STUPID AND IDIOTIC RULES AND TRAINED-DOG DOC-TRINES. You cannot serve God by tithing to a church, any church—in physical manner. YOU CAN ONLY SERVE GOD BY GIVING THAT WHICH IS SOUL/YOU UNTO GOD—AND NOT YOUR SILLY PERCEPTIONS OF THAT WHICH IS FLESH AND PHYSICAL AS SOMEHOW APPEAS-ING AN INVISIBLE GOD. You can only truly serve God in reflection of LOVE and TRUTH. If you lie you serve only that which is physical MAN and his silly notions of benefit for and of, the moment.

When you have truth laid before you and you still chose the lie—then you have achieved one of the greatest follies of all experience—for you have moved from the category of ignorance into total stupidity—and there is great difference in the two perceptions. Evil is birthed out of that stupidity—ignorance is but a sham of temporary status which *allows*.

When YOU pass from ignorance and misperception into total intent in refusal to see Truth and stand in your stupidity of judgement—you can expect full consequence in KIND in cycled return for your persisting attitudes of incorrect perceptions. All the denying, claiming, pronouncing and/or lying about a carrot will not make it into a grain of wheat. And, further, all the voting-in, wishing, compounding of lies upon lies—will not change an IOTA OF THE TRUTH. Lies produce more lies and Truth produces only Truth—and the twain shall never lay as one in any circumstance. You can claim truth from a lie—but you only have another lie. It is as with O.J. Simpson who either killed or did not kill—and all the voting of unknowing parties will never change a hair of the Truth of it. "Opinion" is NOT "truth"—even if opinion may well express truth. Remember this when you express "opinions" for they are more often WRONG than COR-RECT. Correct opinions come from LEARNING TRUTH and gaining knowledge—no other way. If you wish your "opinions" honored—then make sure they are based on correct input and KNOWING—not guessing. When you KNOW GOD you stop "guessing" about Truth. I can respect you and your opinions—it makes NEITHER one *correct*.

Once, however, you CHOOSE to live in lies and wrong perceptions and express those as your "opinions"—I have no respect for the opinions OR YOU. Note I used the term "respect". I revere and respect, beyond all others, GOD, and if you live not as and by God, then I hold no respect or reverence for you or your ideas. I can respect you as "A" being and love you for your created existence—that does NOT mean I must either like you or respect you for that which are your choices or your actions. Neither do I even have to tolerate those who pretend to CHANGE to somehow please me or their own cause—and do not. Do not turn from me or mine and then pretend to find "truth" to come back in good stead without having to change attitudes—for I want you not among my acquaintances and, much the less, among those I know as "friend", after you have attempted, by your intent and actions, to bring hurt and damage upon those who trusted you, shared with you, and gave you a hand in willing friendship only to be smitten by the physical things you choose in greed of ego expression.

Then, when the tide turns and possibilities for self seem a bit more gratifying by returning to the original friendship stance, you come back? No, I don't think so, beloved ones, for no one will trust you again. We do not need contracts—we have the WORD and TRUTH and if that is not enough then all the swearing and oaths are worth NOTHING. Furthermore, once the word is used wrongly, trust is no longer POS-

SIBLE for the mind will never forget the wrong even if there is full forgiveness. GOD FORGIVES—HE DOES NOT FORGET! So be it.

Good morning and I salute you who will accept and learn that which is offered unto you.

CHAPTER 4

REC #2 HATONN

MON., OCT. 14, 1996 10:50 A.M. YR.10, DAY 059

MON., OCT. 14, 1996

BLINDNESS IS A CONTAGIOUS DISEASE

Each morning as we sit to write there come the myriads of interruptions, the deadlines, the headlines and always—the legal morass to bog our very beings. I have to now apologize to our layout staff at *CON*-*TACT* for delays in reaching them with this paper. Since what we write often comes under fire from this one or that one, there is usually a last minute add or delete because we may have trodden WITH TRUTH upon the adversary's toes. THEY HAVE SOMETHING TO HIDE—WE DO NOT!

<u>AMERICA WEST AND</u> <u>CONT(R)ACT (TRUST OR INC.?)</u>

In SPOTLIGHT's advertising section there are TWO advertisements running consecutively in the "want ads". One is for a catalog from America West in Bozeman, MT. and the next is for Mishpucka information from something called in the paper, CONTRACT. The P.O. Box number seems to match with CON-TACT but who knows. After all, Green and Anderson set up a CONSTITUTIONAL LAW CENTRE TRUST and diverted FUNDS through and meant for: CONSTITUTIONAL LAW CENTER CORPO-RATION, same address, same working space as CLC in Sacramento. Is this more of the same tactics? Please investigate because we KNOW subscriptions, corporation FEES (so be careful who sends you a bill, corporate persons) and such other similar things ARE BEING DIVERTED! Whole corporations have been diverted, thieved, and re-established unlawfully within our own recognized and known business parties. Three were UNLAWFULLY changed out in August of last year-right from under the very shelter of the Nevada Agent-who was NEVER notified, as was never notified the Board or Officers of said corporations. Is this not about as evil as you can get in order to intentionally divert corporations, assets, persons, etc.? It is right there in SPOTLIGHT so I suggest as many of you as take SPOTLIGHT check it out for selves. Typographical error, miscarriage of law by diverting P.O. Boxes to "similar" named corporations? You investigate it! I am weary of being the only one picking up these things. If it is a SPOTLIGHT error, or even if not—NOTIFY THEM OF THE "COINCIDENCE".

Cort will want to follow up first for it was HE who was set-up personally while Green even kept sending poison mail to Cort and Jenny's families with threats and accusations of unlawful activities. He also continues to say that Cort and Jenny got a divorce over this "stuff" with Tehachapi. (???) What has happened is that they have one of the most remarkably good relationships of any couple I have ever met and now have a second precious child whom they BOTH claim.

PEOPLE, THE LIES WILL CONTINUE TO EAT YOU ALIVE—UNTIL YOU STOP THEM WITH *TRUTH*. THAT DOES NOT TAKE BRAVE ACTION—IT SIMPLY REQUIRES YOU OPEN YOUR

MINDS, YOUR MOUTHS, AND USE YOUR PENS.

AL GORE AND ANTI-SEMITISM

Note the first thing out of the mouths of the sniveling scum-suckers is "...is anti-Semitic". You had it again THIS DAY when Al Gore was asked by a wonderful media robot what was going to be done about this "terrible" Louis Farrakhan? Now what has Louis Farrakhan done? Well, he has given honor and humble honor to GOD, CHRIST-ness, ATON-MENT, and gentle non-violent TRUTH and respect to both our NATION and THE BLACK PEOPLE OF THIS OLD GLOBE. And he has visited in friendly places about the world. I have this to say: GOD BLESSES THIS MAN FOR THAT DARING SPIRIT OF TRUTH PRESENTED TO YOU-THE-PEOPLE OF BLIND PERCEPTIONS. MAY GOD HAVE EQUAL MERCY ON YOU-WHO-DEMEAN-AND-LIE IN THE FACE OF *TRUTH*.

So Al Gore's FIRST STATEMENT WAS "...HE IS ANTI-SEMITIC..." And it is in the works right now to pull Farrakhan's PASSPORT so he CAN'T go visit outside of the United States. This humble and Godly man who preaches non-violence and brotherhood in humanitarian TRUTH—is what kind of a danger, do you suppose, to Gore and Political Buddies? They are trying TO STOP ALL CONNEC-TIONS WITH THE UNITED NATIONS???

<u>YOUR BLINDNESS IS</u> GOING TO KILL YOU, AMERICA!

<u>WHEN ARE YOU GOING TO</u> <u>RECOGNIZE YOUR ENEMIES?</u>

When, however, the cause of GOD is noted and served, we might well achieve some good changes in this old universe.

[QUOTING, PART 2:]

IRAQ NO-FLY ZONE

What is this so-called "no fly zone" that our fighter planes were/are patrolling? The Western jackal media says it is a "zone agreed upon by the allies from which Iraqi planes are excluded." But what is the truth? In my investigation of the illegal conduct of Bush, I called the United Nations and asked to be given the number and date of the U.N. resolution that brought this **so-called restricted air-space zone into being**. I was told, **"There is no resolution. This was a UNILATERAL ACTION TAKEN BY PRESIDENT BUSH."**

There we have it. The United States can't even hide behind the *color* of a United Nations resolution, not that it would have any force and effect over our armed forces. Bush, in his hatred of Saddam Hussein, and in his zeal to carry out the wishes of Queen Elizabeth, set this so-called "no fly zone" up on his own volition-without any authorization of the ACT OF WAR from Congress. **[H: How many of you realize that George Bush is cousin of Khazarian Zionist Q. Elizabeth, only three times removed?]**
The feeble excuse is that the exclusion zone was established to protect the Kurds from the Baghdad Government, yet, just across the border, the very same Kurds are engaged in a life-and-death struggle with the Government of Turkey, in which thousands of Kurds have already died. The United States backs Turkey in this struggle. There must be no more delays. The United States Congress must immediately order the recall of all three branches of our armed services in the Gulf region, or else, **pass a Joint Resolution of Declaration of War against the Government of Iraq.** [H: Don't hold your breath anyone, as since this writing by Coleman there have been more sanctions, more bombings, lessening of Iraq's own spaces, CIA efforts at assassinations, assassinations, unilateral actions and on and on without interruption. Even while you current President SLEPT (literally), Iraq was bombed and Clinton had a REAL TIME wake-up-call that next morning—AFTER THE FACT. Well, Dole and Kemp are in bed with Bush, so WHO DO YOU THINK ORDERED AND CAUSED THE BOMBING?]

This disgraceful flouting of the laws of the United States must be brought to an immediate conclusion. The frenetic rush by Clinton and the Pentagon to defend Kuwait, one of the most baneful and hateful dictatorships in the world (next to, possibly, Saudi Arabia) is indicative of the shocking state of anarchy and chaos that prevails in Washington. The troops and supplies rushed to Kuwait on behalf of British Petroleum and City of London bankers shows to what an advanced level of brainwashing the American public has been exposed. Let's get matters into perspective:

1. Kuwait is not a country. It is an appendage of British Petroleum and City of London bankers. The territory known as Kuwait **belonged to Iraq and was recognized as an integral part of Iraq for over 400 years—until the British army marched in, drew a line across the desert sands and declared, "This is now Kuwait."** Of course the IMAGINARY border just happened to run through the middle of the **richest oilfields in the area, the Rumalia oilfields, that belonged to Iraq and STILL BELONG TO IRAQ**. Theft of land never transfers ownership. **[H: Just as theft of gold certificates and trillions of dollars from same—does NOT TRANSFER OWNERSHIP OF THE PROPERTY.]**

2. Quoting from my book *Diplomacy By Deception*:

"In 1880, the British Government formed a friendship with a tame Arab sheik by the name of Emir Abdullah Al Salam Al Sabah. Al Sabah was made their representative in the area along the southern border of Iraq, where the Rumalia oilfields had been discovered inside Iraqi territory. (There was no other COUNTRY but Iraq—all the lands belonged to Iraq. There was **no such entity as 'Kuwait'**)

"The Al Sabah family kept an eye on the rich prize. On behalf of the Committee of 300, on November 25, 1899—the same year the British went to war against the Boer Republics in South Africa—the British Government made a deal with Emir Al Sabah, whereby the lands encroaching on the Rumalia oilfields belonging to Iraq, would be ceded to the British Government, notwithstanding the fact that the land was an integral part of Iraq, nor that Emir al Sabah had no right to it.

[H: All members of the Committee of 300 are Khazar Zionists and this is truly the world's most POWERFUL POLITICAL PARTY which wields total control over the United Nations.]

"The deal was signed by Sheik Mubarak Al Sabah, who traveled to London in style ... 'Kuwait'

became a *de facto* British protectorate. The local population and the Iraq Government had NO SAY in the matter and the Al Sabahs are absolute dictators who soon showed cruel ruthlessness.

[H: Methinks, however, that a lot of things ARE NOT GOING SO WELL BETWEEN AND AMONG THESE PREVIOUSLY RECOGNIZED DICTATORS AND THEIR CONTROLLERS, THE ZIONIST MANIPULATORS. WHEN SUCH AS MUBARAK REALIZES HOW BADLY HE HIMSELF HAS BEEN "TAKEN", THERE IS GOING TO BE ALL HECK TO PAY.]

"In 1915 the British marched into Baghdad and occupied it in what George Bush would have called an act of 'naked aggression'... The British Government set up a self-proclaimed 'mandate' and sent High Commissioner Cox to run it, who named former King Faisal of Syria as head of a puppet regime in Basra. Britain now had a puppet in northern Iraq and another in southern Iraq...

"In 1961 Iraqi Premier Hassan Abdul Kassem fiercely attacked Britain over the Kuwait issue, pointing out that the promised negotiations agreed upon at the Lausanne Conference had not taken place. Kassem declared that the territory called Kuwait had been an integral part of Iraq and was so recognized for more than 400 years by the Ottoman Empire. Instead, the **British Government granted Kuwait independence...**" There is NO ACTUAL BORDER between 'Kuwait' and Iraq; the *whole thing is a major swindle*.

"Had Kassem succeeded in getting Kuwait back, the British rulers would have lost billions of dollars in oil revenues. But when Kassem *vanished* after Kuwait got its independence, (there is little doubt that he was murdered by British MI-6 agents) the movement to challenge Britain lost its momentum. By granting independence to Kuwait in 1961, and ignoring the fact that the land was not theirs to give, Britain was able to fend off the just claims of Iraq. We know that the British Government **did the same thing in Palestine, India, and later, IN SOUTH AFRICA**.

"For the next 30 years Kuwait continued as the vassal state of Great Britain, pouring billions of dollars into British banks, while Iraq got nothing... Britain's seizure of Iraqi land, calling it Kuwait and granting it independence, must rank as one of the most audacious acts of piracy in modern times, and contributed directly to the Gulf War. I have gone to some lengths to explain background events that led to the Gulf War in an attempt to show how unjustly the United States acted toward Iraq, and the power of the Committee of 300." [End quoting] (For further reading, see *Diplomacy By Deception*, "Who Are The Real Saudi Kings and Kuwaiti Sheiks", "Gulf War Aims Explained" and "The Case Against the Petroleum Industry".)

Former President Bush did not have the slightest constitutional authority for taking this nation to war against Iraq. [H: And the Clintonistas had even LESS.] He should have been impeached and tried for treason. [H: And as for the Clintonistas, they should be impeached, tried for treason, AND all the other crimes committed by BOTH THEM AND THE BUSH BRIGADE. THERE IS NO DIF-FERENCE IN THE TWO PARTIES—ALL OF THE POLITICIANS ARE IN THE SAME KETTLE WITH THE ROTTEN FISH.] Congressman Henry Gonzalez did draw up six articles of impeachment, but thanks to "bipartisan cooperation" (the euphemism for SOCIALIST action), the articles never reached the floor of the House.

Now we have Clinton repeating the same 100 percent illegal tactics of the former Bush Administration.

It is this sort of behavior that is leading the United States into anarchy and chaos. Will the American people be fooled about Kuwait for a second time? It certainly looks like it.

Meanwhile, Clinton, Madeline Albright and Warren Christopher trumpet that they are **acting under U.N. mandate.** By so doing, **they ADMIT that they have NO CONSTITUTIONAL AUTHOR-ITY**, otherwise why would they **constantly remind us of the fact that they are breaking their vows to uphold the laws of the United States?**

Iraqi women and children are dying by the thousands from diseases and malnutrition. The country has no money to buy food and medical supplies—which the U.N. embargo magnanimously allows. How can Iraq buy these essentials when oil revenues are reduced to below a subsistence level? [H: Moreover, the no-fly zone has been moved ever closer to Baghdad and encompasses even more of the oilproducing land in Iraq which allows the pumping of oil by British Petroleum Co. right out from under even MORE IRAQI LAND.] Meningitis is raging among children in Baghdad, while Clinton and his One World cabinet play games with the lives of a people that has never harmed the United States. This vicious thuggery against Iraq must cease. There is no justification for it, and it is 100 percent unconstitutional for the United States to be doing the bidding of the United Nations. END THIS MADNESS!

[H: I only have one complaint here. There is always the "End the Madness"? Then comes the barrage of petitions to ME—to end this madness! I am not going to end anything, readers, as you are a free-will people even if you are an enslaved people. YOU HAVE TO END THE MADNESS AND I KNOW, IT IS IMPOSSIBLE TO CONTINUE TO READ, READ, AND READ SOME MORE ABOUT THE MADNESS, "DO SOMETHING ABOUT THE MADNESS" AND YET, <u>WHAT CAN YOU DO ABOUT IT?</u> For starters: GET INFORMED, and once ENOUGH are informed, you can begin to put a stop to the insanity—IF YOU WANT TO DO SO. YOU HAVE TO DO SOMETHING IN YOUR COUNTRY AND THEN THE REST WILL FOLLOW BY REQUIRING THAT YOUR CRIMINALS GET OUT OF THOSE OTHER NATION'S AFFAIRS! AMERICA: YOU ARE THE EVIL EMPIRE WITH THE EVIL VAM-PIRES.]

It is clear that we are using U.S. forces to **protect the interests of British Petroleum**, the Al Sabahs of Kuwait and to illegally patrol the skies over Iraq without a mandate from **the Congress** and in **violation of the** *Constitution*.

Compounding Saudi Arabia's border disputes with Yemen, which are escalating with each passing day, is the trouble in Riyadh. A serious economic crisis has thus far prevented the Saudis from making good on their promises to pay their share of the bill for the Gulf War. Social spending has had to be drastically cut. The ruling Abdul Aziz family blames its woes on the Gulf War, but former oil minister Sheik Ahmad Zaki Yamani says that the war actually increased Saudi Arabia's income.

There is a slow, and as yet small, movement to throw off Adbul Aziz family rule. Perhaps the failing health of King Fahd has emboldened the opposition led by Dr. Muhammad al-Mas'ari who was forced to flee for his life last April. Mas'ari now heads the Committee for the Defense of Legitimate Rights in Saudi Arabia in exile, after two of his high-level assistants were arrested. In October of 1994, hundreds of Saudis protesting the arrest were themselves arrested and imprisoned.

There are as yet unconfirmed reports that King Fahd is showing increasing disinclination to attend to affairs of state. The fact that Sheik Yamani has come out and publicly contradicted Fahd, and his finance minister's account of the kingdom's finances, may well be the first sign that the long rule of the Abdul Aziz, detailed in my book *Diplomacy By Deception*, is facing serious opposition.

What will the United States do if the House of Abdul Aziz collapses? So accustomed has the United States become to the family rubber-stamping its foreign policy—or rather—the foreign policy of the American petroleum industry, that the thought of a new entity rising up to take the place of its present partners must be worrisome, especially if a new entity, perhaps a truly Muslim body, gains control and refuses to go along with the situation as it has pertained for decades.

Perhaps this is why Crown Prince Abdallah bin Abdel Aziz made a highly secret trip to meet with President Clinton at the White House on January 15 (1996). Only *WIR* has thus far provided this information out of all of the "intelligence" newsletters that have proliferated in recent years, as well as the mainstream media.

[H: Well, the mainstream media and political high-wigs are proving their control and intentions this very day in the United States of America AGAINST YOU-THE-PEOPLE. Rev. Louis Farrakhan is having a peaceful Day of Atonement memorial at the United Nations on Wednesday 16th October (this week) and what is in the news? Well, as above stated, V.P. Gore and his clowns denounce Farrakhan as an Anti-Semite and accuse him of inciting the Black people to riot—and probably cost the political parties some good old votes from the informed Blacks—so, keep them uninformed is the "all-cost" mandate! YOUARE SICK, AMERICA!]

If we appear to be blowing our own trumpet—we are. Nobody reports intelligence as *WIR* does, but we seldom if ever, get the credit we deserve. *WIR* can exclusively report that the crown prince met with Clinton and his National Security Advisor and Secretary of State Warren Christopher. Intelligence sources informed me that the visit lasted about a week, during which Gulf security was discussed, along with the serious escalation of violence along the Saudi-Yemen border.

[H: I don't wish to quarrel with this source because basically this is a true statement about the blackout of news. However, EVERYONE was aware that this person was in the United States—they just claimed it was for EVERY OTHER REASON than meeting with the President!]

This very secretive and highly unusual visit by the crown prince appears to indicate that King Fahd will soon be a non-player in this vital region of the world. **[H: Well, don't count on that being so, YET.]**

The possibility of such an event ever occurring once seemed remote, but in recent months there are distinct signs that the rule of the Abdul Aziz family is showing signs of fault-lines stress, as detailed in a recent issue of *WIR*. What if Iran, backed by other Muslim states, including Yemen, decides to move in and overthrow the Aziz dynasty? What would be the reaction of the United States and its close ally, Great Britain?

[END QUOTING OF PART 2]

I need to interrupt here and already I find that we have missed the deadline time for having this entered in this week's paper. We are going to have to consider, when possible, a more frequently published and distributed paper because things are happening so quickly that news becomes old in a day. It is mandatory that you pay attention to the Farrakhan happenings and possibilities in these days and I don't think that even our "hot-line" is publishing an ongoing recording as it is so hard to get the happenings—BUT, I am going to ask, AGAIN, that that hot-line be changed daily and update opportunities to participate in seminars, i.e., Mark and Cathy *Trance-Formation*, Icke, et al., AND underlying suggestions for FREEDOM as are being presented by such as Farrakhan. THIS IS THE ONLY WAY, TEAM, THAT PEOPLE CAN GET INFORMATION, SO IT BECOMES YOUR RESPONSIBILITY TO SHARE AND TELL.

Salu.

CHAPTER 5

REC #1 HATONN

TUE., OCT. 15, 1996 10:10 A.M. YR.10, DAY 060

TUE., OCT. 15, 1996

TODAY'S COMMENTS

The heading above is not necessarily ONLY today's attention-grabbers but I feel you are missing SO MUCH.

TURNER-TIME WARNER

This is far more an important "merger" than you can possibly imagine. This is the FIRST TIME "they" have been able to interfere with Turner. Even though Turner is doing most of the talking—Time Warner will be IN CHARGE with the major holdings in the new network arrangement. Turner was getting too loose with his TRUTH reporting and it started shutting down with MGM wherein Turner could be OUTVOTED at any turn of the Board. It is now going to swing to a more controlled press-media and you will note that Farrakhan is even LESS MENTIONED ON CNN THAN ON ANY OTHER NETWORK. This is a sad day, citizens, because the "maverick" man has now become the "had man". And NO, I do not feel "sorry" for him—I FEEL SORRY FOR YOU! He was offered the way to avoid, with funds, the takeover and he wasn't brave enough, bold enough, or strong enough to handle it. When a man is ruled by his pants, he often loses his head—keep it in your heart!

FARRAKHAN—CLASS ACTION: CIA/CRACK ETC.

I ask you HELP THIS MAN PURSUE THE FOLLOWING:

THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, October 14, 1996. *ASSOCIATED PRESS*

WASHINGTON — Louis Farrakhan said he wants the Nation of Islam to file a class-action lawsuit on behalf of crack addicts if the sect's lawyers find evidence that CIA operatives funnelled crack cocaine into America's Black communities. [H: Well, the CIA and Bush, aided and abetted by all the top-wigs, including Clinton, funnelled cocaine, heroin and all sorts of other illegal drugs into the whole of AMERICA—not just the Black communities. However, the full intent was and IS to destroy totally the Black, Hispanic, and Asian communities through the substance availability and downgrading and gang operations in the major cities. Los Angeles is only one small part of this iceberg and is getting the most attention at the "minute"; it is worse in other places, just wait for what is "discovered" in the "DISCOVERY" phase of a suit—if there are strength and funds enough to push such a thing to fruition before it is too late to do so. I can promise you people MORE disappointments, however, as you find one after another of your prior "intelligence informers" move, as in being bought off and turned back to their handlers. Whoever you have enjoyed as journalistic expertise will begin to move back into more massive cover-ups than before. This is going to include some very close contacts, so BEWARE.]

The suit also would include the families of crack addicts "and those who have been victimized by crime as a result of the crack addicts", Farrakhan told *Newsweek* magazine. Excerpts of the interview were released Sunday.

Farrakhan also said he wants to speak with Jewish leaders while in New York this week for Wednesday's World Day of Atonement, a demonstration he is sponsoring to mark the anniversary of the Million Man March in Washington. Many Jews consider Farrakhan an anti-Semite for statements he has made.

"We really need to sit and talk as civilized and intelligent human beings, and if they can show me where I am in error, then I accept that," Farrakhan told the magazine, which appears on newsstands today. [H: I suggest you not hold your breath while this bears sweet fruit.]

A year ago, Black men converged on Washington's grassy Mall for an emotional day of self-affirmation and spiritual renewal.

[END OF QUOTING]

Wouldn't it be wonderful IF...?

I would also offer another shot of intelligence in finding valid "tiny" articles of merit in the newspaper. Again, from "2x6" and from the Same *Orlando Sentinel*:

[QUOTING:]

THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, October 14, 1996

CHINA WARNS AGAINST WEST IN DOCUMENT ON VALUES

BEIJING—China's Communist Party, in what it called one of its greatest ever documents, **warned Sunday against hostile Western ideas such as parliamentary democracy and capitalism and vowed to fight back** with puritan Marxist values. The 15,000-character document, adopted at last week's annual secret plenum of the ruling party elite, marked the latest volley by party chief Jiang Zemin to boost his position by **battling corruption, pornography and worship of money** while promoting nationalism and hard-line Communist ideology.

[END OF QUOTING]

This is truth mixed with yellow journalism to its highest degree. The MEDIA put the stress on "Communism" and "Marxist values" which are not part of the document. When speaking of "values" there was Marxism brought into the interview but NOT as offered above. You readers have to realize that there are some very GOOD things in some of these doctrines which surpass anything you have in operation today. The facts are that in every EXTREME you will find the unholy at work. The "democracy" and "capitalism" practiced by your "FREE WORLD IDEAS" ARE ABOUT AS BAD AS YOU CAN GET IN BOTH CONCEPT AND PRACTICE. You citizens didn't even notice yourselves becoming SLAVES. This coincides exactly with how Communism began and how it was TOO LATE that people awakened to find themselves enslaved. Now, they are being enslaved by the SAME THING only "called" by a different name, namely, *Democracy* and *Capitalism*. These are the ultimate destroyers of any and all nations thus far having historical records remaining. To HIDE this phenomenon, the RECORDS ARE DESTROYED AND BURIED AND HISTORY NOT "REVISED" BUT TOTALLY REWRITTEN TO PROTECT AND ALLOW THE GUILTY TO PREVAIL.

E-BOLA OUTBREAK IN YOUR DOORYARD!

I have not had opportunity to attend much "news" lately and I can't review everything that is put into *CONTACT* so if we have offered this one—JUST READ IT AGAIN, AND WEEP:

I will leave the source anonymous because it is obviously, at the least, dangerous to life, limb and job if the original speaker is revealed. The information is out of Canada and is in deep secret hiding.

"A friend reports from a major Montreal hospital, located in the downtown area, that two floors have been quarantined to attempt to contain an outbreak of E Bola virus from spreading. Forty two (and counting) patients are now infected and none are allowed to go home. Anti-contaminant garments were spotted in the receiving department by observers. Naturally, for now at least, this entire scenario is being kept hushed by the hospital management and staff as ordered by the government. My friend agreed that someone should know about this, hence the "leak". So please handle this information with care at your discretion."

I apologize for the slippage of our own information and perhaps this could be utilized on the "hot-line" as well. This is about a week old and the circumstances may well have changed—but the threat will not have dissipated entirely. You are still feeling the upstart of the Olympian plan unfolding. All I can suggest is that you keep your Immune systems up and running and I urge all of you to add colloidal vitamins in enhanced base—with the mineral colloids in high frequency solution. When you get careless—you get wiped out, so please attend these warnings for you will be given little media attention until AFTER THE FACT. CNN will soon be of little use to what is actually taking place so pay attention, please.

Let us return to Part 3 of the Coleman article and Special Report on U.S. Armed Forces in Saudi Arabia:

From WIR, July 1996, page 26.

[QUOTING, PART 3:]

Intelligence sources told me that the Saudi dispute with Yemen could be the precursor of another Gulf War. There are those in Yemen and Saudi Arabia who wish this would happen, as it would draw Iran into the conflict on the side of Yemen and, no doubt, the United States on the side of the Saudis. **[H: Except**]

that now it appears the Turks are unhappy with the Kurdish situation and the Saudis are equally ticked off at the U.S. This ALL bodes badly for the U.S. and Elite Allies if unification of the Arab Nations is achieved and maintained, and THAT appears to be where everything is headed TO-DAY. However, things in that area change with the winds, but there is reason to believe that some rather large things are taking place as these Arab Nations awaken and start peeling off the shackles of the Elite Puppet Masters. This is a most critical time in world affairs and it frankly does not look GOOD for you so-called "free people" of the Committee of 300 NEW WORLD ORDER.]

Yemen is looked upon with disfavor by the Aziz family, because it refused to join in the war against Iraq, and has maintained a semblance of democracy on the border of the most authoritarian country in the area—Saudi Arabia. At the heart of the dispute are three oil-rich areas, Aseer, Najran and Jizan, which the Saudis want to take over. It is almost a replay of Kuwait's grab of the oil-rich southern tip of Iran which was **backed by British** and United States oil interests. **[H: NAMELY THE BUSH BOYS.]**

Tension is running high on the border of the two countries. The Saudi army has deployed four brigades and the Turki bin Abdul Aziz brigade—a national Guard unit—while Yemen has added its 8th brigade and the 30th Al Shalla brigade.

Unless a deal can be brokered—meaning that Yemen surrenders the three oil-rich areas to the Saudis—the dispute could blow up into a full scale war that will cost thousands of lives and billions of dollars into which **the United States would inevitably be sucked**.

If the Republican Party is worthy of the trust the electorate has placed in it, then it must ensure that the United States does not get involved in a shooting war in Yemen, not for any reason. [H: Forget that, friend, the Republican is BUSH RUN and it is for that very reason that you can count on the war happening!] No more Hill and Knowlton big lie scenarios. The American people are entitled to know the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth about the dispute between Saudi Arabia and Yemen. [H: Again, NOT LIKELY, since this is whole cloth from the people involved in that Republican Party which actually controls your "Democratic" Party. Surprise? Why would you be surprised? I have told you all along that George Bush is NOT A WIMP but a Satanic World Elitist.]

The Republican Party should insist that Saudi Arabia pays its agreed share of the Gulf War and also pay private businesses and defense contractors the large sums of money it owes them. It is a disgrace that Saudi Arabia continues to welsh on its obligations to the United States. A visit to Riyadh by Defense Secretary Perry and Secretary of State Christopher for the specific purpose of asking for payments to be made, was unsuccessful. **[H: I wonder why?]**

[SUSPEND QUOTING]

No, this is not the end of the article but it is the end of the correct assumptions regarding the circumstances. I don't know who are the insiders giving information to this resource but the rest of the article is truly a distracting farce of idealistic (if the circumstances were as would be wishfully thought) reference. I will again pick up after the idealism of possible actions and I believe you will find the facts captivating:

[RESUME QUOTING:]

In its ongoing petroleum wars against Arab and Muslim oil-producing states, the petroleum industry is more and more relying on the U.S. military to get involved and fight its greed-for-oil battles. The latest country to be threatened is Libya. Hitherto, all manner of excuses to intervene militarily in Libya have been offered. ALL of them, without exception, have proved to be **without merit**.

Libya sits on some of the richest crude oil deposits in the world. The quality and quantity of Libyan oil is such that refining it presents a much lower cost structure, meaning a greater field in profits for the oil refineries. Hence, Libya crude is greatly prized and much sought after. The rapacious American petroleum industry would like to get its hands on Libyan oil, but as long as Colonel Moamar Qadaffi stands in the way, they have little chance of realizing their dream.

Particularly active in anti-Libyan rhetoric are the Shell Oil, Exxon, Gulf, AMOCO, ARCO and of course the flagship oil company of the COMMITTEE OF 300, *BRITISH PETROLEUM*. These are the same petroleum companies who backed butcher-boy George Bush and forced him to start a war in the Persian Gulf, ostensibly to rescue "Kuwait" from the clutches of Iraq. We need to remind ourselves that Iraq has a just and honorable claim to all of Kuwait, which is Iraqi land, **stolen by the British Government on behalf of British Petroleum**.

There was no war more crooked and depraved than the Gulf War and Bush should have been impeached for treason and sedition against the American people. **[H: He still should be!]** Recently, American lives were lost when terrorists bombed their barracks in Dahran. American servicemen ought not be a target for terrorists, but they are an inviting one as long as they remain in Saudi Arabia doing the bidding of George Bush and his oil-rich friends, B.P., the Al Sabahs of Kuwait and corrupt Abdul Aziz Saudi dynasty.

We need to remind ourselves that butcher boy Bush had no constitutional powers to send American troops to fight against Iraq. Only the Congress can declare war, the President, whomever he may be, has zero authority to send troops anywhere and minus zero authority to keep troops stationed in Saudi Arabia in pursuance of war against Iraq. When We, the People, learn to make our leaders accountable, then we will have a chance of avoiding huge American casualties in the coming war over oil.

Thus, Bush who had no authority to send U.S. troops ANYWHERE without Congressional approval, literally got away with a serious crime, that of violating his oath of office. Bush should have been prosecuted for failing to uphold the *Constitution* and for war crimes, among other things. His wholesale slaughter of Iraqi soldiers withdrawing under a truce agreement, IS A WAR CRIME. Since the United States wants to put Serbian leaders Karadzic and Gen. Lladic on trial for their atrocities in Bosnia, why not file war crimes charged against butcher boy Bush, for the death of millions of soldiers, women and children? [H: My, you couldn't even name ALL the accomplices—right through Clinton who didn't order the most recent bombings of Iraq—but is in the Presidency and thus, HAS RESPONSI-BILITY, when he didn't bother to tell you-the-people the truth about it all.]

Rep. Henry Gonzales actually drew up a list of crimes committed by Bush and sought to have him impeached, but his efforts were stalled by both Democrats and Republicans in the House, who thought it

disloyal to go against the tide running against Pres. Saddam Hussein, but quite in order to shield Bush from charges of treason, of which he was most certainly guilty. It just goes to show that on vital issues, there is little difference between the two parties. As a result, the foreign policy of the United States has deteriorated into nothing less than anarchy.

AND WHAT ABOUT LIBYA? (BLOW HER AWAY!)

Emboldened by the success of the excesses of Bush and his anticonstitution mob on Treason Hill, the Defense Department now talks openly about "**nuking Libya**", as if the Defense Department has the slightest right to make foreign policy decisions of any kind. Libya's crime for which such drastic punishment must be meted out is that **it is constructing what Secretary of Defense**, **William Perry, calls a chemical weapons plant.**" Even if this fabrication were true, Libya, as a sovereign state **has every right to construct anything it deems it needs to defend itself against the rapacious attacks of the United States and to at least be able to defend itself if it is attacked. [H: You have to understand WHY Libya is in such a hateful circumstance—it refuses to join the New World Order!]**

What is wrong with Libya having this capability when others **already have these weapons plus a nuclear arsenal?** Libya is not part of the United States and United States law **does not apply to Libya nor any other nation**. It is time that the United States stopped acting like a global bully against small nations. Neither the President, nor the Sec. of Defense has the slightest war-making powers and their wings are clipped by the *Constitution* for the very reason that war-making powers reside SOLELY WITH THE CONGRESS. **[H: One day, perhaps again, this will make a difference if you can stop the murder of that** *Constitution*—for it is already on its deathbed.]

When Sec. of Defense Perry began blabbering about attacking Libya, it was mentioned that the United States might have to use nuclear weapons to destroy the underground lab said to be located at Tarhunah, about 40 miles from Tripoli. Assistant Sec. of Defense Kenneth Bacon said that Perry had concluded that a B-6 **nuclear weapon would have to be used against the Tarhunah facility**. This kind of talk should make one's hair stand on end, but with the *Constitution* constantly being trampled underfoot by both political parties, it is now more or less standard for any Dick, Tom, or Harry to get up and shout the odds about going to war against nations arbitrarily labeled "rogue states".

[H: I ask you to think about something for a minute: What if Libya simply came and nuclearbombed every underground facility you have which associates with nuclear enterprise, even electricity production? WHAT WOULD YOU THINK THEN? What if Libya bombed your White House in an open attempt to assassinate your PRESIDENT? People—until you wake up and stop this aggressive behavior, one of these days this is EXACTLY what will happen—but Libya will have the Arab world and the other nations of non-New World Order joined with them and holocaust will be a very mild term for what is going to take place. You have brought this upon yourselves and it is going to happen if you do not wake up and STOP THE INSANITY OF THE WORLD ELITE. YOU WILL SOON PRAY THAT FARRAKHAN CAN CALM SOME WA-TERS BECAUSE YOU ARE HEADED FOR LOCAL ARMAGEDDON.]

The Bush-Clinton policies against "rogue states" (most of which just happen to be major oil produc-

ers) are well known, but suddenly, we have the Defense Department making major threats against other nations. From where does the Defense Department draw its authority for this newly found role? I will answer that. FROM NOWHERE. The openness in which the Pentagon talks about "nuking" Libya shows just what a lawless, bandit state the United States has become. We are perfectly willing to send in our troops to act as mercenaries for ARCO, Phillips, B.P., Chevron, Exxon and Gulf Oil, and what is worse, to take such actions WITHOUT a constitutional declaration of war.

Lately, the Congress has been passing all sorts of unconstitutional legislation under the guise of combating "terrorism". I suggest the Congress rap Perry and the DoD over the knuckles. Any attempt by the United States to interfere in the sovereign affairs of Libya would be seen by the world—and the majority of Americans, as an act of extreme violence, far outstripping in terrorism and utter depravity, any marginal benefit that might accrue from such a terrorist attack on Libya. [H: Sorry, want to bet? The Americans have become totally blood-thirsty terrorists in your own right and would think nothing of blowing away Libya or any other place, including Los Angeles, Chicago, New York—you name it. And stay tuned, John goes on to make my point.]

One of the things that chills me the most is that there has been **no public outcry** against Sec. Perry for even proposing to use nuclear weapons against small nations and shows just how far this country is on the road to perdition. For thirty years the United States has been saying that the use of nuclear weapons must be banned. Yet, here we have someone who was **not elected by the voters**, **setting this dangerous precedent that it is fine to attack nations with nuclear weapons**, as long as those nations are **socalled "rouge states" sitting on top of valuable oil reserves.** Our military must not be allowed to become attack dogs for the petroleum industry. **[H: Too late, John, they already have and that is obvious by the unilateral singular attack by the U.S. on Iraq more recently than the Gulf War. These trial balloons will continue to be launched until you realize that your own U.S. Air Force, as an example, is no longer even under U.S. control**—it is **100 percent United Nations war machinery.**]

If we take the trouble to study the work of the great constitutional scholar, Judge Joseph Story, Volume III, *Commentaries on the Constitution of the United States*, and particularly chapter five, there is no mention of the Sec. of Defense and the Pentagon having the power to make and carry out the foreign policy of the United States. Every member of Congress should be **forced to read this work**, so that they will be in a position to put an end to such flagrant abuses of power as butcher boy Bush and Clinton engage in the Middle East. **[H: Well, I don't know, I think it would be nice if the American people COULD READ at all.]**

Clinton hasn't shown any inclination to be a president for all of the people. His partisanship has reached undreamed heights, but now that an election is upon him, all of a sudden he tries to create the impression that he is a centrist! The U.S. has become a cat's paw for the petroleum industry and it was the petroleum industry that put the nations of Iraq and Iran in the fattening pen, so that they could be slaughtered. This, the petroleum industry thought, would be a good way to weaken both nations, who are major oil producers, and set them up for a quick knock-down.

[END OF QUOTING PART 3.]

I want to leave this now while the topic of Libya is on your minds and ask you to think back less than a month as it was refused by the U.S. Government to allow Farrakhan to receive a HUMAN RIGHTS AWARD from Libya and the assistance of Libya to the Christian Nation of Islam movement into Atonement. If this is not as sick as a nation can get—I marvel that any of you are still living at all.

Moreover, and listen to me carefully: THERE IS A PLAN TO ASSASSINATE FARRAKHAN TO-MORROW, OCTOBER 16, 1996. IF THIS ATROCITY AND NATIONAL TERRORISM SHOULD SUCCEED, I PITY THE NATION FOR WHEN THE PEOPLE "RECOVER" FROM THE SHOCK OF WHAT THAT WOULD MEAN—LOOK OUT WORLD. I ATTEND THIS MAN PERSON-ALLY AND I WILL NOT TAKE LIGHTLY TO THE HARMING OF EVEN A TINY HAIR ON THIS MAN'S HEAD. HOLD IT IN YOUR HEARTS, ELITE, FOR YOUR DAYS ARE NUMBERED! I DON'T CARE WHAT THE IGNORANT MASSES ARE TOLD TO BELIEVE—THIS MAN TEACHES ONLY CHRIST-NESS AND GOD ATON-MENT AND YOU HAD BETTER RECON-SIDER THE PRONUNCIATION OF MY NAME HATONN WHICH READS BY A "SILENT" SYM-BOL IN GREEK WHICH CANNOT BE REPRODUCED HERE EXCEPT BY HAND DRAWING SO WE DON'T NEED IT. MY NAME IS PRONOUNCED RIGHTFULLY AND OFFICIALLY SO: 'ATON'. HOLD IT HIGHER THAN YOUR HEART PLEASE—KEEP IT UPPERMOST IN MIND.

Salu, and may my friends have a very nice week!

CHAPTER 6

REC #1 HATONN

WED., OCT. 16, 1996 8:54 A.M. YR.10, DAY 061

WED., OCT. 16, 1996

TODAY'S EARLY AND INTERESTING OBSERVATIONS THE FARRAKHAN EARLY REPORT

Does anyone see anything, AGAIN, nuts about the reporting of the Black gathering in New York? Well, I DO. First of all it was that somehow this gathering ended up TOO CLOSE TO THE ADL to be allowed to continue as scheduled. In addition the United Nations decided NOT TO BACK OR RECOGNIZE THE GATHERING. So, the police said there would be arrests if there continued to be gatherings NEAR the Anti-Defamation League building (which is so close to the U.N. for convenience of RUNNING THE U.N.). The gathering Blacks did hold a quiet and very reverent prayer service near the ADL. Say what, America? CAN'T YOU SEE WHAT YOU ARE DOING AND ALLOWING?

Next came the under-counting and this under-show of Blacks is that the routes to get to the U.N. from all over the city are being BLOCKED, as in "check points" where people heading for the *Atonement* rally are stopped and disallowed passage.

Will you hear all about this? Not in one piece you won't! The actions taking place in New York should be a lighted symbol to the WORLD this day! Ah indeed, "give to me your heavy laden yearning to be free..."? Free nation? Free people? People of equal rights? WHERE IS YOUR CONSTITUTION THIS DAY, AMERICA? AND, WHERE ARE THE MEDIA CREWS AND WHAT ARE THEY DOING? WELL, THEY ARE GATHERED LIKE VULTURES TO THE KILL OF TWO WHITE LIARS, CHEATS AND MISFITS VYING FOR YOUR NATION'S LEADERSHIP. THEY ARE BUT PUPPETS, BUT WHAT THE HECK? Methinks GOD may be about out of patience with your final choices and lack thereof. Why assist you in your massively evil intent and bashing of your own citizens? Even these Khazarian Attorneys in the O.J. case are criminal elements in the LAW. How is it that his own attorneys know he is not guilty and yet write these JEWISH (yes, JEWISH) books setting O.J. up even worse? BECAUSE THEY ARE LOSING CITIZENS—UNLESS YOU ALLOW IT. GO BACK AND READ THE WEAN MATERIAL AND YOU WILL FIND WHAT KIND OF A SICK FRIEND IS KAR-DASHIAN, ET AL. THEY ARE A PART OF THE TEAM RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MURDERS THEMSELVES. They are the JEWISH MISHPUCKA!! Shapiro leads the pack from the original trial. Fred Goldman is a MAJOR Mishpucka player-in his own son's murder-he just didn't know they (his buddies) would kill his own son-so you see, there is no honor among them!

I think you may well sicken GOD as He watches Sodom and Gomorrah, U.S.A., THIS VERY DAY!

As you watch whatever is shown to you this day—watch the MEN IN WHITE. What an interesting gathering of Eagles! These, look and weep for your nation's security later—are major leaders from the

Arab worlds and Nations of Islam with the free speakers of South Africa come to show respect and speak out. Remember that GOD HAS MERCY ON *HIS PEOPLE* AND THOSE WHO HAVE TURNED *FROM HIM* ARE ON THEIR OWN AT THE HANDS OF THEIR CHOSEN IDOLS AND ICONS OF LUCIFER. God will have mercy this day—but you had best check if you are, or are not, included in His counting of "His people".

EARTHQUAKE ALERT

No, goodness no, this is NOT JUST AN ALERT from E.T. Silly children, this ALERT and shaking you feel beneath is one sung about by your own geophysicists. Distraction? Oh, I don't think so, so, it will behoove all of you straggling along the West Coast, keep your putty stuck and your velcro glue strong. And NO, New York IS NOT SAFE—but Louis Farrakhan IS. You can fly with Eagles or Vultures, readers, BOTH are of God's creation but one has to clean up the mess left by the death of physical beings while the other only attends the LIVING. Symbolic? Yes, but the choosing is NOT.

In Tehachapi, California THIS WEEK was the circling and moving of the massive flocks of buzzards (vultures) headed in the direction (where they sense death) of the West Coastal areas. This happens every time there is an opening of some of the fissures whereat the frequencies and aromas of the deep fissures are released into the atmosphere. Part of what YOU "FEEL", readers, is not pulses or blatant things, but rather, very subtle aromas to which you react because you only THINK you have grown more sophisticated than the local dog who sniffs trouble.

The Phoenix Eagle was here at this typing location this morning and Dharma's heart always skips a beat or two when they show up for they are ONLY present when big events are pending. It is her message of Truth in support of that which we do and of our presence. And no, it is not "just she" who sees them—they circle and show everyone who looks UP, their presence, in magnificent splendor of massive size against the sky. Today they sit and guard this dwelling as we stand watch for this nation this day.

The whole world of Physical beings can deny anything and all things they choose—it makes not a whit of difference to the TRUTH OF WHAT I SPEAK. EVIL IS GOING TO FALL BEFORE THE CROWN OF GOD! And remember, friends, impatience is the proof of lack of faith in THAT GOD of whom we speak. The glass is empty for the turning. It is all happening even if you are not allowed to SEE it. Where will YOUR voice be heard? Which will you attend this day? Where will YOU AND YOUR EAGLE fly this day? These are interesting and worthy questions for your consideration for the politicians have sold out your nation to the vultures of humanity in greed and oppression and you still raise your placards and voices to shout and dance with the devils themselves. Ah yes, how fitting, the last evil encounters of political sham—this near HALLOWEEN! Again, if YOU can't see it, then compassion is being rapidly replaced with pity from my side of the veil.

Before I ask you to go and attend the TV for any signs of sanity, Dharma, please allow us to write a bit more from the Coleman material regarding Saudi Arabian troops placement and Iraq/Bush.

[QUOTING, PART 4:]

HATRED FOR IRAQ WITHOUT CAUSE

Then, butcher boy Bush, without the slightest authority from Congress, created a climate of hatred against Iraq so that the U.S. military could have an excuse to engage in war of attrition against the people of Iraq, all for the sole benefit of the petroleum industry. When will this nation learn that the petroleum industry is run by globalists of the One World Government whose GREED knows no bounds? The petroleum industry cannot be trusted—their leaders are real troublemakers who will plunge this nation into all sorts of quagmires, if it is to their benefit. If you have any doubt about this, read my book, *DIPLO-MACY BY DECEPTION*.

The latest casualties among U.S. servicemen in Saudi Arabia is a national disgrace. Our servicemen are **not fighting for the United States**. They are in Dahran to **preserve the status quo and keep the corrupt, utterly corrupt, Abdul Aziz dynasty in place**, because theirs is a regime of mountebanks which keeps the petroleum industry safe in Saudi Arabia. No one single American soldier must ever again be sacrificed on the altar of greed of the petroleum industry.

Who put our servicemen in this danger area and by what constitutional authority was this done?

What is at stake is not the rights and wrongs of the issue, but whether or not U.S. policy for the Middle East, and all actions taken pursuant thereto, are constitutional. That is the real issue, and one to which we as a nation must adhere. No matter how just a cause may [H: "seem to"] be, the United States cannot commit itself to unconstitutional acts.

As we have already seen, getting the U.S. involved in the Gulf War, and then continuing to station U.S. forces in Saudi Arabia, and enforcing a boycott against Iraq, WITHOUT a formal declaration of war having been passed by the Congress, VIOLATES the U.S. Constitution. That is why Rep. Gonzales tried to have Pres. Bush impeached—not because he was in favor of Iraq. It is not a matter of taking sides, but one of upholding and defending the U.S. Constitution, and that means defending the U.S. Constitution against policies that are expedient, but unconstitutional.

Ours is an open government as mandated by the *Constitution*. There is no room in our society for government conducted behind closed doors. Far too much of that took place in the run-up to, and during the Gulf War. The same type of governing in secrecy is rampant in the Clinton Administration. We, the People, have a right to know why decisions are made, especially where those decisions involve the armed forces of this nation. OUR ARMED FORCES ARE NOT THE PLAYTHING OF GOVERNMENT.

If there is real danger to the United States coming from such countries as Libya, Iraq, Iran, Yemen, Algeria and Pakistan, our government is duty bound to tell We, the People, EXACTLY what this danger is and how it poses a threat to the United States. Let there be a return to OPEN GOVERNMENT. We the People, are the true sovereigns, not Perry, Deutch, Clinton and Christopher, the National Security Agency, or any of the multitude of intelligence agencies which have proliferated since the end of WW-II. [H: The problem is, world, that just as does such as Australia, New Zealand, Canada, et al.—you, AMERICA, have a ZOG in power (ZIONIST OCCUPATION GOVERNMENT)!]

Open, honest government is what is needed. We, the People, must demand it. That is what the *Constitution* demands of government. Behind-closed-doors governing has got to be stopped. If it is not stopped, then the United States will deteriorate into a fascist state, instead of a free state, and there is

ample evidence to show this is the way we are going.

If the Bush Administration and the Clinton Administration had followed the constitutional pathway, we would not be in so much trouble today with the Islamic world. We would be enjoying friendly relations with these nations instead of living under a climate of fear that they will take terrorist-type reprisals against the United States because of its misguided, lopsided foreign policy, decisions taken behind closed doors, with no input from We, the People.

[H: Please don't be blind and dumb enough to believe that this "hard-hitting on indiscretions" by the men involved in tonight's "stupidly-called DEBATE" is ANYTHING MORE THAN A DIS-TRACTION FROM THE REAL POINTS OF CRIMINAL INTENT. This will simply be MUD-SLINGING and never get to the heart of ANY MATTER of worthy note. YOU-the-public are fed this garbage to keep you from seeing THE REAL FACTS AND TRUTHS ON BOTH SIDES. "Oh, it's just politics..." says Clinton and, "...I have a few..." and back and forth while your nation, as we write, slips deeper into the quicksand to destructions of that which you have never envisioned. There is no American Dream, citizens—you HAVE CREATED A NIGHTMARE TO END THEM ALL. The "NEWS" will tout that the questions tonight will come from the audience? Perish the thought—the plans of subject matter have already BEEN FULLY ANNOUNCED along with the small print which reads: "...as approved by the Committee..." WHAT COMMITTEE? Ah, indeed.]

It is this kind of governing in secret that led to the present situation in Saudi Arabia, which resulted in the deaths of 21 of our servicemen. It is this kind of lopsided foreign policy that has led to the Saudi people making it clear that our armed forces are not welcome in their country. One has only to turn to Saudi television to find how widespread is the resentment.

Religious leaders constantly call on all Saudis to scrap their satellite dishes and avoid traveling to the West. The anger is mostly directed against the United States, which is perceived as the upholder of UNJUST policies in the Middle East. Much the same message pours forth from Saudi radio stations and, daily, the clerics, using their mosques as a forum, denounce the presence of U.S. armed forces in the country because it goes contrary to their Islamic faith. [H: HOW MANY OF YOU REALIZE THAT IN THE ISLAMIC, AND OTHER AKIN FAITHS, THERE IS NO ACCEPTANCE OR ALLOWED "INTEREST" (USURY) AND THEREFORE THERE ARE TRILLIONS OF DOLLARS STOLEN FROM THESE PEOPLE CONSTANTLY? WHEN DO YOU THINK THEY WILL WAKE UP AND REALLY SMELL THE BURNING COFFEE? AND WHAT DO YOU THINK THEY WILL DO IN RESPECT TO THEIR HOLY PERCEPTIONS? IT IS COMING, FOR "THEY" KNOW THEY CAN PREVAIL AND STILL KEEP TO THEIR DOCTRINES.]

How is it that, in the rush to protect the greedy petroleum industry, the United States is so insensitive to the religious beliefs of millions of Muslims, and then, we turn around and blame them for giving terrorists a chance to attack our servicemen?

Ever since the British installed the Abdul Aziz-Wahabi dynasty and created "Saudi Arabia" the Islamic world has questioned the Saudi ruler's commitment to their Muslim faith. The United States has always ignored this strong undercurrent, and has constantly propped-up and supported the Abdul Aziz clan in the

interests of ARAMCO and B.P., without paying the slightest attention to the feeling of the Saudi people.

Now we are starting to pay the price for our official shortsightedness. The Gulf War brought the stationing of U.S. forces in Saudi Arabia. The war was not approved by the majority of the Saudi people, but they had no forum where they could express their opposition. Likewise the U.S. troops and planes in the country; and this only encouraged a two-faced strategy by the Saudi Government.

For seventy years or more, the Abdul Aziz royal family pursued a two-faced policy to appease the petroleum industry and put billions of dollars in their pockets, often at the cost of the religious beliefs and feelings of their people. The Saudi ruling family sought friendly ties with the West and declared political and economic relations with the nations of the West, particularly, the United States, while all the time, their citizens held a far-different view.

With a population of 18 million under daily instruction by the clerics, the royal family seemed to forget that their official policy toward the West, and especially toward the United States, was at variance with what the religious leaders believed and taught.

The United States and British governments pursued a policy of setting the oil-producing Middle East nations against each other. This deceitful policy climaxed in the Gulf War, but it backfired when the Saudi people realized that much of the danger said to emanate from Iraq and Iran, for example, sprang from opposition to the royal family, and not to the people of Saudi Arabia.

When this realization dawned upon the people of Saudi Arabia and they began to realize that it was simply a "divide and rule" trick, as indeed they realized in the aftermath of the Gulf War, loud voices were raised against the two-track status quo, but critics were called "dissidents" and had to flee for their lives. [H: Ah indeed, is this DIFFERENT FROM WHAT IS HAPPENING TO THE ONES WHO SPEAK OUT IN THE U.S.A. <u>THIS DAY</u>?]

The enormous benefits provided the Saudis by Western companies also brought unwelcome changes and intrusions. A few miles away from the insulated foreign compounds along the sea shores (mainly American, with French and British nationals, also) bikini-clad women lounge; Moslem women, heavily veiled and covered from head to toe, are watched over by the Religious Police, lest decadent Western influence should lead them astray.

There is a climate of fear among the Saudi Muslims; they see their country being occupied by people of a different nationality and religious belief, and they do not like it. For this reason, the two-faced strategy of the Saudi royal family is starting to come apart. Forces even within the royal family are demanding a return to the fundamentals of the Muslim faith.

Is it any wonder then that terrorists are seizing the moment of discontent to carry out their vile bombings of U.S. military establishments? The wonder is that the U.S. Government has been blind to the changes that have swept across the people, changes that will, in all likelihood, sweep the Abdul Aziz ruling family out of power and, with it, more frequent and perhaps deadlier attacks on U.S. installations and military personnel. There are those who will put up the shop-worn argument that the U.S. military presence in Saudi Arabia is necessary to safeguard vital oil supplies. This idea has long ago been discounted. If the U.S. would end the repressive taxation policies that keep domestic oil producers out of business; if our government would pursue a policy favorable to domestic exploration and drilling, we would not need to be wasting billions of dollars in Saudi Arabia and, at the same time, endangering the lives of our servicemen. **[H: Ah, but that would not deliver a ONE WORLD ORDER, would it?]**

There is no longer any need to make targets of our servicemen in Saudi Arabia. The United States armed forces are not the tools of the petroleum industry [H: OF COURSE THEY ARE!], nor are they their toys [H: OF COURSE THEY ARE.]. The policy of sending U.S. troops to carry out petroleum industry foreign policy, first instituted by Woodrow Wilson when he sent U.S. troops to Mexico on behalf of Standard Oil, has got to be halted. It is tragic that it took the deaths of 21 in the Dahran bombing to place us on notice that our presence in Saudi Arabia is no longer welcomed. But Saudi Arabia is not the only danger area.

[END QUOTING OF PART 4]

This appears to be good place to break this writing for we will next speak of Turkey and I must have Dharma elsewhere for most of this day.

What you are given to see and know is only the tinymost fragment of the overall picture as is being presented to the rest of the world. You are ALREADY THE ENSLAVED AND UNINFORMED MASSES. EVEN THE EVENTS IN NEW YORK TODAY, OTHER THAN WHAT THE CONTROLLED MEDIA ALLOWS SHOWN—IS PROOF OF YOUR CONFINEMENT AND LIMITATIONS IN ATTAINING TRUTH.

Salu and good morning.

CHAPTER 7

REC #1 HATONN

FRI., OCT. 18, 1996 9:03 A.M. YR.10, DAY 063

FRI., OCT. 18, 1996

HALLOWEEN CAUTION

Every year parents *THINK* nothing ill can happen to THEM! Yes it can and as the noose comes down on the adversarial necks—it WILL. *TAKE CARE OF YOUR CHILDREN. ENTERTAIN THEMAT HOME AND KEEPADULTS WITH A GROUP EVEN IN YOUR CLOSE NEIGHBORHOODS.* It can be a time of fun for the kiddies or it can be deadly—and parents, the choices, unfortunately for your saddling with responsibility—ARE UPTO YOU.

We are very short of time this morning for writing and I feel the most important thing we can offer is the finish of the particular article we have been using from Dr. Coleman.

We were just about to mention Turkey and since we only have a wee bit left on the article, let us finish it up this morning.

From: WIR, July 1996, Page 31, by JOHN COLEMAN

WHAT ARE OUR ARMED FORCES DOING IN SAUDI ARABIA?

[QUOTING, PART 5:]

<u>TURKEY</u>

Now U.S. servicemen have a new danger facing them, this time <u>Turkey</u>. With the opposition Welfare Party winning so many seats in the parliament, President Suleyman Demiril was forced to name Necmettin Erbakan as the new Prime Minister who will replace former Prime Minister Tansu Cillier. The Welfare Party is a Muslim fundamentalist party, and it will strive to oust the United States from bases in Turkey. **[H: Exactly what they should do.]**

The majority of the Turkish people did not approve of Turkey siding with the U.S. in the Gulf War, nor do they approve of the recent deal in terms of which Israeli air force planes will be allowed to overfly Turkey, and the United States military bases to be expanded.

This is certain to make U.S. servicemen targets for extremist groups in Turkey. Congress must immediately cancel this arrangement and withdraw all U.S. servicemen not only from Turkey, but from the entire Gulf region also. Ciller's secular government collapsed in September, which led to the recent elections from which the Welfare Party emerged as the chief vote-getter. This could mean the end of the Turkish secular state, which has been in existence since the days of Kemmel Attaturk.

Erbakan says he wants to move Turkey away from Western influence and closer to Muslim states. He has consistently called into question Turkey's pro-U.S.A. stance and clearly, this puts U.S. servicemen, stationed in that country, in real danger. Moreover the Muslim Welfare Party is tired of seeing Turkey as a cat's paw to the United States in using the Kurdish problem to attempt to unseat Pres. Saddam Hussein of Iraq.

It is in pursuance of this policy that Bush, singlehandedly and without one shred of Congressional authority, stationed U.S. servicemen in Saudi Arabia to overfly Iraq airspace, ostensibly to protect the Kurds from attacks by the Iraqi Army. The Welfare Party sees this as a farce. The Welfare Party has said it will reverse this policy as soon as it comes to power, and given the manner in which Islamic fundamentalism has risen in the country, it is only a matter of time before this happens.

While U.S. servicemen and women face daily dangers in Dhahran, in Saudi Arabia, the very people they are supposed to be guarding from attack by Baghdad, the Kurds, are under daily assault by the Turkish Army. The Kurdish Worker Party headquarters in London said in mid-July of 1996 that Turkish soldiers and airplanes killed 50,000 Kurds in 1995", many of whom were women and children. "The Turkish Army and air force embarked on a systematic program of destroying all villages along the northern borders with Turkey," the report said.

While the figure of 50,000 may be somewhat overstated, nevertheless this does not detract from the fact that many thousands of Kurds have been killed and many more are likely to be killed, unless the war of attrition against the Kurds by the Turks, supported by the British and American petroleum companies **anxious to get their hands on the MOSUL OILFIELDS**, and backed by the U.S. and British Governments, can be brought to a halt through international pressure.

Meantime, U.S. armed forces continue to face the wrath of the Muslim world because of their presence in Saudi Arabia. Our armed forces are there for three purposes.

1. To protect the utterly corrupt Abdul Aziz-Wahabi regime ruling Saudi Arabia.

2. To protect the utterly corrupt and evil Al Sabah regime in Kuwait and keep oil revenues flowing into **London banks in the City of London.**

3. To make sure that the imbalance of power in the entire Middle East region is maintained.

If President Clinton thinks he has just cause and reason to keep our armed forces in Saudi Arabia— AND ONLY IF IT CAN BE PROVED THAT HE IS ACTING SOLELY IN THE INTERESTS OF THE UNITED STATES, then let him take his case to the people of the United States, and then, if his actions are approved THROUGH THE PROPER CONSTITUTIONAL PROCEDURAL MEASURES ADOPTED BY THE HOUSE AND SENATE, then let our armed forces remain, but in a properly secured environment and not as sitting ducks for some terrorist group. [H: Well, you KNOW that if it were done properly and Constitutionally—there would be no approval, so we begin again at zero,

don't we?]

If Clinton does not get permission from Congress to keep our armed forces in Saudi Arabia, then he MUST recall them immediately. If Clinton does not or will not do this, then Congress must cut off funding and compel our servicemen to return to the United States. The time to act is NOW. Don't wait for any more casualties!

[H: Obviously the time is NOW TOO LATE, AND SO IT GOES!]

[END OF QUOTING]

WHAT IS GOING ON "UPSTAIRS"?

People, you simply do not want to know in spite of what you consciously think! What you would tout and shout and get your noses into—would get a lot of us killed as heretics and insane citizens.

Just keep your eyes open and you will see Ezekiel's "wheels" all over your skies as "rainbow strobe lights" at night and actual vapor clouds in the day. When the Eagles Fly and the Buzzards move on—then and only then can you read the signs. The time of GOD IS AT HAND! Therefore, realize that there shall not be a long stay in the things which will come to pass unless MANKIND shows great care and redirection. It simply is the way it is and WE SHALL AND DO NOT PLAN TO DO ANYTHING ABOUT IT AS PHYSICAL EXPRESSION WOULD DEFINE ACTIONS. You had best begin to pay CLOSE AT-TENTION to that which your friend Farrakhan says and projects because you ARE IN IT! The enemy of your governments ARE NOT MY ENEMIES—THEY BY AND LARGE ARE *THE FRIENDS OF MY PEOPLE*!

"I would allow and follow a Black man?" I am asked in great anger and tribulation. What makes YOU THINK GOD IS WHITE? GOD IS <u>LIGHT</u> AND "Black" people are NOT BLACK! So, who is nuts in this little scenario? Because a light-skinned person is from one race or another—does not make him anything except pale and usually quite UNHEALTHY. YOU cannot do a damned thing about your color— it became too late the minute your SOUL chose its passage.

God shows the way and presents the opportunities for HIS PEOPLE and it behooves all of HIS PEOPLE to see and hear and know when opportunity is present. I think the nice Rev. Farrakhan can see his calling, his passage, AND HIS OPPORTUNITIES AS SERVED UP ON A PLATTER FROM GOD. Moreover, he is certainly bright enough to protect his sources and resources!! We have to know, impatient ones, when to shut up and WAIT UPON GOD!

What will happen to the liars, cheats and thieves of your lives? They will have their names lost to all history—EXCEPT AS THOSE WHO WILL BE REFERRED TO AS THE EVIL SATANS. THIS IS THE WAY IT WORKS—THE ONLY NAMES RESIDING IN THE BOOK OF LIFE—OF GOD, ARE THOSE WHO GROW BEYOND THE LIMITATIONS OF SATAN'S ANTICS.

Therefore, from where might come God's People's strength and POWER? FROM GOD, AND IT IS SUFFICIENT TO ALL NEEDS!

Let us attend those things which need clearing from our immediate attention zones which are those things which bind up our time into the evil empire. We need to move on, clear the decks and be prepared to receive and grow. Cast off the Evil-mongers and let them bury one another as they see fit. Stand forth in the light of truth and no man nor beast shall offend thee. Any man or woman who has joined with the enemy in ANY willing circumstance, and that means affidavits against my people—let them assume themselves to be joined with those who have ill-intent and let them, if they be offended, go to hold responsible those who have USED them for their own purposes. And yes, indeed, I do speak of local side-winders of joinders. I KNOW YE NOT! Do not come back crying that you "didn't realize" or "didn't understand" or "I didn't mean it to hurt"—I KNOW YE NOT! THE TIME AND OPPORTUNITY FOR THE CHOOSING OF ME OR MINE OR BEING AGAINST ME AND MINE—IS OVER. THE CHOICES ARE, AND HAVE BEEN, MADE. I KNOW YOU NOT, SO TAKE THEE FROM ME. What others do is not my business but they WILL NOT do it IN MY NAME! You know which of you have lied, cheated, and stolen, even goodly names and reputations, from us—so get thee from us lest all your dirty deeds become uncovered for the whole of the world to see and KNOW. Or, stick around, and WATCH YOUR DIRTY DEEDS COME INTO THAT LIGHT OF TRUTH! Always it is YOUR choice.

Is this some sort of a threat for you to turn upon us in a court of law? Nope—is is simply the way it is. Nobody is going to damage anyone—you have destroyed and damaged SELVES. What are YOU going to do when the deceivers TURN AGAINST YOU? OH, YES, IT WILL HAPPEN! IT IS ALREADY HAPPENING AS YOU WHO HAVE SUPPORTED THOSE LEADERS OF YOURS IN NEVADA AND MONTANA AND YES, THE ONES OF THE JUDICIAL MISCARRIAGE OF JUSTICE SYS-TEM IN CALIFORNIA. THE ONES YOU CHOSE TO DESTROY US, IN ADDITION, ARE AL-READY THE ONES THEY HAVE TRAMPLED AND DESTROYED. These of your chosen leaders are trying to set you up now, to defend themselves as innocent and deceived representatives of your court actions. They are claiming YOU MISLED THEM AND LIED TO THEM AND THEY ARE INNO-CENT OF ANY CHARGE OTHER THAN TRYING TO PROTECT YOU. IT IS SUCH AN OLD GAME, PEOPLE. MOREOVER, THE ATTORNEYS IN POINT WILL COME AGAINST YOU FOR PAYMENT FOR THEIR SERVICES—WAIT AND SEE.

You would now come to US and ask favor? No, thank you. Those people you allowed to tempt and drag you on, have already set their wheels in motion to protect themselves and leave you empty and destroyed. You had choices as to whether or not to mess in your nests and you not only chose to do so—but now it runs over. I cannot help you to longer see and hear TRUTH for you have chosen to make THE LIE your guiding lamp.

God tells you that you are either with Him or against Him—AND, that a man is known for his actions and intent—not from the words on his lips. When, in addition, you turn to the GUILTY parties involved in your nasty circumstances, you shall see it is not of God's doing that you have ill-perceived lessons.

I will leave this now as there is much OTHER to be attended while we gather the Light about us and move on. When you choose to crucify God's people—you have "crucified God" as well and the consequences of such choices rest squarely upon yourself! Perhaps as this all unfolds you will turn and SEE who and what has misled you, lied to you, set you up, and when you do, perhaps you will turn and smite them for their terrible abuse of you and the system which was structured to PROTECT, in JUSTNESS, ALL people. Perhaps when you SEE CLEARLY, you will go unto THOSE ONES and ask reclamation and restitution?

I have told you before and I will repeat it here: I do not care who believes I exist or do not. It matters not one whit to me or to the truth of it. IAM and I am exactly what and who I state IAM. Further, you deny me—and I shall deny you before MY FATHER who IS, BY THE WAY, IN THE HEAVENS! Further, you who continue, in spite of all reason and knowing, for greed and evil cause, to deny me—I NO LONGER KNOW THEE AND YE HAD BEST GO WHEREIN YOUR BRETHREN OF KIND CAN FEED AND PROTECT THEE FOR I REPEAT: I KNOW THEE NOT!

Good morning and may you find the Light which shines about you—IN THE NAME AND GRACE—*OF GOD*. Salu.

CHAPTER 8

REC #1 HATONN

SAT., OCT. 19, 1996 12:22 A.M. YR.10, DAY 064

SAT., OCT. 19, 1996

GOLD IS NOT GOOD OR BAD—GOLD "JUST" IS MEN ARE GOOD OR EVIL WHILE GOLD STILL "JUST" IS.

This holds true for every inanimate thing in physical presentation or manifestation. ONLY the human and/ or REASONING, CHOOSING being can be classified as being good or evil. Further, you cannot judge a being other than as by manifest ACTIONS foisted forth through INTENT.

A huge number of beings react to that which is projected in thought patterns, opinions, assumption of some super-insight or another—or just because it seems more prosperous to go with one or another "side" of an issue—especially one which demands total integrity on one side and lack thereof on the other. The stakes are usually that which is desirable in a physical way when contradictions and outright war come to center stage. The differences will be in the trying to acquire things of great "wealth" value and it usually will be that which measures the value of a man's (individual) soul. The other thing which causes man to act in given ways is a failure of ability to control EGO individual. People will *follow* whoever strokes the ego and rewards the "*follower*" with bits and pieces of ego salving and/or promises of a big payoff of some kind. Mostly these misfits play in the same ballpark and demand cover-up, lies, secrets, misdirected and incorrect perceptions, perspectives and simply not-KNOWING that of which they do great spouting.

NOTHING HERE?

We can write of "here" because this is where we do our physical outlay of "work" in the production of writings, speaking, etc. However, no matter how much we offer otherwise, how often we tell people there is nothing here which resembles a commune or "religious" following, we still get travelers and seekers. MANY will come directly from being in some sort of "operation" or group communal circumstance. WE HAVE NONE. If there is the perception of one, it is because our friends are welcoming and friendly—nothing more. However, ones come and share, and then it seems they MUST COME HERE, COME HELL OR HIGH-WATER, AND IT SIMPLY DOES NOT WORK HAPPILY EVER AFTER. Most of these anticipating individuals do move on because they are terribly unhappy when they find that we don't operate like a big happy family with everything provided—right through the bath schedules.

Now, you might say, "...yes, but... I hear that you do attend the elderly and make sure they have what they need..." No, we respond in community care and shared responsibility but the facts are that each must attend SELF and if you want friends—you have to go forth and MAKE YOUR OWN FRIENDS, YOUR OWN LIFE INTERCHANGE AND, IF NOT, YOU WILL BE LONELY INDEED, FOR THE ONES

HERE ORIGINALLY WORK AROUND THE CLOCK.

An old friendship was restruck this week with a couple of old friends of Ekkers. It had been a most unpleasant parting a few years back as Ekkers moved and now, suddenly, these people are back with a promise from the lady that she was going to just come and visit and visit and visit while the men go out and do whatever men go out and do. How long do you think this relationship can work well? Dharma doesn't even visit with E.J. and doesn't have TIME OFF FOR ANYTHING INCLUDING GOOD BEHAVIOR OR R&R.

People come thinking that we will have meetings and potlucks and all sorts of community things and, yes, if we ever CAN do so, we may well find that possible. But when we have meetings—Dharma is not the preacher but she HAS TO BE THERE, LIKE IT OR NOT. THIS IS *OUR* LIFE!

Why am I saying this now—again? Because there is a great resurgence of ones wanting to come and experience WITH US. There are also some, at the same time—TAKING LEAVE BECAUSE THEY FAILED TO FIND WHAT THEY WANTED IN RELIGIOUS INTERCHANGE. We actually find some who demand we discharge people filling jobs that they perceive they could do and have waited a long time to get. NO. We don't operate like that and never shall do so. We find that some send stuff for the paper and, when we don't use it or stop using it, they go unhappily away mouthing our inability to recognize brilliance and/or somehow they are snubbed. Where do we put it and just how are we supposed to process it all? Then our most interesting messages come from ones who say "…but you know what I mean…" No, we don't know and what you mean IS YOUR BUSINESS, not ours.

"Ah," but you say, "I would be different." No, you would not be different, for the ones who have claimed undying willingness and pledge to support and serve—DO NOT. They turn at a whim, fall away when the pressures are present, and actually leave us with the empty sack after accepting their promises. I remember an early Thanksgiving dinner wherein a couple of people were going to bring important focus dishes for the dinner but their life changed and there was not even a call of apology from the parties involved, to the hostess, host or any other involved "friends".

When we expect and demand responsibility—then we get that "They certainly don't sound Godly to me!" and then chime in some others who didn't "work out" and it is no stopping the line of garbaging and trashing. Is it that people change on a whim or is it that they DIDN'T understand—ever? Both and all the possibilities. People are each and all looking for a "home", and if you find yourselves having had several "homes", "family" experiences and GET INTO THE SECOND HALF OF LIFE WITHOUT ENJOY-ABLE ATTACHMENTS AND ACTIVITIES—WHY DO YOU SUPPOSE THAT MIGHT BE? If you have no desire to start and renew, see and love those who came before—you are NOT going to do much except get pretty fed up with us—because we have a MAJOR mission to accomplish and it does not include making sure YOU have a nice outing at YOUR WHIM.

There are other things which are quite obvious as well. John S. is not happy and constantly complains about his placement and, "Who and how are you going to solve my problems?" Ah, but I asked that John be moved out of his place of discomfort by the 15th past, and where is he? What about all of you who inserted yourselves into his care regime to find fault and complain? Why have YOU not taken him with his belongings into your places to attend his wet and poopy pants? Or, why haven't YOU found that other

placement which would BE BETTER? Oh, it isn't YOUR responsibility? Whose responsibility is it, perchance? John wants to get some legal things settled after two years of dangling to suit the needs of Abbott, Horton, Guden, et al. Who helps him? Many of you type, could set forth his declarations and affidavits and help him. Praying with and for him is nice but it requires ACTIONS to make the prayers WORK. You just want GOD to do it all while you "analyze" without the personal and physical responsibility. Think of the parties who ARE the caretakers and see how you will enjoy 24-hours-a-day with the responsibility and constant complaining and selfish displeasure while demanding every "do for me". It is sort of like "dating" is fun—marriage is a real whammy! The point is, however, that until you are IN THE MOCCASINS, HOW DARE YOU COMPLAIN ABOUT THE FEET IN THEM? My suggestion is always to take the responsibility, fill the job the other does, and THEN, only THEN, do you assume to know more.

I do continue to suggest that John has a responsible party whom he pays monthly, before everything or anything else, for services. GO GET JOHN WHERE HE IS HAPPY. John uses three ladies here as his escape threat. Well, ladies, when are you moving him in? He pronounces he can just move from one through the others of you—and have all his needs met because you like it so much and never get short or frustrated with him.

This is manipulation by any term you can apply to its use. Whether it be a child, or elderly person, it is unacceptable when the party KNOWS BETTER and USES THE TANTRUMS TO GET MORE, HIS WAY.

The entire world can't revolve around ONE's wishes-especially when they are so self-focused as to make everyone else a slave to these isolated and demanding attentions. And when is someone going to get JOHN'S PROPERTY BACK TO HIM? Now the Abbott gang, USING Eleanor (who probably knows nothing about the ongoing harangues), wants to get EVERYTHING and leave John even without his pension. Is THIS right? Is it not actually so WRONG as to merit the labor to get something done instead of noting ill behavior on one day and exceptional behavior on a day when he gets to go out with the girls and be showered with attention? This teaches a child to be more and more naughty in order to get his way. Our task in EVERY CIRCUMSTANCE is to share and teach a BETTER WAY in all things to allow individual RESPONSIBILITY, not kowtow to chosen infirmities on given days. We teach the starving person to grow food or get a job and have that which is necessary to acquire food. We teach the native to raise fish in a pond rather than just dump a couple of cans of fish on his head. THIS IS NO DIFFERENT. Either the man needs to be in a care facility-OR GET HIM FUNCTIONAL AND TO WORK RESPONSIBLY. Remember that there will be as many frailties as necessary to keep as many of you as possible—distracted. John said it himself—to all of us at the last gathering where he said he didn't have a place. He has a place, has HAD a place, and knows better but he wants another place. Well, we learned how to get moved when he got tired of his original place which was totally outfitted right down to his fork and spoon in beauty and comfort—JUST FOR HIM.

You must help a brother when he is down and out and that is called charity. When you allow that other to demand, hype, moan and complain when he is unwilling to "get off welfare"—JUST BECAUSE THIS IS SOME SORT OF A PERCEIVED "COMMUNE"—THINK AGAIN.

If we are ever free of the drain of the baggage we have to carry, we will, among the very first projects, have care facilities of beauty, efficiency, elderly AND convalescent care, and privacy for individual life quality.

We can't do that until the blood-sucking STOPS.

THE CLAIMS AND THE MONEY

I find it interesting to note that we are the focus of so much effort to try to get funds, gold, etc. How so?

It is claimed that Leon loaned \$120,000? Well, at the same time George Green took \$150,000! Then Tuten says she put in about \$400,000 and George Green stole all the subscription funds, all the extra cash and gold, AND what is now worth far more than the \$400,000. Is there something wrong with this picture? Green also took out false bankruptcy to just keep from paying back his notes AND holds a bunch of books which he was ordered to NOT SELL, some 110,000 volumes, and then in bankruptcy says there are only 40-some-odd thousand copies. Which is it? Those were books of Dharma's which had been signed over to the PHOENIX INSTITUTE. Seems to me if Green simply paid his debts and returned the thieved property—there wouldn't have been a problem. (???) After all, you can count as well as I.

Why is TRUTH so hard to accept, people? Is it to soothe your own egos, who feel they have somehow been deprived, that you have to somehow hold onto a LIE instead of actually saving selves and property from the clutches of the greedy-liars and cheating thieves? Why is it so much easier to believe the liars than the truth-tellers? Well, what happens is you who join with the scallywags and scoundrels get numbered among them and your opinions and observations are tossed off as totally unreliable.

I am bemused by such as the incredible tales George Green makes up and tells at random about how he deserves to have the gold he STOLE. He goes through everything from blaming others for NOT KNOW-ING about it, to claiming everybody KNEW ABOUT it-and the fact remains-HE STOLE IT, HE BURIED IT AND NOW HE TRIES TO GET IT AT ALL COSTS TO ANYONE HE SUCKS INTO HIS DEN OF LIES AND THIEVES. And yet-look at the ones who join him-they join with him AGAINST THE OTHER ONES WHO GOT SUCKED INTO HIS PLOTS AND HEAP ON MORE BLAME AND EXPEND COUNTLESS MORE DOLLARS SIDING WITH HIM IN HIS ROT. You don't "JUST HAPPEN TO HAVE" \$400,000 WORTH OF GOLD COINS, INTENDED FOR SOME-ONE ELSE, HOP ON AS YOU GO BY THE MAILBOXES OR UPS TRUCKS. If Green absconded with secret gold intended for the Institute for the very purpose of paying off lenders and, in addition, borrowed on the same type of promissory note which HE REFUSES TO HONOR-EVEN TO FIL-ING BANKRUPTCY FALSELY-what have you? What is wrong with you people that you do not take this thief to court and get your money from the rightful party? Ekkers didn't use the money-Green did and now claims, in addition, that he put into the Institute another million dollars. USE YOUR BRAINS. You have presented to you the very CREATIVE FINANCING charts and books they kept-where everything the man did was charged off to expenses of the Institute and, in addition to that, the amount he claimed first was like \$250,000 and now is well past a MILLION dollars they somehow spent on YOU and is owing over and beyond the thieved property! And STILL you bring suit after suit in desperate actions of the attorneys to do WHAT? You claim you have LOST it all. If you have lost it all, then what think ye to gain? You have been HAD by the very thieves and liars who cheated you in the first place and have paid for years of this desire, as stated by Abbott, their retirement based on YOUR CASES.

Green has told you Ekkers are running off, had run off, to Costa Rica, Peru, etc., WITH ALL YOUR MONEY. What money? Green took and borrowed all he could get away with and, in addition, tried to

get you to swing over to him so he could then put it into a more direct route for his use. Then Ence comes along and says Ekkers have all the money stashed and ready to take off to Peru with the loot—and have it all packed with their belongings under the "crawl space of their house". Note that Ekkers HAVE GONE NOWHERE WHILE THE ACCUSERS HAVE RUN ALLABOUT EVERYWHERE AND DO GOLD BUSINESS IN PUERTO RICO, HOLD COFFEE PLANTATIONS IN COSTA RICA, ARE WORTH FIVE MILLION DOLLARS AND OWN A SHOPPING MALL IN BEVERLY HILLS.

And to some of you clever and naughty people, setting up phoney letters, doing acts of pure vandalism, entering 911 calls to harass others and on and on. Do you really think this makes you look trustworthy and stable? The cops are just about fed up with you around these parts because they "act" at your calling—and it is just getting hot and embarrassing for THEM. You did the last letter for Sharri—do you think the District Attorney is stupid? Typewriters, fingerprints, etc., can be checked out and ARE. I do not say which one because why get you ALL lying even more deeply, but either Tuten did it or somebody else did Tuten's AND Sharri's. Of COURSE WE KNOW WHICH.

You have no honor for you got some, like Phyllis and Centanni, to aid and abet you and they asked to not have their names used-and you betrayed them. You also, Annie-two-shoes, put Buddy Clark into a most nasty position along with Ed Cleary. I guess there may well not be many left wanting to grow old with you when you pass on through the rest of your tack-strewn ritualistic pathway. Even Gerry Sp. is taking a good hard SECOND look at the cases based on the fact that Annie's letter, even to him, was nothing but one KNOWN, even to her, lie piled upon another. So be it. It seems interesting that you use your titles in Leon's corporation to get some sort of prestige-when you claim others who only helped Leon set up a corporation, as a favor, were abused and accused by YOU. You will note that when Leon wanted them off his corporation it was forthcoming instantly. And you use Paul V.? My goodness, he even served legal papers, swore he had no interest in anything-AND WAS PRESIDENT OF INFINITE BALANCE UNTIL THEY TRANSFERRED IT TO YOU. What are YOUR reasons for taking control of Leon and his corporation? Someone here once asked you what you did as a "trade" and you answered that you "...had now found Leon and didn't have to worry ... " I wonder if perhaps Leon shouldn't have "worried" when you also announced you were George Green's agent (AGENT). You see, we don't go around talking behind your backs with lies-truth is right out there for all who care to look, including you, Leon. What do YOU plan to do with Esther's money AFTER Esther is gone? Isn't it time you turned around and looked at the vampires still dripping blood and go get it back from the feasting blood-suckers? Why do you suck from the turnip? Perhaps Annie should be back, with others, in Tucson, who dance to that drumbeat. White, Black, Green or Yellow-persons are known by their actions and the company they keep.

Leon rather recently told everyone present that he never looked at the legal stuff Abbott did or had—that he didn't understand it. He should have tried harder to both understand and LOOK AT THE TRUTH TELLERS instead of the foolish liars who MISREPRESENT HIM AND USE HIM. TRUTH IS IN THE DOCUMENTS AND YET YOU CHOOSE TO PRESENT HIM WITH THE LIES. Who is responsible? Each is responsible for self. Choices are made, consequences laid forth, and to him who follows the liar and cheat, are cheated and lied to by those he follows, the cycles are endless. Some of you have abused this man, Leon, in such a way as to be despicable for he offered you unconditional LOVE and you have wasted him. 'Tis you who have deprived his mother and some day it will be KNOWN and he shall not hold it lightly that you have deceived him. The bigger question IS: WHY? Why have you chosen to

deceive this goodly man? Is it simply to smite God? Well, go ahead and smite all you choose—for God is not going anywhere save to confront you in your lies. That is the way of God. He tolerates not your deceit and lies without taking note of them. When you use them to bring pain and hurt to others through your power of control—you bring double jeopardy upon self. Will Leon see through the sham? That, too, is his choice. He DOES SEE TRUTH when you are not there feeding more poison.

You write and get others to write that the Institute is just a "mail drop". How do you at Infinite Balance and your Gold corporation DBA, do business? Don't you first have to set up an agent to birth the corporation? What is an agent FOR? What are "original" officers and directors FOR? You, if you are not a resident in Nevada, HAVE TO HAVE A HOME FOR YOUR CORPORATE BIRTHING! If you don't know HOW to set up a corporation or use it—YOU HAVE TO HAVE SOMEBODY WHO CAN SHOW YOU THE WAY, KNOWS THE LAW(S) AND KEEPS YOUR CORPORATE RECORDS PROPERLY. THIS DOES NOT MEAN "RUNNING" YOUR COMPANY'S BUSINESS—THIS MEANS KEEPING RECORDS FOR THE CORPORATION ENTITY. If the law wants to look at silly manipulations with a corporation—try Infinite Balance! And Ann, being a past legal-type secretary is not making you into a very wise or good lawyer but we do note that you are PRACTICING LAW WITHOUT A LICENSE! Worse, you are presenting false information for the attorneys to use and, as officers of the court, they are in big trouble now. They are NOT going to protect you who have fed them lies—they are going to turn and hang you from the highest yard-arm for there is no honor or integrity in them.

Pity the man who only hears the siren's call. Pity more—the Siren, for the dis-eases of the union are borne by both. God did no disservice unto you—YOU DID! Moreover, some of you have lost your way so completely as to not even know in which direction to look again, for God. So be it.

Let us leave this now for when we sort our piles of duties to be accomplished, we find it so terribly painful in the washing phase.

We cannot, nor do we wish to spend time or space in further waste on these topics. I truly agree with E.J.—just copy the materials and anyone who wants the full story can have it. However, you have to be prepared to pay for the copy-work because we just can't spend any more of anything on it. You will need the accompanying myriads of attempts to thwart everything right up through this last totally stupid attempt to hold that gold by using such as Ann Beam and Abbott into a case already ended, having no standing in any form whatsoever and causing the legal court to look like total fools at charades.

The endless claims of our using one suit after another is ludicrous—A CORPORATION IS REQUIRED BY LAW TO HAVE LEGAL COUNSEL. Every dastardly trick has been played which could be played on truth in justice.

The Receivership case, READERS, has been ruled to be in the wrong venue and will be moved to Las Vegas where it belongs. What will happen now? Who knows? Only the greed-mongers set forth to destroy others for their own gain are in decision time. And you bet your bottom twinkie, friends, we do have some big-time, big-name counsel to do everything possible to protect YOUR interests from these corrupted scavengers. The case STARTS OVER in a cleaner playing field. The receivership case was tossed out three times right in Minden AND those misfits were denied stays, etc., by the Supreme Court of the United States and also by the Supreme Court of Nevada. What in the world does it take for you to act

in your own behalf, readers and participants? Now they must come to our turf to play and out of the good old boys' "area" where they live and hold such blackmail possibilities over their court jesters. You should realize that the judge in point of their insipid ongoing nightmare even sent out solicitation letters for contributions to HIMSELF from lawyers WHO WOULD BE COMING BEFORE HIS COURT! How does that look to you discerning and inquiring minds?

What will WE DO? Whatever is required for as long as it is necessary. Is infinity too long for your calculations?

May we always stand against WRONG wherever and whenever it is confronting us. Salu.

CHAPTER 9

REC #1 HATONN

SUN., OCT. 20, 1996 8:33 A.M. YR.10, DAY 065

SUN., OCT. 20, 1996

WHERE ARE WE GOING AND WHAT ARE WE GONNA DO?

I need to discuss a few things with you so that you responsible human hands can have a better picture of our next segment of this journey.

I have told you that "*basically*" we have accomplished funding resources which will allow for some rather magnificent accomplishments. I believe that we are near enough to discuss some of the aspects in a generalized manner.

GRANDMA

It is imperative that we utilize the paper for that which it was intentionally birthed. We needed it to be able to get word out quickly and with a reputation of an immediate reading audience.

You will be given the opportunity to turn this nation of the U.S. into a totally reverse direction politically—IF YOU PAY ATTENTION.

Her thrust will be, always, reclamation of a goodly government BASED ON COMMON LAW AND CONSTITUTIONAL (reclaimed) RIGHTS UNDER THAT LAW AND UNDER AND WITH THE LAWS OF GOD AND THE CREATION.

Does this sound like a job too large for any ONE to handle? Well, since you are ALL fragments of God, we can consider that it certainly IS too large a task for any ONE fragment to accomplish. However, if we of God put our shoulders to the wheel and push together, we can get the cart out of this poisoned mudhole.

This is going to mean we must be supportive, offer in the paper that which lays a foundation upon which to work in civil and political aspects of refounding a nation and redirecting back to God, a nation based on goodness instead of the insipid seepage from the sewer which prevails at this time.

This means that much of the paper will be focused on Common Law and *Constitution* lessons. You will NOT find it boring—you will be so angry at the usurpation of good law that you will wish to vomit as you realize the extent to which you have allowed degradation to befall you. It will shock some of you *AWAKE*, perhaps, to an extent of action against what is taking place even as we write.

NEW DECADENCE LAW

Example: Yesterday on CNN news it was reported that Willy Brown, Mayor of San Francisco, had taken to sign into LAW a new proposition for the city and you can bet it will then be acceptable for the State and then the Nation.

The gist of the law is that Gay Group Bath and Public gathering places will be permitted LEGALLY (UNDER THE PROTECTION OF LAW) to ADVERTISE and FUNCTION as open public sex centers. The "houses" will offer GROUP SEX ACTIVITIES, MASTURBATION FACILITIES, ENFORCED CONDOM USE FOR SODOMY PRACTICES AND A PLACE FOR THOSE WHO WISH TO OBSERVE ALL OR ANY OF THESE ACTIVITIES. The point, as presented, is to allow coverage and places of enforced and protected SAFE sexual activities. Mr. Brown describes it as being a "sort of" "clean needle program" in order to slow the spread of diseases. The only thing left to do before opening is to finish licensing the many petitioners for licenses from the City and to arrange for appropriate lighting regulations, etc.

REPERCUSSIONS

YOU HAVE GONE ABOUT AS FAR AS SODOM AND GOMORRAH, GOOD BUDDIES! Therefore, EXPECT the same treatment as given those cities of evil.

By the way, TODAY YOU HAD BEST GIVE ATTENTION TO THE MAJOR QUAKES IN JAPAN! Those are DIRECTLY across the Sea of Peace from "beautiful downtown" San Francisco by the Bay.

Yes indeed, you have gone about as far as you are going to go. You in the U.S.A. don't seem to understand that the rest of the WORLD is fed up to overflow with YOU and your secret evil and THEY can talk about your mess and evil enterprises AND YOU EVIL PEOPLE WHO DIRECT THIS PASSAGE INTO HELL.

Now that Time-Warner has control of Mr. Turner's networks—you can expect to hear less and less of ANY news, for the "maverick" was taken control of by below-the-belt measures. When you capitulate to the Siren's seduction, you have lost your way. Not only can it be done, it HAS BEEN ACCOMPLISHED. Turner is now the PUPPET with no ability to longer manage his own strings.

Another thing you should shudder over is Fred Goldman's resignation from his "marketing" business and is going to devote, full time, the remainder of his life to RESTRUCTURING THE JUDICIAL SYSTEM to bring about more restrictions and remove allowances for men to be found innocent. And just WHO do you think is footing the cost for this "retirement" into full-time corrupting of the system? Of course, his buddies whom he serves: *THE MISHPUCKA*! It wasn't enough that they killed his son AND Mrs. Simpson—they are now going to deal the death blow to the judicial system through laws similar in limitations of the Open Bathhouse Law of Mr. Brown (Willy). O.J. SIMPSON DID NOT KILLANYONE! And I hope that he will be exonerated. The actions of Fred Goldman are beginning to show that he and his vampires are not sure of winning this second and unlawful suit against the innocent man.

I hope that it is so that O.J. has seen God and can measure his own actions against those who brought him to his knees in disgrace and commercial failure. There is, of course, a major place for him to participate on

the stage of goodness for All people. All he needs to do is join the RIGHT set of marchers.

God will NEVER give unto any of his children a load too great to bear. Remember it when the going seems rough and delays seem interminable. The task will be always given to THE one best suited to accomplish a given job. Why ONE? Because each task is equally IMPORTANT as any other. I remind you that if EVERY ONE writes there is no one to put to press, no one to read what is printed, and mankind only slips further and further into the morass of confusion.

Why do you think so confounded many books are now written about the Simpson trial—all without merit as to truth and final judgement? Because it is a distractor while the would-be-KINGS take one game piece after another while you attend the absurd and ignore the TRUTH which will allow FREEDOM. This, too, is simply the way it IS.

While the world turns we must also continue to find the best and most qualified life-sustaining products, seeds, grains, paramagnetic earth, electricity pulse conduit substance, etc., to offer a basis for life as you turn about from your cots of sleep. For instance, what do you REALLY KNOW ABOUT SPELTA? What do you know about Adzuki beans? Humm, Hummm, I thought not. What do YOU know about crop rotations and enhanced quality of plant production? Well, SOMEBODY has to do it, don't they? And just WHO might that be? Well, we have found THE one to carry our flag and dig out the information with a pickaxe and meter-boxes. And NO, do not ask me to give you the information, the meters, the products, and then YOU WILL DO SOMETHING ABOUT THIS. We already have someone who has pulled it together for himself and we need waste no more time on the subject. Most of you are waiting for the "magic" while others are creating the miracles. Where is YOUR MIRACLE?

Perhaps, reader, it is right in your hands, as always. A letter to the Nevada Bar Association, et al., may well be your greatest and most miraculous contribution to our work this day, or any day. We can't work if the assaults have tied up everything and everyone involved. But the monster is down now and struggling for survival—so, let us keep him right there under God's foot, please. [*Editor's note: See pages 2-3 of the 10/8/96 issue of* CONTACT, *or pages 34-35 of the 10/15/96 issue for more on this matter.*] The misfits in town are finding that more and more of their dirty tricks are backfiring on themselves. It is no longer such a fun-and-games exercise in "get Hatonn and his people". The only WAY out for them is to move elsewhere and pray extradition is not demanded for the criminal acts of some of the "clan", "cult", "coven", "groupie" (just to choose from a few of the terms used against US). You see, the evil-mongers always use the terms which describe themselves as they begin to lay their trail of deceitful lies. It is the prime descriptive adjective about a Satanic/Luciferian mode of operation. They take a word of beauty, attach it to themselves so that you don't notice what they do, and then they use the terms to "getcha" and suck your blood from your very beings and blight your souls. The "Jews" are NOT SEMITES, so anyone who might well be AGAINST the Jews is NOT ANTI-SEMITIC for they CANNOT BE.

Further, any self-proclaimed practicing Jew IS working under the *Kol Nidre* (Vow of all vows). The FIRST thing on Atonement Day of the Holy Jewish celebration IS THE TAKING OF THE *KOLNIDRE*. This is a VOW that all vows of the prior year and the year to come—ARE NULLAND VOID. So, a Jewish attorney who takes the *Kol Nidre* is bound and ordered to serve under the oath called the *Kol Nidre*—nullifying all claim to truth or requirements for honesty or integrity. Ah, but how many other lawyers are willing to confront this MISCARRIAGE of all honor in a courtroom to judges who also take

the same vow? So, it remains an INSIDE joke to themselves while they diligently and methodically destroy the innocent.

You have a lot to clean up, citizens. And, YES INDEED, it certainly *CAN BE DONE*. But you have to have "gut strength" in determination and willingness to see every opportunity through to its RIGHT CON-CLUSION.

BACK TO GRANDMA!

This beautiful and daring lady not only has won defaults in courts through her own volition, but she continues her relentless efforts tirelessly. The law, the courts, and the corporations breaking the law ignore, laugh at, and find this lady just an amusement. Well, that is a very stupid attitude. Already in her case WON against Illinois Power company she has turned up facts that that one company has shifted off MASSIVE sums to "foreign" corporations and it, itself, is owned by a foreign corporation operating in the State of Illinois, *BUT AS A STATE BRANCH OF BUSINESS*! THIS IS UNCONSTITUTIONAL *AND AGAINST THE LAW*!

How many other states have this problem? ALL OF THEM. How do they get away with it? YOU let them! Why would they dare? Because the Federal Government sets the standards and regulations and all together MAKE LAWS WHICH ARE UNCONSTITUTIONAL AND UNETHICAL **AND UNLAW-FUL**. Remember that politicians are NOT NOTED for integrity. The U.S. Federal "stuff" is NOT GOVERNMENT OWNED OR OPERATED. The Federal Reserve, the IRS, and you name it—are FOREIGN-OWNED, PRIVATE CORPORATIONS. The operative figureheads you vote into slots which seem extensively important—have NO MEANING whatsoever any longer. The President is the lackey of the entire system of corruption to let YOU think you have a democracy (never mind a republic) and some semblance and approximation to that which you call freedom.

VOTE FOR PEROT

Again, this year of elections, my suggestion is to vote for Perot. Why? Well, not any of the reasons you might think: it is because he is the ONLY other choice YOU HAVE. If you-the-citizens would overturn the fixed election boxes, you would at least have a place to begin with enough power and input to cause the newly-elected parties to PAY ATTENTION.

Why have I not spoken about this prior to this late date? Because, if it appears too soon that an alternate choice will be made by you-the-people, THEY have to get rid of the standing President, confuse the elections and/or gain total EMERGENCY control of everything, and move you into a DICTATORIAL COUP—negating all elections.

Can "they" do it? Easily, in one swoop of a pen. And with it will come destruction and death because the "Emergency" that allows for such drastic measures MUST BE MASSIVELY DESTRUCTIVE IN OR-DER TO KEEP YOU BLIND-SIDED.

I need to now turn my attention to some pending inquiries which need personal and careful, as well as privately focused, information.

SOIL ADDITIVES

I certainly do want the farm research to be inclusive of necessary additives for perfection in growth potential of plants. However, we have to be practical in considering availability of products. When you get a bit carried away and into the assumption that you have to have a certain magnetic quality or electric pulse frequency—you sometimes overlook the most simple and obvious possibilities.

Let us consider plant needs as being pretty much in opposition to the inherent life needs of, say, man. Man must have oxygen and breathes out carbon dioxide. Plants must have carbon dioxide to "breathe" and give off oxygen. This is compatibility at its best. Plants, as does the human body, have capability of taking what is present in the air and soil to convert from those elements what they need for perfect reproduction and growth—if the elements themselves are WHOLE. Plants have to have nitrates, carbon, all manner of minerals and, in fact, do need additives of acid-producing products. By contrast, a healthier human body is one that is a bit alkaline in pH measurements.

So, as horticulturists work and fiddle, seek and dabble, you will find that you can put together, very simply, products which offer a conversion ratio suitable to a perfect medium.

The addition of sulphur to fields used either in rotation or general planting is mandatory because, as the plant converts its environment through its food source, it must have sulfuric acid, and most soils get depleted in sulphur content and even more rapidly depleted through some particular crops.

Then horticulturists also find a great need for substances derived from Humite and Nitrogen. Both of these substances simply hold high magnetic (or paramagnetic) charges in addition to holding and maintaining a high frequency potential. These also are presented through the line of alterations into Humic and Nitric acids. Since the humates, nitrates and sulphates can be disastrous in their intense form, it stands to reason that you need a carrier or a major ability to dilute the final application to any soil or plant. In other words, a little goes a very long way for too much simply kills the plants and ruins the ground for future use for many generations of rotation of crops.

If applied directly to the soil as in the solid state—you need to consider natural forms of obtaining the substances such as in manure (but from malnutritioned cows it is pretty worthless). You can have a better understanding if you consider that if urine is also present in the manure compost pile—you will have better fertilizer because of the URIC ACID present. I am not going to be the farmer, however, or the chemist. There are plenty of products available and some of them are so costly as to deplete all budgets before you get started. IF, HOWEVER, YOU HAVE CRYSTALLINE FORM OF ANY OF THESE THINGS AND YOU HAVE AN IRRIGATION SYSTEM, THEY CAN BE DILUTED AND ADDED DIRECTLY THROUGH THE IRRIGATION SUPPLY SYSTEM. The problem becomes one of CAREFUL use, however, because a grain often is sufficient for a gallon of water. By "grain" I mean one crystal grain, not weight. For instance, one silver nitrate crystal will purify a gallon of water—and that is one TINY crystal! If you only want DNA replication in cell perfection—you only need one DNA structure to one molecule and therefore one "grain or crystal" will suffice for hundreds of gallons of programmed water. If you are able to take this same tiny input and VORTEX the water into which you want the substance—you can use only a diluted teaspoonful to many gallons of water in the introduction system.
If, for instance, you put a TINY bit of Gaiandriana, and a crystal of, say, nitrate, or sulfate or whatever, vortex the solution to colloidalize the whole of the liquid—and if you have added the necessary minerals and vitamins—a teaspoonful of this vortexed liquid added to MANY, MANY GALLONS of irrigation water will be sufficient to your needs for the growing season. Further, you will find that the "food" is immediately available in cellular form for instant use without need of conversion by the plant itself—for it is already in cellular form.

Yes indeed, you CAN do enough "concentrated" formula by vortexing with what you have available. In time you need some industrial systems for this colloidalizing processing. Any time you have colloidalized substance, you have instantly useable form of whatever you wish to introduce—and yet it will be in a totally organic/harmless solution which you cannot OVERuse on either animal or plant life. My advice, as a matter of note, is to "overuse" the first few times because the lands are so depleted that the plants may need more of some elements than of others and, just like the body of MAN, the plants will use what they need and discard or leave that which is unnecessary. You can only cross molecule for molecule, cell for cell, etc.

In the startup, I would suggest you use whatever fertilizers are necessary and use the above described solution(s) (your choice) as extra plant additive in the irrigation system. Yes it CAN be done and hydroponic growing is full proof of that phenomenon. You will find that you can get better production and better product from hydroponic systems for producing fruits and vegetables than you can in soil fields. It is pretty impractical for major grain production but could be just as effective as a growing method under the right circumstances. Certainly it is NOT cost effective NOW.

Am I telling you that you CAN grow totally underground in what could be considered an artificial environment? Yes—and there is nothing artificial about it. The methods simply deviate from that to which you have, quite often, foolishly grown accustomed. The light, of course, is necessary for the production of chlorophyll, specifically SUNlight. I really don't want to get into this any deeper at this writing, please.

As you consider your additives—consider your probable or possible circumstance geographically and geophysically—after upheaval and changes in topography. You need things you can use or substitute in every instance should you be cut off for any reason whatsoever from resources. This can be anything from becoming an island mass to having your trucking systems go down. In the Tehachapi area, for instance—you may end up having to go to the dairy areas up toward Stockton for fertilizers of the natural variety—until you get some dairies of your own in your location. You must understand that everything is connected. Chicken, turkey, bird, etc., fertilizer is even better than is bovine or equine dung. You have to be careful, however, for it is also "stronger" and can burn your plants if overdone. Reclaimed and processed sewage sludge (sterilized and caked) makes EXCELLENT soil additive. Better yet, these things are already tested and workable products if you look around. Consider building your own processing facilities so that you always have the products available should any of these other contingencies mentioned above prevent your accessing from other locales.

We must leave this now as we have other responsibilities. Good Morning.

CHAPTER 10

REC #1 HATONN

MON., OCT. 21, 1996 8:41 A.M. YR.10, DAY 066

MON., OCT. 21, 1996

TRANSMUTATION

I realize that any Biologist reading this is going to want to be on the phone to E.T., but please do not try it for all of you choose to make your phone call via Dharma and she is just about sick to death of being the phone service.

I don't mind sharing with everyone on just about any point, but realize right up front that you aren't ever going to understand unless you change some pre-programmed wrong ideas. Especially if you are an "educated" Biologist you will have been given incorrect information and, unless you are willing to change some concepts, you can't utilize what I'm going to offer.

PLANTS VS. PEOPLE

God Creator endowed plants, as well as people, with some unalienable RIGHTS—to transmute what is offered into that which most nearly supplies life-flourishing elements. But, just as plants produce chloro-phyll and hopefully man does not—to the extent of turning green—so too do plants utilize minerals, vitamins, etc., in differing manners. Therefore, when we consider "feeding" plants, we need to offer what THEY need and not necessarily what the body-animal presents and utilizes. BOTH need an array of everything possible from which to pull fuel. When you have outrageous life-forms in either animal or plant, it is because of a necessity to survive in an environment which does NOT provide everything. This is fine for it comes to represent natural selection. However, why cause a plant to have to mutate to recreate itself and flourish? The facts are that a plant already artificially hybridized cannot reproduce itself, but with proper selection abilities it can be brought to both integrate quality genetic structure AND be reproductive. I don't want to talk about the advanced course in reproduction, only the art of feeding plants which are so deprived in farming areas as to be all but worthless to the consumer.

But will the consumer "like" the product? I don't know for the consumer of today has learned to like rancid grease better than the flavor of a freshly grown organic potato. Mankind in flourishing societies now lives on refined foods with NO VALUE save negative, and stuffs-in non-utilized vitamin and mineral pills according to the most current hype.

After a while BOTH plant and body forget how to utilize anything properly so "overkill" is usually the next incorrect project of both the physician and the farmer. In this case of supplementation—what you DON'T see is better.

Next you have to understand the mechanism of "carriers" for the elements you want to be utilized by the

living organism, and work accordingly. That means that we are going to have to integrate the elements into living CELLS so that you can offer the plant/body what it needs in a form that is instantly accepted and transmuted, or whatever is the mechanism of the organism. Since I want to speak to our research Biologists for the research farm, I will get totally localized. I apologize to other farmers who would use this methodology—but the problem is that we need Gaiandriana in large quantities with which to begin and at this present time we are limited as to production. We can gear up and have suitable carrier quantities for a LOT OF PURPOSES which are separate and apart from the focused Drias as in our product, Gaiandriana, but that takes a while from start to finished product because the transmutation has to be allowed its time of interactions. Since I am dealing with parties who DO NEED TO GET STARTED, I am speaking to "them" and we will see what we can do on a larger scale as we move along.

The concept is so simple as to embarrass the receivers at first conceptual glance, but do NOT allow that to stop you. I am not suggesting you go forth and reform the world, or the growers, this afternoon—BUT YOU WILL REFORM THE CONCEPTS BEFORE WE ARE THROUGH. DID GOD MAKE THE LITTLE GREEN APPLES, as the song goes? Well, no, not really—the apple tree presented the world with little green apples—GOD "ONLY" SUPPLIED THE BLUEPRINT AND THE ELEMENTS RE-QUIRED.

So, does a little green apple require more manganese than a potato? Perhaps, but only the apple tree seed knows for sure. However, you can ASSUME that both need manganese! How such an assumption? Because living forms are made up of all the elements, utilized according to the DNA/RNA cellular structure of individual "products". So what do we have to do, bring the mountains to the farm field? NO, and that is the first BIG MISCONCEPTION. If you need 952 billion ions of manganese, why bring 952 tons of otherwise useless bulk to the fields? You will usually find, in fact, where manganese is present (example of element only) you will have toxic impact from other minerals in that particular soil. So, now, let us look at ALTERNATIVES: Bring a tiny handful of manganese and let us colloidalize it into EVERYTHING SO-LUTION, along with everything else we need. Allow it to be taken up by the drias in unprogrammed form, add Oxysol to provide "crystal liquid diamond" for programming individually, and go for it in that way—into the water supply.

Since, and here I speak to Dharma who always gets stuck putting this mess together, we will need everything we use for colloids PLUS everything we would use for perfect growing medium for plants in raw or crystalline or crushed fpr, (as in vitamin-mineral tablets) SO THAT WE HAVE ACCESS TO TINY PARTICULATE. If you have liquids available, all the better, except that you will tend to use too much. So, if you use droppers for the liquids—use TINY ORIFICE DROPPERS. If you have "color" you usually have too much—EXCEPT that some things interact catalytic-wise and often will simply produce a color presence. You will remember, however, that these "colors" will become transparent if left in Gaiandriana for a period of time. We don't care about color, and at injection time you may wish to, at first, color the additive to convince yourselves that you have product. The plants don't need convincing—only you people.

Now, I'm going to boggle you sensing people. When we are ready to MOVE with this—I want some crushed seed (only a tiny-tiny piece OF THE WHOLE plant intended for receiving) and we will program the solution TO THAT PLANT. We do that by allowing the Drias to mature according to the programming of the plant in point. Then, when you add the additives to the solution—whammy, you have pre-pro-

grammed supplement. This is nice because it will usually give the focus plant time to outgrow the nonprogrammed weeds. The weeds will program their own needs but you may well have a three-to-four-day HEADSTART on them. *THIS WILL ONLY WORK WITH THE USE OF GAIANDRIANA*. Drias are the cells of LIFE waiting for programming and, no, we are NOT going to hand them out to anyone else and, further, if we get carried away here, we will remove them. There are not going to be the MISTAKES usually made by man who goes forth and mutates everything in his stupidity.

What we are trying to accomplish is to have a perfect food supply for growing fields and I believe you can see the perfection which CAN be accomplished by directly-programmed food. The diversity of plant life, however, is very much dependent on a variety of things, which offers a diverse and interesting supply of food resources. We will stick, in the beginning, to the more specific plants we wish to cultivate in the best categories of survival products, i.e., legumes such as Soy, Adzuki beans, lentils (red, if possible, and red comes from mineralization), Triticum spelta, et al., and when we can do so—grow full-spectrum algae. The flavor condiments can be stored to make these foods more "interesting". You will find, as you grow perfect plants—you will have perfect honey, perfect milk, perfect eggs and thus and so as the living forms adjust to perfection from their plant resources.

You find what works best, and horticulturists already know a lot of the reasons; for instance, an hydrangea flower may well be pink or blue according to the iron in the soil, gardenias thrive in a more acidic soil so you use "miracid" FERTILIZERS as also you need to use to feed evergreens. If, however, you feed it ALL in colloidalized/dria FORM, the PERFECT original plant will REPRODUCE ITSELF and then, through tampering and testing, you can produce whatever you like as to color and hybridizing.

For US TO BEGIN, however, Dharma, we just need a full SELECTION of products from which we can make an ALL-INCLUSIVE colloidal solution to introduce to the Drias programmed for whatever—and GOD AND SOLAR ENERGY WILL TAKE IT FROM THERE!

When you people realize what you CAN do, then you can stop killing off the life-forms to eat. You can use your life-form animals for pets, natural selection, by-products which will, by the way, have no allergic reactions or digestive problems in the presentation. And, by the way, if you eat the basic foods, you can then eat a lot of rancid fat junk foods and still come out ahead.

Our problem right now is to be able to HAVE what we need if we can't get anything from anywhere else. You can have enough basic needs stored for YEARS OF USE in a very small space. When you only use one granule of humic acid crystal in six gallons of liquid—it goes a very long way. Also, if you are trying to get a more acidic solution—put in a couple of drops of vinegar or citrus (lemon or lime is best) or Kargasoc vinegar (four or five drops will do it). You simply do not need to OR WANT TO destroy land values with over-fertilization of any kind.

The nice part of this application method in irrigation fields is that what is falling into the land directly is nicely held while, with our solutions as described, especially with a surficant additive (as in powered yucca introduced right into the colloidalizing method) will allow for absorption by the plants right through their leaves and stems—and better yet, as the buds begin to set for the flower or fruit—you will multiply manyfold the production as the liquid is accepted wherever it falls. If, in fact, you could spray the plants at "setting time" you would find amazing results in better production quantities.

The same applies to fowl and milk cows: If you feed them the nutrients you want them to have in a dria base (remember a little goes a long, long way), you will have such quality products from both as to astound the evaluators.

Now, E.J., when you begin to colloidalize this product I suggest that you add several more magnets in strategic locations to the bottles and even then, give them at least six turns. You will have some elements which will resist the magnetizing. I even suggest you up the number of turns you are using for other products now—the more particulate you fling into the molecules the better the base from which the cells can have selection. Some of these elements will actually RESIST moving into the same cells because of their "charge". For that reason I suggest you start with tap water or simple well water. Always treat with hydrogen peroxide appropriately because you don't want foreign growth or harmful bacteria in the programming solutions. The Oxysol will take care of it "later", but you will have already introduced unwanted DNA structures. Always start out with treated (hydrogen peroxide) water. This gets rid of any parasites and living viral forms. Once broken up they will not reprogram themselves and if they should slip a few DNA through, they will be cast out by the cells themselves as "foreign material".

At upstart this will seem like an impossible task—but I promise you that it will end up a lot easier, almost cost-free as you move along and will be a grand new product in addition to keeping a few hands busy in the production end as we start here. Remember please, that our thrust is not just to technical deletion of workers—WE NEED TO PROVIDE JOBS WHICH ALLOW SELF-SUSTAINING AND GOOD LIVING STANDARDS TO AS MANY "WORKERS" AS WE CAN USE. YOU *WILL* BE HAVING FUNDS ENOUGH TO SUBSIDIZE THE PAYROLLS IF NECESSARY AT UPSTART, PRETTY SOON NOW. Salu.

CHAPTER 11

REC #1 HATONN

WED., OCT. 30, 1996 7:49 A.M. YR.10, DAY 075

WED., OCT. 30, 1996

READ IT AND WEEP—THEN GET SERIOUS!

[QUOTING, The Orlando Sentinel, 10-28-96:]

<u>GROWING POPULATION LEADS TO</u> <u>DEBATE ON FOOD SUPPLY</u>

WASHINGTON, OCT. 28, 1996:

It's shaping into the great debate for the 21st century: *Can the world produce enough to feed another few billion people?*

Agronomists and other scientists say yes, **and they want more money** to research everything from milk cows that also pull a plow to hybrid potatoes.

<u>Population activists and some social scientists say no, and they think the only solution is to</u> <u>limit the mouths to feed.</u>

Both sides in the debate agree that the Earth's land and waters give up about as much human nourishment as they can with current technology.

The bottom line: Without big scientific advances, sharp reductions in population growth or both, millions more people could starve in the early 2000s.

The main disagreement is over how much food the planet can yield.

The environmental research group Worldwatch said in a pessimistic report last month that "food scarcity is emerging as the defining issue of a new era" where future supplies will depend more on family planners than fishermen and farmers.

But that's not the way the world's agriculture and fishery industries or international agriculture researchers see it.

"It's totally untrue that we have reached the limit," said Ismael Serageldin, World Bank vice president and chairman of the world's largest international research consortium, known as CGIAR. The Consultative Group on International Agricultural Research, with research labs around the world, issued its own optimistic report on the future of world food production Sunday.

"Despite some gloom and doom predictions, the world has the resources needed to feed the 8 billionplus people who will be on Earth in 2025," the report says. But it adds that this will require strong support for agricultural research.

The report says CGIAR scientists in Africa, Latin America, Asia and elsewhere are developing "super rice", wheat and cassava strains that can "break through the yield ceiling" and new fish varieties that can double the returns of small aquaculture farmers.

CGIAR scientists are meeting this week in Washington with farmers, private business leaders, nongovernment organizations, government officials and multinational organizations to map out a strategy for feeding the world into the next century.

[END OF QUOTING]

If there is this possibility RIGHT NOW, why are you not using it? What happens from here to the turn of the century? Since when has a committee of basically non-farmers ever come up with anything concerning agriculture worthy of note? Also, how long since the *Associated Press* did any publication in accuracy? Oh yes indeed, they ran a whole series of publications globally on "us" and the Ekkers about the Phoenix Institute, offered by George Abbott, AND THERE WAS NOT ONE SINGLE WORD OF TRUTH IN IT SAVE THE NAMES (which in itself is not usually correct).

The road to famine is already built and you are on the journey. The foods produced are, in addition, so filled with pesticides and antibiotics along with additives as to be generally worthless in value. A full tummy only feels better momentarily—death comes anyway—from malnutrition if values are missing.

We really MUST GET MOVING on our reclamation and survival foodstuffs. This can no longer be a waiting and/or "committee" matter. However, as you consider growing these products as we discuss them—consider carefully your locations for a lot of land mass will be GONE or BURIED. Check, as a good general rule of thumb, Scallion's map of changes. And Sharon, even if your part of the world is still going to be there, there simply is not funding here at this location at present to even consider reclaiming land and old irrigation systems and fighting with the government over land use. I cannot scatter focus enough to attend your needs while I am working on the larger picture. You all have to each check out your TRUE DESIRE for projects, etc., because too many want to begin, get weary, impatient, and all sorts of other excuses to FAIL and never finish. You have to consider whatever YOU begin as necessary for YOU to fund and finish and it usually is poor in rewards of any kind save frustration and disappointment. It is not always that it can't work; it is usually that it doesn't work if it requires more than SELF to attend the project in point, whatever might be that project.

We are finding it a fact, RIGHT HERE under our noses, that if we need something—we DO IT OUR-SELVES. Example? Charles arranges and helps EVERYONE and their relatives to MOVE from, or to, anywhere. Not only is he asked to help—he is asked, literally, to arrange moving equipment and plan the moving. However, he just experienced, with Ekkers, the fact that only one or two so much as offered to

lift a finger or provide a pot for our now arrived Professional Farm Consultant who had to leave Canada WITH NOTHING SO AS TO BE ABLE TO LEGALLY CROSS THE BORDER INTO THE U.S.

I asked that, through this time of necessity for us to be otherwise occupied, that there be NO VACATIONS as to paper and other production—but alas, there was a much LAID BACK crew during Dharma's inability to write on topical matters and having to focus on intense funding and housing matters. Dharma is also having to put together a full spectrum colloidal injection system for feeding the crops and the lands into the hundreds of gallons of solution bearing EVERYTHING necessary to upgrade growth potential. Again, we are having to do this on a shoestring because we can't carry any more financial load here and continue the legal hassles on a daily basis of meet and confer. Patience for responses to your petitions; personal matters simply have to be put aside.

If someone will make a list of inquiries, I will attempt to answer a few questions on Saturday. We will be gathering a few friends because Mark and Cathy will be here for a day or so. And, readers, in total opposition to George Green's and Ence's publications that we HID (or hide) from them "...because Mark will see through Doris", we shall be daring enough to allow for that wondrous possibility. If he sees what I see, "through Doris", we shall accomplish the rest of our mission! What a boring life these people must live, just tagging along, trailing us about, vandalizing, making childish phone calls, 911 UNLAWFUL calls, etc. I wonder why people don't just GET A LIFE. They don't like us, what we do, or anything other than a resource to steal from—and yet, they won't go away. We haven't taken anything from anyone; we have helped others all along the way and facilitated them even having a "living", and we are pounded and pounded while the guilty shams are protected as if they are gods of some kind. What is this? Turn to the misfits and thieves, liars and cheats that you have joined in order to do what? Do you really think YOUR ATTORNEYS AT CRIME are going to get you ANYTHING? It appears from here as a bunch of jackals having a feeding frenzy around your unfortunate carcasses as the last drop of blood is sucked from you under the guise of "getting your 'investment". There are NO INVESTORS OR INVESTMENTS HERE nor were there EVER such. There are lenders with honorable notes and there are participants in the Institute-NOTHING MORE. If George Green EVER TOLD YOU OTHERWISE, you were a fool to listen and he was a thief and liar to say otherwise.

By the way, readers, NOT ONE CENT of "lenders" money has gone to fight any suit involving only Ekkers! NOT ONE CENT. The facts are that, in actuality, Ekkers also borrowed enough funds to continue the struggle for the Institute in protection of the Corporation's standing. So be it.

SHEPHERDS

Along the lines of "self-proclaimed" innocents and liars, cheats and thieves, comes a poem or ode to Mandela, from South Africa. It applies to any politician treasonist of the same ilk so put in whichever name you choose from any nation you choose and by all means put in the NAME OF GEORGE BUSH:

MANDELA IS MY SHEPHERD

Mandela is my shepherd I shall not work He maketh me to lie down on park benches He leadeth me besides the still factories He restoreth my faith in the Conservative Party He guideth me in the path of unemployment Yea though I walk through the valley of the soup kitchen I shall still be hungry For I feel they are against me They have anointed my income with tax My expenses runneth over my salary Surely poverty and hard living shall follow me All the days of the Labour administration

5000 years ago Moses said "Pick up your shovels, mount your camels and I'll take you to the promised land." 5000 years later F W said "Lay down your shovels, sit on your arse and light up a camel, for this is the promised land."

Now watch out, or Mandela will take away your shovel, sell your camel, kick your arse, and take away the promised land.

I'm glad that I'm a South African So glad that I am *free* But wish I was a doggie And Mandela was a tree!

Thank you, Carol, and please realize that there has finally been reached an equality of Black, White, any race anywhere and an equality of nations—all ready to go down the drainpipe.

By the way, beautiful ones in South Africa, the answer to a couple of questions: One: the symbol of Aton or God in the Ancient languages? Sun! Ancient language meaning of HESA? Hellenic Express South Africa. I am not into languages or symbology.

However, just to keep the records somewhat straight, HESA can be pronounced as IISA which means Christ as in Iisa, Esu, etc. Never mind the logo(s) or the label—just KISS, will do nicely. The more clean and professional a heading will always hold you in great esteem. Explicitness is the KEY to communication. Implicitness is the evidentiary road to confusion. And ALWAYS REMEMBER: **Impatience is the visible recognition of lack of faith IN GOD.**

For our South African friends I would like to dedicate this next portion on the dastardly deeds of one George Bush for this will be one crime committed too many to allow the bushwhacker to keep pulling off international intrigue for his, and his cronies', self-gains—much longer.

I would hope that we can get to the full story as is ongoing in Special Reports by *EIR* on the topic of Bush and the indictments, but we shall see. I do want to cover a bit on the murder of Swedish Prime Minister Olof Palme, the South African connections, and miscellaneous other topics and inclusions. This one act by that brigade may well prove, in the ending, to be THE END.

Bear with us while we hop, skip and jump around with excerpts.

OLOF PALME, SWEDISH PRIME MINISTER

[QUOTING, the following will all be from the *EIR* Special Report:]

[H: I shall not put this into any particular order other than the sequence as outlayed. You will get the message without my input as to structure of writing.]

NEW REVELATIONS TIE PALME MURDER TO BUSH, THATCHER-LINKED ARMS CARTEL

On Feb. 28, 1986, Sweden's Prime Minister Olof Palme was assassinated on the streets of Stockholm, as he and his wife were walking home from a movie. Palme's wife was also shot in the attack, but survived. The assassin, or assassins, escaped, despite the fact that the prime minister's security detail was in the area when the attack took place.

More than ten years have passed since the Palme murder and, up until September 1996, Swedish authorities had failed to catch the assassins, or even name the responsible agencies. From the very outset, an ambitious international disinformation campaign was carried out, involving such "strange bedfellows" as the Soviet KGB, the East German State Security Service ("Stasi"), the Anti-Defamation League of B'nai B'rith (ADL), and NBC-TV, to deter honest Swedish investigators from pursuing promising trails of evidence. Instead, the ADL, the Stasi, et al., colluded to fabricate "proof" that the assassin was associated with Swedish colleagues of American political economist, three-time Democratic Party pre-Presidential candidate, and *EIR* Founding Editor Lyndon H. LaRouche, Jr. By the time the bogus "LaRouche killed Palme" tale was discredited, the trail of the real assassins had turned colder than a Swedish winter.

The Palme assassination was not an isolated incident. As you will learn below, since 1984, a large number of public figures, including French general René Augran, German state governor Uwe Barschel, Indian Prime Minister Rajiv Gandhi, Israeli intelligence agent Amiram Nir, Canadian weapons manufacturer Gerald Bull, and Belgian government minister André Cools, all died sudden and violent deaths.

At the time of their death, each of these men was in possession of sensitive information about the activities of an international weapons and munitions cartel, operating on both sides of the East-West Cold War divide. During the 1980s, this cartel was engaged in an arms business involving many hundreds of billions of dollars a year, fueled by the Iran-Iraq War (1980-88), the Afghanistan War (1979-89), and the East-West surrogate wars in Angola, Namibia, Mozambique, El Salvador, and Nicaragua. In many instances, the clandestine shipments of weapons were linked to other underground commodities, especially illegal drugs. In the cases of the Nicaraguan Contras and the Afghanis mujahideen, it has been widely documented that illegal sales of cocaine and heroin, by the U.S. and British government-backed "freedom fighters", generated much of the money used to purchase weapons and other materiel. In Africa, a lucrative trade in black market ivory, diamonds, and rhinoceros tusks served the same function as the illegal drug trade in Central America and Afghanistan. It generated millions of dollars in illegal funds to finance the purchase of weapons—to keep the regional conflicts going.

THE "ASTEROIDS"

To protect the interests, and carry out the clandestine activities of this transnational apparatus, a global network of hired killers and soldiers of fortune was assembled, under a variety of private, commercial covers. This latter-day "Murder, Inc." represented both a direct continuity from, and an expansion of, the 1960s and 1970s British intelligence front-company Permindex, that was implicated in the assassination of President John F. Kennedy, in the murder of Italian oil industry figure Enrico Mattei, and that tried, unsuccessfully, to assassinate French President Charles de Gaulle. That 1960s-era worldwide "Murder, Inc." was based, at various points, in Montreal, Rome, and Johannesburg.

The vast 1980s "private enterprise", like its Permindex antecedent, was sponsored, protected, and deployed by elements of the U.S., British, and French governments, among others. U.S. Vice President George Bush, the director of all Reagan Administration "special situation"—i.e., covert operations—was a pivotal figure in all of these 1980s activities. However, the British, especially during the years when Margaret Thatcher was prime minister (1970-1990), played a far more dominant, albeit low-key role, in many of these dirty operations—particular in Africa and Central Asia, where Great Britain has a long history of colonial rule, and maintains vast networks of intelligence assets, often headed by "retired" British Special Air Services (SAS) offices.

[H: I am asked why, indeed, does Bush not simply fund the "certificate" from which we have assets due and owing? We offered! Bush and Boys proved-up and valued the instrument and USED IT FOR FUNDING THESE CLANDESTINE ESCAPADES OF MURDER AND CHAOS. THE VALUE IS SO GREAT AS TO, IN ADDITION TO ALL THEY SPENT, BE MORE THAN ALL THE CURRENCY IN THE WORLD. However, there was first a "study" done by "them" and they didn't "…want to deal at this time". Then, they decided they didn't need us at all for they would just take-out a few more players and they would end up with every-thing anyway. Well, that didn't work because Bush may well be brave but an intergalactic war can not be won with all his stash of arms and money, gold or warheads. So, he then came back to try and fool us by saying we are "nothing more than a tiny annoyance…" So be it, just call me Anoy Ance. I have time—YOU DO NOT! Moreover, I am certainly sufficient to the needs of my crewmates, for I have bigger weapons and they are NOT of war machines.]

The legacy of these 1980s activities today is an even bigger worldwide network of mercenaries, illegal arms dealers, drug traffickers, money launderers, terrorists, and private spies. Collectively, they are referred to among intelligence specialists today as "the asteroids". They operate increasingly outside the purview of governments, and are involved in smuggling, terrorism, and political destabilizations worldwide.

[H: Ah, readers, but WHAT happens when the thugs outgrow the leaders who organized the thugs? Wow, what a "downer" to consider if I were those no-longer-necessary Elite rulers and all those busy "asteroids" decided to take ALL the shares!]

Further, since the end of the Cold War and the collapse of the Soviet Union, a large, and growing number, of former Soviet intelligence operators have been integrated into this asteroid apparatus. It is impossible to understand the apparent "overnight" emergence of a powerful, worldwide "Russian Mafia", over the past five years, without factoring in the role of former KGB and GRU (Soviet Military Intelligence) personnel within the asteroids, and without recognizing the antecedents of the new East-West

criminal "partnership" in the Cold War era arms- and drug-trafficking collusion between the intelligence services of the two rival power blocs. This Cold War arrangement, among corrupted intelligence assets, East and West, might be termed the policy of "destructive engagement".

The Palme case offers a critical window into this global asteroid phenomenon, and underscores the role of the Thatcher and Bush circles in creating the policy framework for the proliferation of these modern-day pirates and dragoons.

NEW PALME MURDER REVELATIONS

Dramatic new evidence about who killed Olof Palme, and why, has surfaced since late September 1996. It began in a South African courtroom, where a former South African security officer was on trial for a series of apartheid-era assassinations. Col. Eugene de Kock, who headed a covert "death squad" unit of the South African paramilitary police, called C-10, had already been convicted, following a 19-month trial, of the murders of four anti-apartheid activists. He was originally indicted on 89 counts of murder, conspiracy, and fraud. During his sentencing hearing, on Sept. 26, 1996, de Kock calmly revealed to the court that a well-known South African spy-turned-National Party politician, Craig Williamson, had been responsible for the assassination of Olof Palme.

Several days later, another former head of the same C-10 unit, Brig. John "Dirk" Coutzee, who had been Williamson's boss inside the South African paramilitary police for years, issued a public statement, corroborating de Kock's charges against Williamson. In addition, he named another former South African intelligence operator, James Anthony "Ant" White, a former Rhodesian Selous Scout, as the actual killer of Palme.

Next, a third associate of Coutzee and Williamson, Peter Casselton, came forward with additional details about the Palme hit. He identified "one individual living in Turkey" as another important player in the murder. The man was soon identified as Bertil Wedin, a Swedish national and one-time United Nations soldier, widely known in extreme right-wing circles in Scandinavia. Wedin is living in the Turkish sector of Cyprus. He had lived for several years in London, where he was on the payroll of South African intelligence. Wedin had also functioned as an informant for SAPO, the Swedish national police agency, which was in charge of the Palme assassination probe.

In recent years, Wedin has been associated with a Swedish magazine, *Contra*, which has been a channel of contact among "asteroid" networks in North America and Europe. *Contra*, for example, has featured writings of Dr. Jack Wheeler, a leading player in the 1980s "Reagan Doctrine" of surrogate warfare throughout the Third World. Wheeler today is part of a London-based and British Intelligence-linked outfit, *Strategic Investment*, that has been involved in the British propaganda campaign against the U.S. Presidency, ever since Bill Clinton replaced George Bush in the White House in January 1993.

MOUNTING EVIDENCE

Despite the fact that Williamson, White, and Wedin have all publicly denied that they were involved in the Palme murder, in the weeks since the initial de Kock courtroom revelations, a great deal of evidence implicating the three men in the crime has come to light. Williamson has been arrested by Angolan au-

thorities, and remains behind bars, as of this writing; and Swedish prosecutors have been dispatched to Johannesburg, South Africa, to pursue all of the leads that have bubbled to the surface since Sept. 26, 1996.

Within days of the de Kock statements and the other new revelations, stories began to appear in the Swedish press that, while giving credence to the "South African connection" to the murder of Palme, sought to explain the involvement of Williamson, White, et al., strictly from the standpoint of Palme's well-known role in **supporting the African National Congress and other anti-apartheid groups.** Scant attention was focused on the broader issue of the global arms and explosives cartel, which, during the 1980s, ran from Europe, through South Africa, into both Iran and Iraq, flooding the Persian Gulf with the armaments that kept the Iran-Iraq War going for the better part of a decade. Swedish companies, such as Bofors and Nobel, were at the center of that arms/munitions flow, at the same time as Prime Minister Palme was in charge of a United Nations commission (the "Palme Commission") specifically mandated to enforce the arms embargo against the two Persian Gulf arms embargo that he was charged with enforcing, and, at times, he personally facilitated those violations. But this knowledge also placed Palme in the precarious position of "knowing enough to be dangerous".

[END OF QUOTING]

I may have to offer more "parts" to this ongoing tale unfolding here. I would hope that you who can afford to do so—GET THIS SPECIAL REPORT!

All of you who can't seem to make the global connections and can't bring yourselves to believe it can be like this—go back and read the prior 186 JOURNALS we have offered since Fall of 1989. Twinkle Fingers, here, has been busy as a tapping bee for all these months to MAKE SURE YOU HAVE AVAIL-ABLE THE INFORMATION YOU NEED FOR CONCLUSIONS OF PROPER PERSPECTIVE. And to you ones who are so kind as to honor her birthday today, Thank You, but no, she can't have the day off from the keyboard. She is just happy to have made it to Medicare so "she thinks" she can afford to get sick now and have a rest vacation. That is not likely either.

And to all of you: a birthday is misnamed—for it is only a celebration toward dying and counting the days passing toward that transition. Remembering is always nice, however, so I convey her appreciation and simply tell you that she is "getting old and tired". No, she is neither! And, neither is she a Halloween follow-on, for I like to remind her that BEFORE EVIL THERE WAS GOD! And so too shall there again be TRUTH (dharma) and GOD. There is no evil in this place and in this mission there are no slackards.

Salu and have a good day—WHILST YE CAN.

EIR Special Report: GEORGE BUSH AND THE 12333 SERIAL MURDER RING, October 1996.

EIR NEWS SERVICE, P.O. Box 17390, Washington D.C. 20041-0390. \$100.

Question: Would a President Bob Dole prosecute drug super-kingpin George Bush?

NO! Dole is one of the Kingpins! Check it out carefully and you will find that "be damned if you do and

be damned if you don't." You should have KNOWN as much when BUSH backed Dole and gave HIM HIS INSTRUCTIONS. Check out the connections of Dole, for instance, with Archer, Daniels, Midland grain cartel CORPORATION who has paid Dole off into the millions of \$\$\$, not to even mention the other purchasers.

Then, is Clinton better? Perish the thought! In political nightmare circles it is all but impossible to find "better" or "worse" and when you vote for the "lesser evil" you still have EVIL. Think about it.

CHAPTER 12

REC #1 HATONN

THU., OCT. 31, 1996 8:24 A.M. YR.10, DAY 076

THU., OCT. 31, 1996

ALL SATAN'S DAY

Today is All Satan's Day—do you know where your children are? Finally it has happened—the two greatest holidays within your calendars are Satan's days—Halloween and Xmas. These are days of taking, tricking, treating, and generally spent in chaos. Remember: *Peace is liberty in tranquility*.

So be it for you ARE what you BECOME! Satan never has to change his plan or his approach for the old tricks never fail him. A bit of candy, peppermint or chocolate, always does the trick.

BANK IN TROUBLE

This next may well need some explanation but please see if you can find any clues which associate it with other things we have poured onto your heads.

[QUOTING, from the Associated Press, October 29, 1996:]

FIRED COPPER TRADER ARRESTED IN FORGERY by Mari Yamaguchi

TOKYO—A former star copper trader at **SUMITOMO CORP**., accused of losing <u>\$2.6 billion</u> in 10 years of unauthorized deals, was arrested Tuesday on forgery charges, and authorities searched his home.

The scandal added to questions about Japanese management and regulatory oversight of financial markets, and led to a 10 percent drop in world copper prices. That decline widened *Sumitomo's copper losses from the trades by* <u>44%</u> from its original estimate of \$1.8 billion.

Yasuo Hamanaka, 48, was arrested on suspicion of forging documents involving metal trading with the U.S.-based Merrill Lynch & Co.

Sumitomo managing director Naoki Kuroda denied that anyone else in the company knew about the unauthorized deals, saying, "Basically he did it *all on his own*. We'd like to get to the truth of what he did." [H: SURE THEY WOULD!]

Hamanaka, who was fired after two decades as a Sumitomo trader, will be sued for aggravated breach of trust, the company said.

Prosecutors did not say where Hamanaka was arrested, or what they confiscated from his home outside Tokyo.

Sumitomo's Kuroda suggested that Hamanaka was able to carry out his trades because he used forged signatures rather than carved seals, the customary means of signing documents in Japan.

However, fraud experts and investigators doubt that Hamanaka could have chalked up losses of such magnitude without others knowing. Allegations that the scandal's central figure tried to fake trading records were raised as long as five years ago.

"Merrill Lynch had no knowledge of any forgery. We conducted all our business with Sumitomo in good faith and an entirely proper manner," said James Wiggins, a spokesman for Merrill Lynch.

Sumitomo is believed to control up to half the world's copper production. The company was founded in the 17th century by Masatomo Sumitomo, a former monk who wrote about business **ethics.**

[END OF QUOTING]

This would seem to be, off hand, a straightforward bit of information, wouldn't it? No, it is NOT.

For several months Sumitomo BANK has been working against closure because of a \$2.6 BILLION loss. The exact amount, give or take a billion \$\$, is about what the Bush Brigade used on falsification of a certain GOLD CERTIFICATE CONTRACT.

Next look at the increases in "copper losses": **44 PERCENT!** This is the exact amount of increasing interest owing on the Certificate—compounded!

Next, you will find that just about every Bush transaction of the "color of treason" Brigade will have Merrill Lynch & Co. SOMEWHERE IN THE DEALINGS.

Is this some dreamed-up insight by a certain Commander? No, I, months ago, asked E.J. to follow up on hidden Sumitomo activities and offer the President of the Sumitomo Bank an opportunity to bail out that organization. Oops! The gentleman was pleasant and finally said he couldn't do anything and then abruptly hung up the phone. Still think there aren't any BIG POWER PLAYS GOING ON WITH, ONCE AGAIN, INNOCENT PARTIES GETTING DESTROYED IN THE CROSSFIRE? DO YOU ALSO STILL THINK THAT GOLD CERTIFICATE BONUS CONTRACT IS A FIGMENT OF INSANE IMAGININGS?

ILLINOIS POWER COMPANY

"When it rains, it pours," is the old saying and perhaps it might be so, in fact.

V.K. Durham, sole owner of the "Contract" above, now lawfully owns the Illinois Power *Utility*—or at the least, \$3 BILLION of it. The courts didn't bother to even respond to her petitions and finally default, a deposit acceptance against the default ruling—and she is in the Utility business.

The bankers, the politicians and now, the Court involved are just laughing and stonewalling! This also all goes back to silver certificates.

In digging out information it now comes to light that this particular UTILITY UNLAWFULLY is owned by Foreign Corporations. Moreover, it has spun off MANY other companies—also FOREIGN and based in mostly the Cayman Islands and Delaware. These would be something like "*Illinova*". It would seem there is no end to their intrigue in the circles of the Elite. Ah indeed, the liens are quite well done and totally LEGALAND LAWFUL and that part of the program is not even in question. The point, however, is that there is an unwritten law on your judicial system books which, as stated by Gerry Spence is: "This axiom, like all great axioms, is simply stated: *LITTLE PEOPLE ARE ENTITLED TO LITTLE JUSTICE*."

THE SILKWOOD CASE

Gerry was referring to the Silkwood case of infamy. However, it should be noted that Gerry WON the case but, so far, no "winnings" have been garnered by the ones who WON.

Ah, but the courts never MENTION that little rule of "inserted" law: Little People are Entitled to Little Justice. YOUR rightfully owned government with all its systems—BELONGS TO YOU-THE-PEOPLE! How is it that you just laugh at the political antics, shake your heads and turn away to your fate in the crockpot?

It is said that this most important presidential election of all elections, next Tuesday, is expected to draw the smallest crowd of voters IN ALL HISTORY. No, I certainly do NOT blame you for not voting for it is true that any of the candidates who run in the TWO PARTY SYSTEM of merged ONE-NESS, are totally corrupt and evil and, therefore, whoever wins is the DANGEROUS EVIL ONE because it would appear he somehow has achieved total POWER. But has he? No, he is simply the more OBVIOUS puppet. THE FUTURE IS UP TO YOU!

Now, to respond to another constantly asked question: "What is happening with arrested 'Bo' Gritz?"

[QUOTING, The Orlando Sentinel, 10-30-96:]

SURVIVALIST BO GRITZ DENIES ROLE IN KIDNAPPING PLOT

ENFIELD, Conn.—Right-wing survivalist James "Bo" Gritz pleaded not guilty Tuesday to attempted kidnapping charges stemming from his efforts to help a woman involved in a child custody battle. Gritz and his son, James R. Gritz, who also pleaded not guilty, were arrested Sept. 30 outside a school attended by one of Linda Wiegand's children. Her husband has custody of their two children.

[END OF QUOTING]

So, what makes this anything but an open and shut case? Because it is also reported that Gritz "just happened" to be at the very place indicated with pictures of the children IN HIS PERSONAL POCKET. It is also interesting that the men were in Connecticut whilst Bo lives in Sandy Valley, NEVADA. He said

he was looking at a "car" which was for sale on the street. There are a lot of coincidences, I assume, but this one does stretch it a bit. Why would he be looking for a sale car in Connecticut on the same street as would be children whose pictures are in his pocket—half a nation distant from where he lives?

Will Gerry Spence represent Bo? Who knows? You asked what is going on and this is what is going on. I do not longer "know" Mr. Gritz so have no interest in his ongoing escapades.

Let us look at another HIDDEN message:

[QUOTING, Associated Press, 10-30-96:]

DEMOCRAT LINKED TO FOREIGN MONEY GIVES TESTIMONY

WASHINGTON—Democratic Party fund-raiser John HUANG [H: (Vietnamese)], criticized by Republicans for soliciting foreign-linked political contributions, was questioned in a closed session Tuesday in a civil suit AGAINST THE COMMERCE DEPARTMENT. [H: Do NOT miss this, readers, for this is not some investigation into political campaign contributions—it is concerning shady and unlawful dealings of one RON BROWN in commercial payoffs.] U.S. District Judge Royce Lamberth said a videotape of the testimony could be shown publicly. Huang was giving a deposition in a suit against the Commerce Department by Judicial Watch, a conservative activist group. Larry Klayman, a lawyer for Judicial Watch, said Huang was being evasive, but Assistant U.S. Attorney Bruce Hegyi, representing the Commerce Department, said Huang was responding *to almost* all the questions.

[H: And just WHO do you think will get in the last ruling (in favor of) the U.S. Attorneys? Come on, readers, the facts are dumped all over you in confetti-style distractors. Vietnam politicians BOUGHT Secretary of Commerce RON BROWN. And, it became necessary to murder the Secretary when the incidents came to light. It is all in a day's work for the demolition squads. Go back now and CAREFULLY READ *Fire From The Sky*!]

[END OF QUOTING]

Now, with these things, as above, in mind I would like to share a writing from Mistress Ann Beam assisted by Sandy Ence and Tammy Alley which came a few months ago and bashed me and Doris in insult after insult as if truth is somehow made different by ridicule and/or lies. I want to share it for I want MY SCRIBE to get the picture here and realize that I have never misled her nor, intentionally, anyone who reads this paper. The information of just who all participated in this cute dissertation may well be in question but I assure Sandy and Tammy that they were given full credit for input. How do we KNOW it was a FAX from Ann? Because it came directly FROM Leon Fort's fax machine which was checked on INSTANTLY AFTER RECEIVING THE DOCUMENT ON THE *CONTACT* MACHINE.

[QUOTING:]

MY FINAL DAYS AS A GRUB

were spent in Sola, Uam, on the 3rd planet from the 7th from Alcyone if you count the other six as orbiting around it.

They don't, of course, but one of the locals on Planet Three decided to drum up a batcha new believers to milk lots a belief-juice from. So she pretended she was a no-show spacelord named Hatonn. Hatonn in Ubangi means here-to-save-you. In English it means the opposite of Hats Off, but she wanted a wider audience.

Actually she wasn't a no-show spacelord named Hatonn. She was a plagiarist embezzler named in several lawsuits later on. Her worst crime, however, was a mishmash of illiterate ravings purporting to warn the reader what's *really* about to happen on Planet Three. "Hatonn" then proceeds to quote from more industrious people's homework azzo it were his own, while knocking all other sources including the one he's quoting from as errant, misleading, inaccurate, and spiritually inferior. This always leads to Hatonn painting himself as the only true harbinger of good, and the <u>reader</u> as damned. Each item and issue of mishmash therefore starts out as the model of paternal omniscience, and ends up cursing the very ones it sets out to save.

"Ye hath strayed!" it raves illiterately, in pseudo biblical Ubangi. (Which interestingly reads like braindamaged English.) Maybe that was ok, since most Planet Three believers were raving illiterates anyway. —SOMEONE bought the papers. [H: This last sentence is most amusing of all; these people do NOT buy the paper but rather filch it from carriers—but they certainly are our most AVID READERS!]

[Information at bottom of document:]

Ann Beam, President Infinite Balance, Inc. Leon Fort, Owner Operator also Research Assistant to and Agent for: America West Publishers, George Greed, President and America West Distributors, Disire Stevens Green, President

Reporter for: Earth Research

c 1996 Earth Research

[END OF QUOTING]

I'm quite sure that there was a LOT of laughter and thigh slapping going on as this was orchestrated— BUT HE WHO LAUGHS FIRST DOES NOT USUALLY LAUGH *LAST*!

Today, I suppose, is Ann Beam Day for it is Halloween and it is said by people who KNOW (from

Tucson, Az.) that Annie is/was a member of a Witch's Coven there. She now presents herself into every facet of other people's affairs, including lawyers for Green (you know, "agent of"). Leon fell for the sucker-deal and ever since life is just not too happy. In the end the TRUTH will OUT and the LIGHT WILL SHINE ON THE GUILTY.

By the way, readers, when I present something to you AS TOLD TO ME BY SOMEONE ELSE—I CAN ONLY QUALIFY IT AS "SOMEONE TOLD ME" OR "WE RECEIVED...", ETC. That in itself does not mean that I offer it as TRUTH but only as that which we received. I JUDGE NOT for the cycle of return will return to the sender in type of that which was sent forth—I do NOT need to judge. People judge for selves and usually follow-through with proof of their frailties. Perhaps we shall take up the letter Ann Beam SENT TO GERRY SPENCE about the Ekkers and his consideration for taking the singular California property case—having NOTHING remotely to do with one Ann Beam—but NOW PROV-ING A MAJOR CONSPIRACY ARRANGEMENT AMONG LAWYERS AND, YES, EVEN A JUDGE! Now Annie has generously given of her talents in affidavits which finish the PROOF. THANK YOU, ANNIE.

Now as one last reminder to Dharma, and you readers, as to how vicious can be the enemies of truth who take, and bash, and lie about you and TRUTH:

This comes from Robert E. Rhoads, father of Tammy Alley and Sandy Ence/Enz.

[QUOTING:]

Sept. 28, 1995

To Whom It May Concern;

Due to the vicious lies, manipulation and transgressions by Doris and E.J. Ekker, also spy Charles Neil, to have the Rod Ence family evicted from the ranch, please remove my name from your "*Contact*" list. Also include the tape list, journals and Gaia products, as I can no longer support an <u>operation</u> under such evil leadership as Doris and E.J. Ekker.

Thank you, Robert E. Rhoads P.O. Box 60 Victor, MT. 59875

[END OF QUOTING]

Support? With this kind of "support" who needs it? The fact that Rod Ence/Enz works directly for and with George Green and himself took over \$23,500 FROM THE INSTITUTE WHILE HE WAS *PRESIDENT* of same, smacks of collusion and CONSPIRACY—in my humble opinion and observation.

Salu and have a nice Satan's Day for THOSE DAYS ARE NUMBERED!

CHAPTER 13

BLACKOUTS!

[QUOTING, Part 4:]

<u>FIRE FROM THE SKY; PART VII</u> by Calvin C. Burgin

ENRON AND THE GODS OF POWER

Editor's note: Parts 1 2 & 3 were presented in previous journals.

Previously I wrote that Joseph Sutton, President of Enron Development of Houston, TX, was scheduled to be on the plane that crashed April 3, 1996, with Secretary of Commerce Ron Brown, but for some reason he missed the plane.

Let's look at Enron. Enron and Portland General Corporation have recently merged into the nation's largest integrated natural gas and electricity company. Enron already was the largest independent marketer of wholesale electricity in the world.

After the recent Bilderbergers' meeting in Canada the first of June, there was a rash of electric utility sales and mergers, as well as a continuing "outbreak" of power outages, air traffic control center computer crashes, and other oddities such as America Online and Netcom Internet facilities breaking down. There have been DOZENS, maybe hundreds, of local, unpublicized power outages. Not to mention the crash of TWA Flight 800, which has all the obvious appearances of being another scalar weapon attack.

Enron is an interesting part of this picture. It has reported assets of about \$13 billion. It has the largest electrical power transmission system in the Western Hemisphere and the second largest in the world. It has projects in China, Vietnam, the United Kingdom, Argentina, the Philippines, Guatemala, Colombia, Dominican Republic, Puerto Rico, Turkey, Italy, Jordan, Indonesia, India and probably others.

Enron is partners in Dabhol Power in India, with General Electric and Bechtel, where it has been having legal problems with the people of India. Enron survived eight legal challenges and threatened the political establishment. Many of the Indians do not want Enron, but Enron is determined they are going to get it, anyway. The Center for Holistic Studies in Bombay compiled a catalog of U.S. law violations by Enron and its Dabhol partners, Bechtel Enterprises Inc. and General Electric Co., dating back to 1931. "The Dabhol project, the center concluded, is nothing but another step in the U.S. Central Intelligence Agency's effort to impoverish the developing world." J. J. Irani, managing director of Tata Iron and Steel Co., referring to Enron's law violations, says "The rule of law is our precious gold metal; we cannot surrender it under any circumstances."

Pratap Chatterjee, a writer for *IPS* (which I assume is *International Press Service*?), wrote an article called "U.S.-India: Covert action and political clout help Enron win contracts." In it he revealed that Enron is a CIA asset.

"A number of U.S. Government agencies worked on helping Enron in the Department of Commerce's new advocacy centre. Several of them told me that the CIA had helped them get information, but the Commerce people themselves would not talk about it," David Sanger of the *New York Times* told *IPS*.

Two months after the U.S. military left Subic Bay in the Philippines, Enron took over the 28-megawatt power plant there as a result of the help of Ambassador to the Philippines Frank G. Wisner. Wisner is now Ambassador to India, where he helped Enron win a \$2.8 billion deal to build a power plant at the town of Dhabol, close to Bombay. The deal is under fire in the Indian press for bribery allegations, over-pricing, etc.

If you remember in earlier *Fire From the Sky* writings, Frank Wisner was one of the original CIA operatives who was a head of the Gehlen Nazi spy network converted to Operation Paperclip under Allen Dulles. He was also a head of the Phoenix Program in Vietnam, where he ran Air America. He was also involved with Boris Pash, Sidney Gottleib and Richard Bissell in what became the MK-ULTRA mindcontrol program.

However, that Frank Wisner "committed suicide" in 1965. The Frank Wisner now in India is his son.

The father helped overthrow the Guatemalan Government for the United Fruit Company, he helped overthrow the Iranian Government, and was involved in secret operations against Sukarno in Indonesia. This is the family the son grew up in, and the son goes out of his way to promote CIA interests. Wisner Jr. was formerly number three in the Pentagon.

In *Fire From the Sky Part VI*, I wrote about Joseph Swidler, Chairman of the Federal Power Commission, who was working with Secretary of Defense Robert McNamara and head of what is now FEMA, Buford Ellington, especially on the New York City power blackouts. Also working for the Federal Power Commission on these blackouts was Kenneth Lay, who quit and started his own company called **Enron**. Lay had worked in the Pentagon during the Vietnam war, under President Nixon.

Lay now lives in Houston in River Oaks, not far from his close friend George Bush.

New Yorker Magazine writer Seymour Hersh wrote an article about Neil and Marvin Bush trying to influence Kuwaiti officials to favor Enron to rebuild a power plant destroyed during Bush's Persian Gulf War. Current Governor of Texas George W. Bush, in 1988, telephoned Argentina's Public Works Minister Rodolfo Terragno to try to get him to award a contract to Enron, as reported by Terragno in *The Nation* weekly magazine. Enron eventually won the bid under Carlos Menem, another Bush friend.

Also on the Enron payroll is Thomas Kelly, director of operations for the Pentagon during the Gulf War. A member of the board of directors is Wendy Gramm, a former chairman of the Commodity Futures Trading Commission and a senior staffer in the White House under Ronald Reagan. Consultants to Enron include Bush's Secretary of State James Baker and his Commerce Secretary Robert Mosbacher.

On July 25, 1996, Ronnie Chan was elected to Enron's Board of Directors. He is chairman of the Hang Lung Development Group of Hong Kong, chairman of Springfield Bank and Trust Limited of Gibraltar, and serves on the board of Standard Chartered Bank in London, Korn/Ferry International of Los Angeles

and Northern Telecom Ltd. of Ontario, Canada. He is a director of the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and a director of the Hong Kong Real Estate Developers Association.

Do you think Joe Sutton of Enron knew beforehand not to get on Ron Brown's plane?

ONTARIO HYDRO

Earlier in *Fire From the Sky* I wrote about the first massive power outage, which occurred in the area of Ontario Hydro, the original electrical power utility, at Niagara Falls. Ontario Hydro is across James Bay from Hydro Quebec, the other facility we've talked about. Ontario Hydro was started by help from Nikola Tesla. Ontario Hydro owns 69 generating stations and 247 dams. It owns nuclear power generating facilities as well as hydro power and coal, and produces items such as tritium for markets. Tritium is exempt from the nuclear control treaties.

William Farlinger, Chairman of Ontario Hydro, visited Enron in Houston two years ago.

The *New World Order Intelligence Update* newsletter said that it learned from reliable sources that "high on the agenda at this secret Bilderberg meeting was the privatization sale of the massive governmentowned Ontario Hydro electricity production and distribution utility, a potential source of 'pure money machine profits' for key investors." (Web site address is http://www.inforamp.net/~jwhitley.) Another subject high on the agenda was a planned Unilateral Declaration of Independence in Quebec. According to Serge Monast, this is planned for early 1997, along with a massive power blackout planned for the whole East Coast, including Washington, D.C.

MAURICE FREDERICK STRONG

One of the electric power utilities now for sale is Ontario Hydro. Enron has been negotiating to purchase Ontario Hydro. Until recently, the Chairman of Ontario Hydro was Maurice Strong. Strong is a member of the Trilateral Commission and the Bilderbergers, and is a trustee of the Rockefeller Foundation and a member of the Council of Rockefeller University. He is also a member of the Commission on Global Governance and is Chairman of the Earth Council. He has received the Order of Canada and is a member of the Queen's Privy Council of Canada. He was Secretary-General of the 1992 UN Conference on Environment and Development in Rio, and of the 1972 Stockholm Conference on the Human Environment. He is a member of the World Commission on Environment and Development.

Strong, a close friend of the Dalai Lama, has a huge ranch (63,000 acres) in Colorado called the Baca Grande Ranch in the Sangre de Cristo Mountains, where he has set up a mecca for oddball religions. Located on the site are The Spiritual Life Institute and Nada Hermitage Retreat Center, a Carmelite Catholic Monastery; the Crestone Mountain Zen Center, a Zen Buddhist Monastery and Retreat Center; The Haidakhandi Universal Ashram; the Sri Aurobindo Learning Center; the San Luis Valley Tibetan Project; the Samten Ling Retreat Center; and a group called Subud, whose aim is to "develop inner and outer consciousness". These groups are established or supported by the Manitou Foundation, a private foundation of Hanne and Maurice Strong. One of their purposes is to create a Land Preservation Program. To put it bluntly, they want to turn society into a pre-industrial, live-off-the-land society. This is not necessarily an evil goal under some circumstances, but Paradise dictated by these people is NOT Para-

dise.

Strong has been under-secretary general of the United Nations six times, and is currently competing for the position of Secretary General of the United Nations, a position also desired by George Bush and Gorbachev. Butros-Butros Ghali, current Secretary General, wants also to keep his position.

Some statements made by Strong are: "It is clear that current lifestyles and consumption patterns of the affluent middle class—involving high meat intake, consumption of large amounts of frozen and convenience foods, use of fossil fuels, appliances, home and workplace air-conditioning, and suburban housing—are not sustainable. A shift is necessary," says Strong. "[It] will require a vast strengthening of the multilateral system, including the United Nations...We must now forge a new 'Earth Ethic' which will inspire all peoples and nations to join in a new global partnership of North, South, East and West."

Executive Intelligence Review, May 31, 1996, p. 79, (quoting:)

•Maurice Strong named to White House tech panel. The Toronto *Globe & Mail* reported May 14 that Canadian arch-genocidalist Maurice Strong has been appointed co-chairman, with Vice President Al Gore, of the White House Conference on Technology. Strong is already serving as special adviser to World Bank President James Wolfensohn.

The *Globe & Mail* claims that Maurice Strong is "now perhaps the most influential Canadian in Washington." Strong organized the United Nations' 1992 conference in Rio de Janeiro to promote a global environmentalist dictatorship, and was the official secretary general at the proceedings. Immediately thereafter, given charge of Ontario Hydro, the largest public utility in North America, Strong fired 10,000 highly skilled workers within a year, and canceled all nuclear and hydroelectric energy development projects.

Strong told the *Globe & Mail*, "I'm now working on a major project to 'green' private investment—to set up voluntary guidelines and criteria for private investment in various sectors, forestry, tourism, mining, oil and gas." Commenting upon rumors that he could become the next secretary general of the United Nations, Strong said, "I do not have to head it, in order to save it." [End quoting]

HYDRO SPAWN

Hydro Quebec and Ontario Hydro have spawned many smaller organizations. Ontario Hydro, AT&T, and Lockheed Martin are among the corporations supporting the International Cooperative for Environmental Leadership, whose Chairperson is Angela Schurig of Texas Instruments and Treasurer is Roger J. Daly of Ontario Hydro. They are instrumental in promoting the global warming hoax. Ontario and Quebec Hydro are involved in (and creators of some) projects using satellites such as the GPS system for monitoring and controlling power distribution and outages. They are using photogrammetry and airborne laser profiling and multi-spectra imaging techniques, digital mapping, remote sensing, spatiotemporal data modelling, integrated data image processing and image mapping and such. In plain English, they are creators of and contributors to programs for identifying, tracking and controlling every person on Earth. Not what you would think your local friendly power company should be involved in, is it?

Two former Hydro Quebec employees quit and set up a company called M3i, developed while they were at Hydro Quebec. The directors of the company had close ties with the ruling party in Quebec, and with

a French company that was reported to be involved in industrial espionage and bribery. Air Canada President Pierre Jeanniot was reported to have made about \$2.3 million on a stock deal with M3i. He was involved with Mario Bertrand, who was a board member of both M3i and Hydro Quebec, and chief of staff to former Quebec premier Robert Bourassa. Former Liberal minister Paul Goveil and former president of the Parti Quebecois' constitutional committee, Raymond Langlois, were exposed by the *Globe and Mail* as being involved with Royal Aviation Inc. in "controversial stock-option plans" for the directors of M3i.

M3i sells a Distribution Management System that "has been installed in many utilities around the world. The system is designed to help the restoration of a network after an outage for electric, gas, water and telecommunication utilities. The software also enables the graphic display of a network's configuration thus facilitating its management." Another product is the M3i Vehicle Tracking System for "real-time fleet monitoring and tracking," and M3i Skyview "to offer a graphic display of vehicle locations on your base maps. The vehicular/client part is resident in a mobile computer which connects to a position acquisition device such as GPS, Differential GPS (DGPS) and Dead Reckoning. The mobile computer, automatically or on request, relays the vehicle's position to the fleet dispatch station or control center using M3i RadioLink RF connectivity." M3i has operations in Ottawa, Atlanta, Pittsburgh, Portland, San Diego, Birmingham (UK), Hamburg, Singapore, Tokyo and Shanghai. "The largest business unit concentrates on electric utility distribution and dispatch operations." A wholly-owned subsidiary, ROADsoft Solutions Inc., "produces public safety systems." One of their systems is M3i Road Sign Recognition. Why does a power utility company need a fancy road sign recognition program? Tony Gilsig of M3i said that they started in 1990, and by 1994 had revenues of just under \$20 million. Their first customer was the City of Los Angeles. "Primary applications have been in emergency response, vehicular control and engineering systems relating to managing electricity, water, and traffic flow. Installations can be found in New York, Chicago, Scotland, England, China, Indonesia, and Bahrain. The Tokyo Metropolitan Police currently uses 36 screens and a control room of over 100 control centre users to monitor traffic in real time."

OTHER CONTROL GROUPS

As a result of the 1965 New York power blackout, several organizations were established to deal with major blackouts, one of which was the Western System Coordinating Council.

A major power outage hit all the WSCC area on July 2, 1996. The press releases stated that it affected "at least eight states" but the internal memos said it affected at least 15 states. President Clinton ordered the Department of Energy to investigate WSCC and to make a report on what caused the outage. The WSCC issued a report that stated the outage was caused by "a tree which grounded a transmission line from the Jim Bridger power plant in Rock Springs, Wyo. Friday, the Department of Energy said the outage was preventable and steps have been taken to minimize the risk of future recurrence. Charlie Curtis, DOE deputy secretary said, 'The system cannot be fail-safe. Every system is vulnerable, but this type of occurrence should have been manageable.'"

Curtis said "steps have already been taken by the Coordinating Council to prevent recurrence." This press release was issued August 7, and three days later another massive power outage hit the same WSCC area, covering at least 6 states, from San Diego to Oregon, and into Texas. Parts of Canada were also affected.

The 7-29-96 *Austin American Statesman* had an article about a new power outage reporting system set up here in Austin called PowerLink. If we have a power outage, we call the PowerLink phone number (322-9100) to report it, and a computer in Omaha, Nebraska, answers. It is owned by Twenty First Century Communications, which provides the same service to 20 other power providers. It is one of those curses of modern technology where the computer answers "if you want such and such, press 1. If you want a different such and such, press 2..." This type of computer consolidation and control is going on all over the nation.

(Quoting:) ·HYDRO QUEBEC, ONTARIO HYDRO PART OF INTERNATIONAL CONSULTING CONSORTIUM—Southern California Edison became the first U.S. utility to join the E-7 group of utilities. E-7 is an informal association of utility executives that was started in 1992 in preparation for the U.N. Conference on Environment and development (UNCED) to develop a strategy and recommendations on power sector issues in developing countries. It now operates not only as an advisor to developing country governments and institutions but also as a network for sharing expertise and improving cooperation among member utilities. Members include representatives from Electricite de France, the Canadian utilities Hydro Quebec and Ontario Hydro, Tokyo Electric Power Co. and Kansai Electric Power Co. of Japan, RWE AG of Germany, and Ente Nazionale per l'Energia Elettrica of Italy.

The group focuses on energy issues related to the environment and development with an interest in influencing foreign aid investments in the power sector. The E-7 established a "Network of Expertise for the Global Environment" to work with financing institutions, the United Nations, and other organizations to develop projects with an environment-development link. (End quoting)

Car stopper', wireless radio latest law enforcement tools, by Matthew Fordahl, *AP; Austin American Statesman*, Aug. 11, 1996, (quoting:) CHULA VISTA, Calif.—A stolen van packed with illegal immigrants speeds down a busy interstate highway, but police don't even think about a high-speed pursuit.

Instead, they push a button.

Using technology that will begin to be tested next month, officers would be able to stop a car in its tracks by sending an electrical charge that disables a vehicle's electronics and shuts off its engine.

The "car stopper" was announced by federal officials last week as a way to employ technology first developed during the Cold War against criminals who try to evade capture by speeding away from authorities. [What does the Cold War have to do with someone fleeing the cops? Is something out of place here?]...Also last week, local and federal authorities announced they will be able to communicate with each other for the first time using a common dispatch program linking separate radio systems.

The wireless network, which has been used by the Navy since 1989, is being tested by the California Highway Patrol, the U.S. Border Patrol, the San Diego and Chula Vista police departments and a dozen other agencies.... (End quoting)

If a cop can point a thing at your car and kill all the power in it, can, say, a satellite, with the push of a button, kill all the power in a whole state? The answer is yes, and much more.

As I wrote the last paragraphs of this article on August 31, 1996, a storm came through Austin, causing multiple power outages. Let there be light.

Calvin Burgin

...to be continued.

CHAPTER 14

BLACKOUTS!

[QUOTING, PART 5:]

FIRE FROM THE SKY; PART VII by Calvin C. Burgin

ANNOUNCING: COMING SOON TO YOUR NEIGHBORHOOD: MAJOR POWER OUTAGES!

Now is the time to prepare. Here are some tips.

In a recent power outage in San Francisco, it quickly became nearly impossible to find flashlights, batteries, and candles as all stores quickly sold out.

You should also have a manual (not electric!) can opener and a wind-up or battery-powered clock. Don't forget lighters or matches.

A battery-powered short wave radio is a good idea, as well as a battery-powered radio monitor capable of monitoring your local power company, police and rescue frequencies. I have noticed that power line repair crews tend to go where they get the most complaints, and you can tell where they are working by listening to their radio. You cannot rely on normal local radio and TV broadcasts, because they do not know what is happening unless someone calls in, but the call-ins quickly swamp them and jam the phone lines. They often are not allowed to broadcast what they know, and of course, in a large outage, they may be off the air. With a shortwave radio and a monitor, you will not feel so shut off from the world.

Even better in some instances is to find a friend who is a Ham radio operator, or get your own license.

I often see suggested emergency supply lists that recommend various types of emergency foods. This is nonsense. Food is NEVER an emergency, with possibly exceptions such as for babies. In a real emergency, food will be the last thing on your mind. Food is a necessary concern for long term disasters, but not for dire emergencies.

The most important need in a dire emergency, right after first aid and sometimes before, is COMMUNI-CATIONS.

WHAT TO DO DURING AN OUTAGE

A power outage is usually not a dire emergency, unless there is some other disaster involved such as an earthquake. One of the most important factors in a simple power outage is keeping comfortable, not too hot nor too cold. Small, battery operated fans are helpful during heat. Extra clothing for cold (you knew that).

One of the first things to do after an outage is turn off all electrical appliances. Better still, turn off your main circuit breaker, because it is too easy to forget to turn off the air conditioner, the natural gas heater blower, the refrigerator, the freezer, etc. Most motors require about 70% to 300% more power on startup than when running, so for instance a 300-watt blower motor might require 500 watts to start.

When the power comes back on, there will be a sudden demand from the refrigerator motor, the freezer motor, the air conditioner or heater blower motor, lights, hot water heater and so, on, and the same for your neighbor, and for his neighbor and on down the block, resulting in a huge demand all at the same time if everybody leaves their switches turned on. This can blow out the power company's transformer again.

GENERATORS

An emergency power generator may be a good idea, depending on your situation. A 7,000-watt generator may be perfect for your needs, but will probably cost about \$1,200 or more. For some of us, who MAY have a car not worth that much, spending \$1,200 on a generator does not make good sense. If you live in an apartment, you probably have the most need for a generator but the least opportunity, and if you live in the country on a farm with trees for shade and firewood, you have the least need but the best opportunity. Life is choices.

First you need to figure out how much power you need. You can look on your appliances for the wattage rating and add the wattages together. Use the peak wattage figure. If it is not given, add 70% to the watts given. If watts are not given on the appliance, the power formula is:

Power (watts) = Current (amps) x Voltage (volts).

If the appliance lists only the amps, then you can multiply amps times voltage to find watts. For instance, my juicing machine lists 6.7 amps, but does not list watts. So 6.7 times 120 volts, the standard household voltage, gives about 800 watts. Some other average wattages are:

Electric heat, 4,000 - 6,000 watts Gas or oil heat fan - 500 watts Kitchen range - 12,000 watts Hot water heater - 4,500 Clothes dryer - 4,350 Microwave - 650 watts Refrigerator - 425 watts Color TV - 115 watts Black and white TV - 75 watts Toaster - 1,100 watts Coffee maker - 850 watts Hair dryer - 700 watts Vacuum cleaner - 700 watts Blender - 290 watts Radio - 75 watts 60 watt light bulb (guess!) Clock - 2 watts

These are general figures; some color TV's are 500 watts, a refrigerator/freezer may be 2500 watts, some microwave ovens are 1000 watts, etc. The largest wattage appliances are the electric range, electric heat, clothes dryer and hot water heater. These also usually require 240 volts. Keep in mind that the above items that have an electric motor will require about 70% more (or double, to be safe) wattage during startup. For instance, a refrigerator at 425 plus 70% (290) will require about 700 or 725 watts at startup.

FIGURING YOUR NEEDS

Let's suppose you need:

Lamps (2 at 60-watt ea.)	120			
Color TV			115	
Radio				75
Refrigerator		700		
Freezer			700	
Microwave oven		650		
Air conditioner, 10000 BTU 3000				

The above would require a 5,500 watt generator (do NOT try to start everything at once!). A good generator this size may cost nearly \$3,000.00. Whoa! Maybe we should re-think this.

We can cut the air conditioner and substitute a couple of small fans at 50 watts each, cut the microwave oven and, pain and agony!, cut the color TV. We can substitute a battery operated radio (and battery operated TV, if desperate). This brings the requirement down to 1,620 watts. A 2,000-watt generator should do nicely. You can find one for around \$300. WARNING— at that price, it will probably be LOUD. If you live in the country, this might be OK. If you live in a suburb, you might should consider a more expensive, but quieter generator. The quieter ones are around 50 to 60 db, the mediums around 60 to 70 db, and the louder ones are around 68 or more db. The quieter they are, the more they cost.

Another consideration is how much fuel is used. A smaller generator of 1000 watts will run about 3 hours on a gallon of gas. Be careful when reading the manufacturer's literature, all companies rate their generators fuel consumption based on running at 1/2 the rated load capacity. This is misleading, but they all do it. So if you are going to be running the generator at full capacity, cut their listed hours-per-gallon figures in half.

A 2,000-watt generator will run about one hour per gallon of gas. Remember: some of these in about the \$300 price range are LOUD and will keep you awake and make your neighbors very unhappy.

Since neither the freezer nor the refrigerator run all the time, you can run one for a while then switch over to the other, or perhaps you have a combination that uses less wattage than these figures and perhaps you can get your requirements down to around 1,000-watts. You can get a reasonably quiet 1,000-watt generator in the \$500 or \$600 price range.

Perhaps it would be better to plan for battery-powered lights and fans, freeze-dried foods instead of a freezer full of perishables, tins of canned heat instead of electric skillets, etc. I got some battery-operated fans mail order from Johnson Smith Company, PO Box 25500, Bradenton, FL 34206-5500. Their "Portable Hurricane" is really neat, and \$27.00.

These figures are general, they will vary with the manufacturer and seller, and by shopping flea markets, garage sales, pawn shops and such you can find bargains.

Long term outages of weeks or months are beyond the scope of this article, but are also a very real possibility. Plan ahead.

A BIG DON'T

NEVER PLUG A GENERATOR INTO THE HOUSEHOLD WIRING. The only exception is when you have a professionally installed double-pole double-throw transfer switch and sub-panel installed between your house wiring and the meter. This isolates your household wiring from the outside wiring. The current coming in to your house comes through a step-down transformer which lowers high voltage into the 240/ 120 volts you use. If you hook a generator to it, the transformer runs backwards and acts as a step-up transformer, stepping up your 120 or 240 volts into a much higher voltage. A line man trying to repair your line will expect it to be dead and your generator may kill him! Or if he successfully repairs the line and turns on the power, it will blow up your generator.

power chart for generator ***in folder***

Power your appliances from the generator with an electrical extension cord. The right size cord depends on the size of the wire and the length of the wire (and other things that create resistance). The resistance drop (voltage drop caused by resistance) should be under 2%. If it is more than 2%, you should use a larger wire or reduce the current. Attached are the charts that tell what is the maximum safe length for various size wires and current.

Test your system before you need it, to be sure you have all the right wires, connectors, etc.

CHAPTER 15

PART VI

MORE FROM: FIRE FROM THE SKY

EDITOR'S NOTE: This is a return to PART VI, continued from journal #179. We interrupted PART VI to publish a "time important" topic called "BLACKOUT" from PART VII—out of sequence. Part VI is an entire volume available from Mary Snell; (P.O. Box 6708, Texarkana, TX 75505-6708). [Part 1-39 is CONTACT'S numbering system for breaking this down into segments fitting our printing priorities.

[Quoting, part 39:]

<u>FIRE FROM THE SKY, PART VI</u> <u>THE KILLING CONTINUES</u> by Calvin Burgin

THE PATRIOT MISSILE HOAX

SCUD PATRIOT

Many of you will remember the stories during the recent Desert Storm Gulf War of how we rushed to rescue Israel from the vicious Scud missiles by deploying our Patriot anti-missile system. President Bush bragged about how wonderfully they performed, with a near-perfect record. The American public cheered and waved yellow ribbons and swelled with pride.

But for those who paid attention to what was said, there were obvious problems. One man was listening to a congressional interview with a high-ranking military man who said that many of the Scud missiles were armed with concrete! *Concrete*?

I am reminded of the stories of World War II about making tanks and airplanes out of paper and baling wire, not to harm the enemy but to *deceive* the enemy. Is there more to this Patriot/Scud missile story? If deception was involved, who was being deceived?

The general media reported stories of how wonderfully the Patriot missiles performed, while "experts" were saying just the opposite. Moshe Arens, Israel's Defense Minister in the Gulf War; Gen. Dan Shomron, chief of staff of the Israel Defense Force during the war; and Haim Asa, a member of an Israeli technical team that worked with the Patriot missile during the war; all say that only one or possibly NONE of the Scuds was intercepted by the Patriots. ("Scud Missile's Success in Gulf War Is a Myth, Israel Officials Say" by Tim Weiner, *New York Times*, only date recorded on clipping is 20 Nov.)

A New York Times article said, "Mr. Arens, asked how many Scuds were intercepted by Patriots, said

that 'the number is minuscule and is in fact meaningless.' All concurred with a 1991 report by the Israeli Air Force concluding that 'there is no evidence of even a single successful intercept' although there is 'circumstantial evidence for one possible intercept.''

The article further quotes Robert Stein, vice president of Raytheon (the manufacturer of the Patriots), as saying "The numbers of Scuds successfully intercepted are small in any case and very small changes in criteria can swing the results from one extreme to another." The article states "an intercept is not just a direct hit." In other words, a miss is counted as a hit. Using those criteria, Bush could state that "the Patriot's record was nearly perfect."

The article said: "Defense experts outside the Government say there were 16 engagements between Iraqi Scuds and Patriots in the night sky over Israel in January and February 1991."

The article ends, "'There is no way to be sure in a close encounter whether the Patriot got it [the Scud] or missed it,' said Peter D. Zimmerman, a physicist at the Center for Strategic and International Studies who has studied the evidence. 'The data are lousy.'"

A *Knight-Ridder Tribune News Service* article (*Austin American-Statesman*, Sep. 30, 1992, C20.) entitled "**Patriot more miss than hit, study says**" said this, (quote:)

Patriot missiles shot down four Iraqi Scud missiles during the Persian Gulf War, far fewer than the 41 successes in 42 engagements claimed at war's end by the Defense Department, according to the latest analysis of the missile's combat performance.

In a shot-by-shot review of each missile launch and ground damage reports, General Accounting Office investigators found that Iraqi missiles were intercepted in only 9 percent of the Patriot engagements.

The GAO is the investigative watchdog for Congress, and the audit of Patriot performance was done on behalf of the House Government Operations Committee.

In releasing the report Tuesday, committee Chairman John Conyers Jr., D-Mich., said: "We have watched the claims for this missile drop from 100 percent during the war to 96 percent in official statements to Congress, to 80, 70, 52, 25, and now we're under 10 percent and dropping."

"The public and Congress were misled," Conyers declared.

Maj. Peter Keating, an Army spokesman, said: "The GAO report confirms what the Army has said all along, that the available evidence will never present an absolute determination. This was a war zone, not a test range."

The Pentagon benefited enormously from the initial impression of a near-perfect missile defense. Congress increased the Patriot budget by hundreds of millions of dollars last year and pumped an additional \$1 billion into the "Star Wars" global missile-defense program.

The GAO report caps a month-long debate, highlighted by hearings before Conyers's committee, in which

independent experts have criticized the Army for inflating the Patriot's wartime performance. (End quote)

An Associated Press article (Austin American-Statesman, August 16, 1993, A5) entitled "U. S. exaggerated successes during the Gulf War, report says" had this to say, (quote:)

The U.S. military vastly overstated the success of its airstrikes during the Persian Gulf War, a new congressional report says.

"This was the greatest challenge and the greatest failure of the intelligence community in Operation Desert Storm," said the House Armed Services Committee report that will be released today.

...The Army's estimate of Iraqi tanks destroyed was "astoundingly exaggerated," said Rep. Norman Sisisky, D-Va., chairman of the Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee that wrote the report.

The report said the U.S. Central Command, which was in charge of the overall war effort, had estimated that 388 of the 846 tanks in Iraq's three Republican Guard armored divisions were destroyed before the ground war began.

But thousands of reconnaissance photos—taken by a U-2 spy plane that flew across large parts of the battle zone the day after the war ended—showed that no more than 215, and possibly as few as 166, tanks in the three Republican Guard divisions were destroyed.

The report said that U.S. military exaggerations also were evident in other areas:

The number of Iraqi naval vessels reported sunk was three times greater than the size of the Iraqi navy.

The number of Scud missile launchers reported to have been destroyed in air attacks was four times greater than Iraq's known inventory.

Nonetheless, the overall U.S. intelligence collection effort during the war was good, the report said.

The report singled out for praise three notable successes: The J-Stars jets that made radar images of ground targets; an advanced radar system used in the gulf by U-2 spy planes; and the Pioneer drone, or unpiloted, aerial vehicle, that provided battlefield imagery.

Imagery from the Pioneers was used in assessing battlefield damage, targeting of Iraqi forces and in surveillance, and, the report said, they were "so good, many more could have been used." (End quote)

The above states that we were using U-2 aircraft. Do you remember the U-2 incident with President Eisenhower during the 1950s? Why are we still using 1950s technology to assess battlefield damage, haven't we been told that we have all kinds of satellites up there that can read newspapers from miles up? Haven't the National Reconnaissance Office and the U. S. Space Command and such spent *billions* of dollars putting up satellites? Why didn't they just download hundreds or thousands of pictures and maps of every detail of the situation? Just wondering.

In light of the above, let us examine the following article (Austin (American-Statesman, August 17, 1993,

A5.), (quote:)

Report shows information kept from gulf commanders, by Patrick J. Sloyan.

WASHINGTON—A congressional report released Monday says U.S. Air Force and Army troop commanders routinely were denied satellite photographs and other imagery of Iraqi forces during the Persian Gulf War.

"One of the clearest examples of an intelligence failure during Operation Desert Storm was the inability to provide intelligence quickly and reliably to war fighters throughout the theater of operations," the House Armed Services Committee study said.

Crucial information was "hoarded " by headquarters staff, who also kept "attractive" map overlays intended for combat units, the report said. The 50 map overlays to be used with satellite and other intelligence imagery of target areas were shipped from Washington, but only five got past Gen. Norman Schwarzkopf's headquarters in Riyadh. "The rest simply disappeared within the headquarters where the displays were found attractive," the report said.

The study, based on extensive interviews and top-secret documents, was completed in 1992. But congressional sources said objections by the Central Intelligence Agency and the Defense Intelligence Agency delayed release of the report that also said:

President Bush's aides diverted a reconnaissance plane monitoring an Iraqi attack on Khafji to search for Scud missile launchers because of demands by Israel.

Despite billions of dollars spent on new satellites, no wide-angle observation systems were available to show the sprawling 30,000-square-mile battlefield. The CIA was "short-sighted" in scrapping the SR-71 Blackbird spy plane and wide-angle satellites at the same time. Instead, Schwarzkopf saw only views likened to "searching New York City by looking through a soda straw."

For all its satellites and sensors, **it was 80-year-old archeological manuscripts in the Library of Congress** that proved "very helpful" in establishing that the Iraqi desert soil would support the massive allied armored forces. (End quote)

Were they afraid that the Desert Storm armies would sink into the sand? Archeological manuscripts?!! What are they talking about? I saw on TV a pilot being interviewed who said they used road maps in their laps and followed roads and rivers to find their targets (on Discovery Channel, June 15, 1996).

Remember that the Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff at the time all this lying and killing was occurring was Colin Powell, who was being considered for running for President or Vice-President.

President Clinton is no better than Bush. For instance, Clinton ordered a missile attack on Saddam Hussein at a time when Clinton's popularity was sagging, and bragged that he had severely crippled Iraq's intelligence capacity. Yet the *New York Times News Service* said, (quote:)

Aides say Clinton overstated damage in missile attack, by Elaine Sciolino.

WASHINGTON—President Clinton maintained Monday that the U.S. missile attack on Iraq had crippled its intelligence capacity, but senior administration and intelligence officials conceded that he had overstated the case.

Clinton told reporters Monday morning that he had received a report from the national security adviser, Anthony Lake, "confirming that we did in fact cripple the Iraqi intelligence capacity, which was the intent of the action."

But senior officials said that while the attack had destroyed a crucial wing of the walled six-story headquarters of the intelligence complex in the heart of Baghdad, it had not destroyed other Iraqi intelligencegathering networks.

The complex that was hit is the headquarters of the security arm and the domestic and foreign intelligence service for Iraqi President Saddam Hussein's ruling Baath Party, senior U.S. intelligence officials said. One official called the complex **"a Central Intelligence Agency on the Tigris River."** (End quote)

There is more truth in that last sentence than you probably realize!

Another article from the same paper says "Iraq missile strike boosts Clinton's approval ratings."

In 1992 there was a conference in Las Vegas attended by Don McAlvany and Lyndsey Williams and Col. Bo Gritz and hundreds of others, as well as a "Grateful Dead" appearance attended by some 90,000 people. Many of them saw railroad cars full of military tanks being unloaded and moved to a park. The tanks were mostly Chinese tanks, many with instructions labels inside still in the Chinese language, and investigators learned that they had come into the country through unmarked ports of entry through Canada. Most of the tanks were of the same model used by the Iraqis during the Gulf War—as well as being used by American forces, which caused much confusion.

Now I want to share a news article that was given to me with the notation "My-O-My!". This is from the *Wall Street Journal*, November 15, 1994, (quote:)

Missile Defense: A Case of Self-Denial, by Angelo Codevilla

The fiery collisions of Iraqi Scuds and American patriot interceptors during the Gulf War made missile defense a practical matter....In the Gulf War, supporters of missile defense initially argued that the Patriot had intercepted nearly all Scuds. Opponents now counter by arguing that the rate of interception was really lower, and by showing that many of the intercepts did not prevent warheads, as well as assorted debris [Gas? Germs? Concrete?], from falling into cities. Both sides of the argument have scored some points, but both miss the only important one: The Patriot system sent to the Persian Gulf in 1990 had been dumbed down in homage to the ABM treaty. **Today's Patriot is much less capable than it was originally designed to be 20 years ago.**

The new Republican majorities on the armed services and foreign relations committees of Congress may
be willing to learn from the story. If the American aerospace industry were allowed to use available technology, the U.S. and its allies could enjoy substantial protection. But so long as the work of engineers is polluted by arms-control bureaucrats, missile defense programs will produce either marginally useful weapons like the Patriot or, as in the case of the Strategic Defense Initiative, no usable devices at all (at a cost of \$30 billion.)

...To make doubly sure, the committee ordered that the software package be made incapable of calculating and transmitting data on fast-moving objects. The committee also ordered that the timer on the fuse be made less accurate, so that the interceptor would be unlikely to blow up close enough to an incoming missile warhead to harm it. What was left of the SAM-D after the arms controllers got through with it was called the Patriot.

....Unfortunately, however, the finest tools imaginable are useless because U.S. policy has been not to use them. All the money and publicity expended on the SDI program had less to do with its outcome than with a secret annex to "Department of Defense Instruction S-5100.71," whose implementation has been overseen since its promulgation in 1985 by a Pentagon bureaucrat named Lee Minichielo—not a household word. This annex—which still governs all U.S. antimissile programs—constrained SDI programs at three levels...Indeed, nothing useful has ever come out of this process because nothing is supposed to. And regardless of how much money is poured into defense, nothing useful ever will emerge until the contradiction at the heart of the process is eliminated.

....Deputy Defense Secretary John Deutch [now head of the CIA!] recently issued a report that raises concerns about the acquisition of nuclear-tipped missiles by rogue states...." (End quote)

The article is too long to quote it all, but I think you got the essentials. The bottom line is, it does no good to spend money on defense, because our controllers will not let us defend ourselves.

A big question arises—if we spent \$30 billion on Reagan's "Star Wars" program and it was not used for defense, as the above *Wall Street Journal* article states (Mr. Codevilla is a fellow at the Hoover Institution), then ON WHAT WAS IT SPENT?

I can assure you that you will not like the answer to that question, but I will leave the subject for some other time. If you want to learn more, read *CONTACT* newspaper (*CONTACT*, P. O. Box 27800, Las Vegas, NV 89126, to subscribe call 1-800-800-5565. The *Journals* are listed in the paper.) and order and read their *Journals*, perhaps starting with the Journal (#3) *Space-Gate, The Veil Removed* or the *Fire From The Sky* articles in the *CONTACT*. These articles explain what the Space Shuttle program is really about, and tells of the massive hoaxes and deceptions involved, bringing the U.S. to the brink of nuclear war several times. Part of this massive scam involved the "Skunk Works" at Lockheed. As *Fire From The Sky* pointed out, the liaison between Lockheed and the Pentagon was William Perry, who is now our Secretary of Defense under Clinton. Perry has a good buddy involved with him, John Deutch, who is now head of the CIA. *You need to learn more about these people and watch what they do*.

For example, here is an article from the *Austin American-Statesman* of May 10, 1995, which tells where Perry and Deutch and their buddy Kaminski have been investing their money, (quote:)

Firm part-owned by Perry, aides gets contract, by Newsday.

WASHINGTON—A military research task force created by Defense Secretary William Perry and his two top aides has awarded an \$825,605 contract to a company partly owned by the three officials.

The firm, **Cambridge Research Associates** of **McLean**, **Va**., was awarded the first in a series of contracts by the Joint Advanced Strike Technology Program [JAST] to help develop ground attack aircraft for the next century.

Under the contract, Cambridge would design and test aircraft components as well as [DON'T OVER-LOOK THIS NEXT] tactical scenarios using computer modeling. It was the firm's first major defense contract since it was founded in 1986.

"This is a big deal for us," Cambridge spokesman Nick Babiak said.

Perry, **John Deutch**—the deputy defense secretary who was approved unanimously Tuesday by the Senate as the new CIA director—and undersecretary for defense acquisitions **Paul Kaminski** are part owners in Cambridge Research through a joint holding called HQTP Strategic Investments Inc.

In addition, the three men, through HQTP, have part ownership in Delfin Systems, a Santa Clara, Calif., company that sells spy equipment to the Pentagon [spy equipment to the Pentagon? Like old used U-2's, or what?] and the intelligence community.

Delfin sells an estimated \$24 million worth of equipment each year, much of it to the U.S. military. As the new CIA director, Deutch also would oversee purchases of Delfin equipment by the CIA and the National Security Agency.

Under an arrangement with the Senate Armed Services Committee, the three men are the first top officials in Defense Department history to keep investments in military contractors while overseeing \$43 billion a year in contracts.

"So it's your intent to sell it when it becomes marketable?" Sen. Sam Nunn, D-Ga., asked at a hearing last year.

"Yes sir," Deutch replied. (End quote)

There is a saying, "Follow the money" (Deep Throat). Sometimes, though, I have found it more interesting to follow the *people*. Sam Nunn, for instance, is a key player. He attended the recent Bilderberger meeting in Canada, May 30, 1996.

ANOTHER HORROR TO WORRY ABOUT

The ValueJet DC-9 Flight 592 crashed in Florida on Saturday, May 11, 1996. The cause of the crash was a NUCLEAR BOMB. How do I know? Well, I don't actually know it for a fact, but what I do know is that anyone looking at the situation and at the reports *should* have immediately suspected a nuclear bomb.

Think back on what was revealed. The plane disappeared, with little or no remains. They said it sank in a swamp, but at the same time showed the crash site with weeds and trees, showing it must have been rather shallow. They said the water and mud at the site was maybe as much as six feet deep, but perhaps must have been deeper—however, trees and weeds do not grow in deep water. The rescuers were slow in arriving, and when they did arrive, there were only a few of them, 4 or 5 or at times maybe 8 or 10. THEY WERE ALL WEARING RADIATION PROTECTIVE GEAR, including face masks. A news source said the local authorities had to spend over \$150,000 on protective gear, proof that this was not an ordinary crash. We were told that they had to wear "bio-hazard" suits, because of alligators or bugs or to prevent "exposure to human remains". Wouldn't want to catch AIDS, you know. But EMS personnel everywhere are exposed to blood and gore at automobile crash sites and they do not wear space suits. We were shown only a very small collection of material that was recovered from the site, including a recorder box with a severe dent in it. What caused the dent? Perhaps the dent was caused by a bomb exploding beside it? Crashing into a swamp might flatten it on one side, although those things are specially made to resist such, but how would a swamp put a dent in it? And where are the big pieces of the plane?

We were told stories of "We are almost ready to find the big pieces," "there may be another hole somewhere," "we expect to find the big parts soon," etc., and then weeks later we are told, "We now have recovered over 70% of the plane, so we don't expect to find much more and the search is winding down." Oh? I never saw any big pieces of the plane (other than the engine), did you? What happened to them? How did the whole plane, bodies and all, just mostly disappear?

Perhaps you think a nuclear bomb to be unthinkable, and after all, our government would not lie to us. If you think this way, perhaps you should take note of the following information.

Sherman Skolnick has revealed that he has been contacted by several people who worked on the rescue and cleanup of the Oklahoma City federal building bombing and they told him they are suffering from radiation exposure. Skolnick said he does not believe one of the bombs was nuclear (there was more than one explosion, as any serious researcher knows), but that one must have had radioactive material "piggy-backed" onto it. One of the first searchers on the scene has already "committed suicide".

This is an important subject, but before we pursue it, I want to bring other information to your attention and then you can begin to tie it all together. Let's look at another seemingly unrelated and little-known subject.

PORT CHICAGO NUCLEAR TEST IN 1944

The first test of an atomic bomb was the Trinity bomb in July 1945. That is what all the reference books say. However, the government has been lying from the beginning. As hinted in earlier parts of *Fire From The Sky*, the first American nuclear weapon test was in July, 1944, in the California Oakland/San Francisco Bay area, or more specifically at what is now called the Concord Naval Weapons Station at Suisun Bay, at 10:19 p.m. on July 17, a Monday. At that time, the site was called Port Chicago.

The nuclear blast was described in the U.S.Army/Navy Safety Board Report, Technical Paper #6 as having a yield of 2.13 kilotons There were two explosions which vaporized the Liberty Ship E.A. Bryan

and nearly obliterated the ship *Quinault Victory*. It killed nearly 400 men and destroyed the Port Chicago munitions facility. Those who knew about the blast were told that it was an accident, but declassified documents give evidence that it was a cold-blooded test that was planned for and scheduled ahead of time. The blast was even filmed. A series of articles were published on this subject in the *Napa Sentinel* newspaper by David Caul, Susan Todd and Harry V. Martin. Martin is former publisher of *Defense Systems Review* and *Military Communications*, and former Editorial Director of *Defense Electronics, International Countermeasures Handbook, Military Electronics and Countermeasures, Microwave Systems News*, and *Military Science and Technology*. Details can be obtained from the *Napa Sentinel* or from the FreeAmerica Website on the internet, or by doing a web search on "Port Chicago". Anyone researching the history of nuclear weapons can give you details of many other nuclear coverups. Recently declassified documents have told of many cases of the government purposely exposing our population to radiation hazards.

RED MERCURY

The following is from a South African newspaper concerning a plane crash in 1987 (ARMSCOR is Armaments Corporation of South Africa Ltd., ANC is the African National Congress political party), (quoting:)

ANC DAILY NEWS BRIEFING SATURDAY 22, APRIL 1995 ARMSCOR-STAR by Marianne Merten

This News Briefing is a compilation of items from the South African Press Association and does not reflect the views of the ANC:

JOHANNESBURG, April 21, Sapa—Information on the Helderberg aircraft which crashed off Mauritius on November 28,1987 had come from a highly-placed British intelligence source, *Weekend Star* editor Mr. David Allen told the South African Press Council in Johannesburg on Friday.

He was responding to a complaint from Armscor about an article published on December 17 last year which said rocket fuel was being carried on the aircraft at the time of the crash. This was one of the points of complaint made by Armscor about a series of 32 articles published in the *Weekend Star* late last year.

Mr. Allen told the council the British source had stated during an interview that South Africa's missile development programme had two problems: Fuel and a reliable guidance system.

The British intelligence source was said to have alleged the Helderberg was to have brought back a fuel sample.

Mr. Allen said this information, which was given some time ago, was later confirmed by an unsolicited South African intelligence source. After the article was published several other sources came forward with similar information.

The newspaper then submitted an affidavit from an attorney, Mr. Andrew Miller, taken on behalf of two

unidentified and confidential sources.

In the affidavit, Source A said: "It was also stated to myself and a colleague that the fire was caused by rocket fuel situated at the front of the holding compartment of the 'plane."

In its final report, the Margo Commission which had been charged with investigating the crash found the fire was caused by packaging material but could not give the reason for its ignition.

Source B said a Capt. Eddie Bourhill, apparently the then-chairman of the Committee for the Safe Carriage of Dangerous Goods, told him at an aviation conference in April, 1990 that he was concerned about reports saying the Helderberg fire was due to fireworks in the cargo.

"He stated that his own investigations were clearly pointing to the fact that a substance called 'Red Mercury' was more likely to be the cause," he said.

"When questioned about the substance he replied that it was a type of rocket fuel used to make missiles or missile heads and it was being carried on the Helderberg for a destination somewhere on the coast of South Africa."

All 159 of the Helderberg's passengers died in what was called South Africa's biggest aircraft disaster. (End quote)

ARMSCOR-STAR, by Marianne Merten

JOHANNESBURG, April 24 [1995], Sapa—To save space, I will summarize what this article said: The Press Council in Johannesburg, South Africa, was hearing complaints by ARMSCOR that 32 news articles published by the *Weekend Star* unfairly blamed them for causing the crash of the Helderberg airliner off Mauritius in 1987. ARMSCOR claimed that they brought pyrotechnics from the United Kingdom to Egypt on a legal end-user certificate issued by the Egyptian Air Force, who would then sell the items to Zambia from where they would then by delivered to South Africa under an exchange agreement.

ARMSCOR claimed: "'Red Mercury' is based on science fiction....To make an explosive that is 300 times as powerful as TNT requires scientific knowledge that is currently unknown to mankind."

"There is only one other alternative—aliens from another planet must have imparted this knowledge to the manufacturers of 'Red Mercury'," Dr. Buys [of ARMSCOR] said.

ARMSCOR-STAR, by Marianne Merten

JOHANNESBURG, April 25 [1995], Sapa—To summarize, this news article said that an official of ARMSCOR approached the Ministers of Transport and Justice about re-opening the inquiry into the 1987 Helderberg aircraft crash off Mauritius.

ARMSCOR complained that the *Weekend Star* had not given them opportunity to tell their side of the story, and the newspaper countered that "further attempts by the *Weekend Star* to get more information

had been fruitless because ARMSCOR communications officer Bertus Celliers said no more questions would be answered."

The *Weekend Star's* articles claimed Armscor had loaded "red mercury" or another dangerous substance called "super mercuric cyanate" on board the aircraft. This substance had caused the fatal fire, the newspaper claimed.

ARMSCOR-N/L-STAR, by Marianne Merten

JOHANNESBURG, April 25 [1995], Sapa—In summary, this article said the Press Council on Tuesday ended its hearing of an Armscor complaint about *Weekend Star* reports on the 1987 Helderberg Boeing crash and is expected to make its finding known on May 18. The article gave some details of the arguments presented.

The *Weekend Star* said the main aim of the reports was to bring to the fore aspects not fully explained in the Margo inquiry.

"The Margo Commission report left more questions than answers on key issues."

These included a possible undisclosed cargo such as "Red Mercury" or supermercuric cyanate; the air routes used for importing missiles, rocket fuel and other weapons-system components; tapes missing from the radio station at Jan Smuts Airport; the time of cockpit voice recordings; whether Helderberg Captain Dawie Uys was unhappy about the cargo and filed a complaint; and if Armscor officials went to Mauritius to remove incriminating evidence.

The council on Tuesday heard how South African Airways crew saw "missiles" falling out of cargo being loaded in Tel Aviv in November 1983. The cargo was labelled mining equipment, the newspaper reported.

Dr. Buys objected, saying the incident was investigated with South African Airways. Armscor did not misrepresent its cargo. Whenever Armscor transported weapons it did so legally.

Dr. Buys said air-safety regulations allowed a limited amount of properly packed hazardous material, such as explosives, on passenger aircraft. Freight aircraft could carry more. If an Armscor consignment exceeded this quantity it would use military aircraft. Even greater quantities were transported by sea or land.

Weekend Star former deputy editor-in-chief Mr. Rex Gibson said Mr. Justice Edwin Cameron, chairman of an inquiry into Armscor weapons deals in the Middle East, held a different opinion about Armscor's honesty. He then withdrew the remark "in the interest of peace".

San Jose Mercury News, April 13, 1994, p.1F (from *Reuters*)—It is likely that "Red Mercury" is a hoax (*Boston Globe*, August 25, 1994, p.2), a monstrous imaginary substance that embodies and excites all kinds of anxieties about the changing world order; but even the insubstantial can be deadly, as the chain of murders in South Africa attributed to the quest for "Red Mercury" demonstrates (*Philadelphia Inquirer*,

August 21, 1994, p. AO2). I am grateful to Mark Cohen for helping me pinpoint these references.

From the Internet: Fortean Times on line

The Journal Of Strange Phenomena

DEADLY ALCHEMY

"Paul Sieveking examines the rumors of Red Mercury, an elusive substance said to be useful in nuclear weapons, medicine and voodoo." This is an overview of the Red Mercury situation. This article from the Internet, originally from *Fortean Times* magazine (Issue 69), said that Alan Kidger, 48, international sales director of British-owned Thor Chemicals, which imports mercury waste into South Africa for recycling, finished a phone conversation in early November 1991, told his wife he would be back shortly, and left and drove away in his BMW. A few days later, he was found stuffed into the trunk of his car. His arms, legs, buttocks and head had been sawn off and covered in a black mercury compound.

The article is a fairly good summary of that situation, and includes information that Red Mercury was used by nuclear submarines.

The article tells that Russian Vice President Alexander V. Rutskoi said that the inventors of Red Mercury had obtained all the legal documents necessary for exporting Red Mercury, and said they were selling Red Mercury abroad at astronomical prices and in great quantities. The Russian Attorney-General Valentin Stepankov called for an urgent investigation. Security Ministry spokesman Adrei Chernenko reported to the press that Red Mercury does not exist at all, then later contradicted himself by saying at another press conference that no Red Mercury was missing.

One glaring omission in this article is the fact that investigations into Red Mercury reveal that the Israeli Mossad has been very much involved, and evidence indicates they have been responsible for the deaths of several people involved with Red Mercury, including Kidger. The article doesn't mention the Mossad.

RED MERCURY COMES

The following is from the Internet: From: ph18@crux2.cit.cornell.edu (Paul Houle) Subject: Red Mercury comes out of the cold Date: 14 May 1995 18:16:06 GMT Organization: Cornell University, (quoting:)

For years there have been rumors, almost in the urban legend category, that the Soviet Union had developed some mysterious substance called "Red Mercury" that can be used in nuclear weapons construction, and that "Red Mercury" may be available on the black market.

An article in *New Scientist*, 29 April 1995 doesn't have any firm information, but *does* lead to a great deal of interesting speculation of the kind that I think science/physics/fusion (S.P.F.) percipients would be into. The article is on page 4 and is titled "Cherry Red and very dangerous", by Rob Edwards, and excerpts of it are quoted under the fair use doctrine in light of S.P.F.'s mission of research and education.

"I don't want to sound melodramatic," says [Sam] Cohen, who worked on the Manhattan Project to build the atom bomb in the 1940s and was a nuclear weapons adviser to the US Government with the RAND corporation for 20 years. "But Red Mercury is real and it is terrifying. I think it is part of a terrorist weapon that potentially spells the end of organized society." He claims that it could be used to make a baseball-sized neutron bomb capable of killing everyone within about 600 meters of the explosion.

The other people that the article quotes aren't quite as, well, enthusiastic as Cohen. Frank Barnaby, director of the Stockholm International Peace Research Institute has been investigating Red Mercury for six years and admits that there have been many cases where offers of Red Mercury at astounding prices turned out to be fraudulent. However, he states that he believes "on the balance of probabilities" that a mercury-based high explosive that could revolutionize nuclear weapons was developed within the Soviet Union.

Barnaby has seen two documents leaked to Greenpeace from what appears to be a former mercury production concern in South Africa. The documents contain chemical specifications for something called "Red Mercury 20:20", a combination of pure mercury and mercury antimony oxide (Hg<sub 2> Sb<sub 2> O<sub 7>) described as "cherry red" and "semi-liquid". The documents appear to be part of a request for "4-10 flasks per month" from an unknown buyer. (I know that a "flask" is the standard unit for large purchases of mercury and that it is pretty big, like 100 kilograms.)

One document was addressed on 2 April 1990 to Wolfgang Dolich who was a sales manager at the UKowned Thor Chemical Company in Speyer, Germany. He claims that he cannot decipher the signature and could not identify the source of the document. He claims that he probably passed it on to the company's plant at Cato Ridge, Natal, South Africa. Dolich also claims that the company has never been involved in the manufacture of Red Mercury.

To add to the mystery, the document contains a handwritten note, "Herewith all we have on Red Mercury" signed "Alan"—who just might be Thor's Johannesburg sales director who was murdered in November 1991. From what I remember, Alan Kidger was brutally dismembered mysteriously, the kind of thing that you see in a James Bond movie.

Barnaby claims he has seen other specifications for Red Mercury and believes that there is a "significant international trade in Red Mercury". He is currently attempting to obtain a small sample of Red Mercury so he can test its alleged properties. Barnaby has talked to four unnamed scientists in Russia who provided detailed information about Red Mercury: it is allegedly a "polymer with a gel-like consistency in which mercury and antimony have been bound together after irradiation for up to 20 days in a nuclear reactor".

According to Barnaby, mercury antimony oxide is produced at a chemical factory in Yekaterinberg in large quantities, and Red Mercury was first made in 1965 using a cyclotron at Dubna. He claims that one Russian scientist estimated that Russia produces about 60 kg. per year.

What Barnaby and Cohen claim, and what I think S.P.F. readers might find interesting, is that Red Mercury could play a role in a pure fusion weapon. It is thought that Red Mercury somehow stores energy in inner electron shell excitations (suggested by Ted Taylor), although *I* wouldn't rule out a nuclear excitation of some sort. It can be used as a "super" chemical explosive with perhaps 100 times the yield per

weight of conventional explosives.

The article has a picture of a possible pure fusion device using a concentric implosion—the core of the device contains a D/T mix that is surrounded by a shell of Red Mercury which is in turn surrounded by a conventional explosive shell. Barnaby claims that Red Mercury might be a component in Soviet neutron weapons such as the M-1975 240-mm mortar.

Something not mentioned in the article is the possibility of using Red Mercury by itself as an explosive. Perhaps the cost is prohibitive, but if Red Mercury had 100 times the yield/weight of conventional materials, an OKC or WTC (World Trade Center) class bomb could easily be carried in a suitcase and delivered by hand to within inches of critical structural components in a building—in fact because you could get it so close you probably wouldn't even need a pound of it.

Another possibility not mentioned in the article is that the stuff might play some role in superconcentrating the energy of the conventional explosive charge or in altering the fusion process itself.

Anyway, Ted Taylor, who is well known for his work as a bombsmith and commentator about the risk of proliferation, is skeptical, according to the article. He says, "I would bet that it doesn't exist," but he does believe that the Red Mercury could be so significant if it did exist that it should be investigated. A material that contains hundreds of times the chemical energy of conventional materials could be important for space travel and future energy technology.

According to Cohen, Red Mercury is one of a class of "ballotechnic" materials under investigation by nuclear weapons experts in the US. According to a leaked memo from Sandia National Labs, "under certain conditions the chemical energy obtained can be greater than with high explosives."

Bob Graham, a scientist at SNL says that he coined the word "ballotechnics" to describe devices that produce heat following exposure to shock, and that this has no connection to Red Mercury which he believes does not exist. Cohen says, "Graham is not free to speak openly about this; I am."

An audio tape of Gary North interviewing Sam Cohen about Red Mercury is available from Dominion Tapes, Inc., POB 1014, Colleyville, TX 76034. Write for price.

[End quoting from Internet.]

MORE REFERENCES ON RED MERCURY

F. R. Duplantier wrote, "Mini-Neutron Bombs Pose Threat...." Unfortunately, this is not the stuff of imagination. "A Couple of years ago disturbing statements on advanced small, very low-yield nuclear warheads, began emanating from Russia," says [Sam] Cohen. "Within the last few years, articles have appeared in the U.S., European, and even Russian media dealing with an exotic new material known as 'Red Mercury' which had been developed by the Russians and allegedly held properties capable of producing far more efficient nuclear fission warheads than the conventional explosives developed thus far. Cohen says these articles "revealed that a massive smuggling ring had emerged where the material was being sold around the world to a number of countries, some of which were recognized terrorist nations."

America's Future, 7800 Bonhomme, St. Louis, MO 63105.

OMRI Daily News Digest, 22 November 1995: OFFICIAL: RED MERCURY DOES NOT EXIST. A new book, *The Secrets of Red Mercury*, has been published by Gen. Aleksandr Gurov, *Rossiiskaya gazeta* reported on 21 November. Gurov was the head of a Ministry of Internal Affairs team that investigated rumors about the smuggling of Red Mercury in 1990. The substance, which supposedly can be used to accelerate nuclear explosions, attracted sensational publicity in the West in the early 1990s. Gurov concludes that Red Mercury does not exist and blamed the rumors on "international swindlers" and foreign adversaries trying to discredit Russia's nuclear program. — Peter Rutlands. OMRI is Open Media Research Institute, the successor to the government Radio Free Europe.

Wall Street Journal, Dec. 6, 1993, A, 1:4, article by Adi Ignatius called "Red Mercury is hot, but the question is: What exactly is it? 'Red Mercury,' a material with the aura of mystery and international intrigue, could be either a cheap way for rogue nations to make nuclear weapons, or a hoax. While many Western and Russian experts are skeptical, Russian scientist Oleg Sadykov's company has permission from President Boris Yeltsin to exclusively make and export the material for three years."

Montreal Gazette, January 14, 1992, p. B12, "Red Mercury: radioactive substance surfacing on East Europe's black markets.

Radio Free Europe Daily Report for 21 March 1993: FOREIGN INTELLIGENCE DENIES IN-VOLVEMENT IN "RED MERCURY" AFFAIR. The Public Relations Office of the Russian Foreign Intelligence Service (SVR) has issued a statement denying *Pravda*'s allegations that the SVR was involved in illegal dealing in "Red Mercury." The radio station Ehjo Moskvy on 20 April reported that the SVR denied involvement in the affair and called for the Security Ministry to investigate how a secret memorandum by SVR Director Evgenii Primakov appeared in the "Yeltsingate" article published in *Pravda* on 17 April. According to that article, Primakov reportedly sent a memo to Yeltsin in early 1992 claiming that "Red Mercury" could be used as an explosive in nuclear and conventional weapons and is worth a dozen times more than gold. *Pravda* accused Yeltsin's advisers, the SVR, military intelligence, and the Russian academic community of setting up a "smoke screen" over "Red Mercury" while promoting its covert export as a source of hard currency. According to an ITAR-TASS report of 19 April, the SVR also denied that a substance having the alleged properties of "Red Mercury" exists. Victor Yasmann and John Lepingwell.

The Navy magazine *Sea Power*, December 1995, p. 42: Russian Neutron Bombs on International Black Market?

"Once denounced as the weapon that 'kills people but leaves buildings standing,' the neutron bomb was itself killed by President Carter, then revived by President Reagan, then killed again by President Bush. Congress in 1993 nixed the development of low-yield nuclear weapons such as neutron bombs, and President Clinton recently declared a unilateral nuclear test ban, making their production impossible. Not so in Russia, says...Samuel Cohen, retired nuclear-weapons analyst and father of the neutron bomb, who describes a 'Red Mercury' version of the concept with a kill range as limited as several hundred yards. Cohen believes the Russians are selling these weapons to Third World regimes and terrorists." Cliff Kincaid in *The American Legion*, November 1995.

Intelligence Digest, in a report titled "Nuclear terrorism: the West's greatest challenge", says: There has been a concerted attempt to dismiss the Red-Mercury scare as a hoax dreamed up by criminals to make money out of the gullible. But, in early 1995, the respected *New Scientist* magazine published a report on Red Mercury arguing that the material does exist and is as deadly as the stories suggest.

We have been informed on the best possible governmental authority that the facts as presented by the *New Scientist* are broadly true.

The substance known as Red Mercury was developed in the former Soviet Union. It is created by binding mercury and antimony together after irradiating it for up to 20 days in a nuclear reactor.

Using Red Mercury it is possible to make a neutron bomb the size of a tin of baked beans which could kill everyone within a half-mile radius without destroying the buildings.

May 15, 1996, Wall Street Journal, A14:

The Coming Neutron Bomb Threat, by Sam Cohen ["Father of the Neutron Bomb"]

To save space I will only quote excerpts from the article: "...But the new pure fusion devices that could be created based on the work of Russian and American scientists could be made extremely small. This creates the horrifying prospect of 'mini' neutron bombs....they could soon be used as car bombs and ultimately even as briefcase bombs....Yet all it takes is a gram or so of tritium to make one of these minineutron bombs...." (End quote)

Are you sweating yet? The bomb used in the World Trade Center was a mini-nuke, specifically what is called an "Israeli Briefcase Bomb". Tom Valentine of *Radio Free America* interviewed Galen Winsor on this subject on his March 23, 1993 broadcast (you can purchase a copy of the taped broadcast from *Spotlight* newspaper). Later, after the Oklahoma City bombing, it was revealed that the FBI laboratory that investigated the World Trade Center bombing and said it was a conventional bomb, fabricated their results and one of the people involved said that they routinely fabricated evidence. *Strategic Investment* (Oct. 18, 1995, p. 3) said: "Dr. Frederic Whiphurst, an FBI special agent, has charged that the FBI crime labs fabricate, manipulate and tamper with evidence." Whiphurst was kicked out for telling the truth. *Strategic Investment* said on October 26, 1994: "Even the highly regarded FBI labs, previously staffed by qualified agents, have also been remodeled. Freeh transferred all agents out, leaving only technicians. One Bureau source told SI that technicians are far more pliable than agents, allowing investigations to be manipulated."

The New York Times (3/8) had an article entitled "Possible Tampering by Agent" and the *Prevailing Winds Magazine* (#3) had an article "Who Bombed the World Trade Center? Growing Evidence Points to Role of FBI Operative" which not only indicated a cover-up of evidence, but evidence of involvement in the bombing.

The January 23, 1995, *Houston Chronicle* had this story:

Army vet tested nuclear 'suitcase bombs' in '60s by Charles E. Glover, Cox News Service.

WAYNESVILLE, Mo.—retired Sgt. Joe R. Garner, a veteran of the Army's elite Special Forces, says he was arming 45-pound nuclear "suitcase bombs" 35 years ago, long before the term became common in our language.

Today, the words "suitcase bomb" are often used loosely to describe portable explosive charges, such as the one that terrorists detonated nearly two years ago in a vehicle beneath the New York World Trade Center.

But a nuclear bomb of the type Garner armed in the 1960s "could have toppled the Trade Center's twin 110-story towers with hideous casualties," he says.

Working with a sawed-off artillery shell 18 inches long and about a foot wide, Garner says he was trained to set the detonator and timer of what the Army called an SADM (Special Atomic Demolitions Munitions).

According to this veteran of covert operations in the Vietnam War, the SADM weighed about 45 pounds and could be carried in a satchel, similar to the canvas bags seen these days on every airport baggage delivery system. Thus, the term "suitcase bomb."

...In 1974, Garner says, he covertly placed an SADM on a North Carolina hydroelectric dam as part of a Special Forces training exercise....Garner, who now lives here in Waynesville, Mo., says he found out that the Soviets possessed the same sawed-off, nuclear-converted artillery shells after he retired from a 27-year career in the Army in 1978. "Hundreds of those things were available to us when I was in the Special Forces, "Garner says. "They were easy to conceal. I'm sure the Russians had just as many as we had, if not more. What I want to know is what happened to them" he adds....(End quote)

More information is available in the May 1995 *Soldier of Fortune Magazine*, article **Backpack Nukes for 'Nam, Inside SF's Super-Secret A-Bomb Project** by Roger L. Albertson. Albertson tells about when he was trained to use the SADM's in 1966, and said the nuclear bombs weighed 42 pounds.

Thirty years ago small nuclear bombs weighed 42 pounds. These days, they can be made the size of a baseball, with one gram of tritium. A modern cent coin weighs about 2.5 grams. It was rumored that the bombs used in the airplane crash in 1987 in Africa was about the size of a ball point pen. How hard do you think it might be to smuggle these things? Let's look at some more news reports.

The *Daily Press Review* for October 2, 1995, talks of France detonated the second and largest nuclear test of current series at Fangataufa atoll. The day before, French Marines seized a Greenpeace boat and arrested the head of Greenpeace Japan. Russia announced it has created a new poison with no antidote "which could be used in biological weapons." Iraq was said to be massing military equipment and troops close to Kuwaiti border, and a container of Caesium-137 was found at a Moscow airport. Egypt arrested four men for trying to sell a flask of Red Mercury.

On May 25, 1995, it was reported that Romanian police seized 1.7 kg of Red Mercury and arrested five people suspected of trying to ship it to Turkey (Uranium Institute Information Service News Briefing 95/22).

January 25, 1996, German authorities charged a merchant and his lawyer for attempting to sell radioactive

cesium which had been transported to Germany from Zaire on board a commercial airliner. Other reports have suggested that when Red Mercury is discovered being smuggled, it is called cesium to hide its existence.

January 17, 1996, a Palestinian in Dubai offered to sell three kilograms of reportedly Russian-origin Red Mercury to a Lebanese-American businessman, according to US Diplomatic reporting.

November 30, 1995: A former Greenpeace president revealed that the organization had been offered a nuclear warhead by a disgruntled former Soviet officer....The former Greenpeace official stated in a recently published book that a Soviet officer with access to nuclear weapons offered Greenpeace an 800 kg nuclear Scud warhead....

November 29, 1995: Russian security officials recovered four containers with radioactive cesium, stolen from a plant in the Urals. "The containers were similar to the one allegedly planted by Chechen rebels in a Moscow park."

In June 1993, a Russian prosecutor opened a case against the director of a firm accused of stealing. "....this company had an order signed by the office of the Russian president, giving permission to export 10 tons of Red Mercury. At that time one kilogram of Red Mercury cost \$400,000."

Even as I am writing this manuscript, the news is full of events of bombings, airplane and helicopter crashes, a bomb just went off in London, three people were arrested (June 14, 1996) in *New York* for possessing five canisters of radium, nine people die in a helicopter crash in Australia, and here is an interesting *Reuters* article, (quoting:)

Tuesday, June 11, 5:21 PM EDT

Mystery Man with Six Passports Held in Italy

ROME (Reuter)—Police at Rome's Fiumicino airport said Tuesday that they had arrested a mystery man who claimed to be a captain in the Chicago police force but was found to have identity documents from six countries.

They said the man, believed to be in his mid 50s, had been observed outside the international air terminal in a U.S. registered Mercedes car.

Police said anti-terrorist officers, who searched the car after a routine check of the driver, had found passports from six countries, including Iran, with the same photograph but different names.

His Iranian passport gave his name as John Mehdi, his Puerto Rican one as Pablo Gonzales and his Italian as Giovanni Moradi.

Police said they also found photographs of the man apparently alongside famous politicians—**including former president George Bush** [emphasis mine]—a set of handcuffs, a portable flashing light and a sophisticated satellite tracking device.

They said the man, who spoke halting Italian and whose real identity remained unclear, was arrested for

having false documents and taken to the city's Regina Coeli jail.

A subsequent search of the man's Rome residence—two trailers parked at a suburban campsite—uncovered various devices for falsifying passports and more than 100 fake documents and identity cards.

(End quote)

It seems George Bush is getting into more and more hot water these days! See Gene Tatum's story later in this document.

Radio Free Europe Daily Report of April 23, 1993:

GRACHEV, BURBULIS TO BE QUESTIONED ON CORRUPTION CASES. Acting on the report on corruption which Russian Vice President Aleksandr Rutskoi made to the parliament on 16 April, the office of the Procurator General has brought at least two criminal charges involving top Yeltsin associates. ITAR-TASS revealed on 22 April that the office has started an investigation concerning export of the mysterious "Red Mercury" substance and that it intends to question former State Secretary Gennadii Burbulis, members of the Russian government, and employees of Yeltsin's apparatus in connection with the case. Rutskoi had accused Burbulis of having encouraged a private firm based in Ekaterinburg to produce and export the "Red Mercury" which is allegedly used as a component of nuclear weapons.

September 7, 1995, the Dutch daily "NRC Handelsblad" had an article about a Rotterdam company that had advertised that it had 100 to 200 kilos of Red Mercury for sale. A journalist obtained a sample and had it examined. "The Reactor Institute of Delft University believes that it is indeed 'the real stuff."

Probably the best source for information on Red Mercury is the book: *The Micro-Nukes Conspiracy—Mandela's Nuclear Nightmare* by Peter Hounam and Steve McQuillan (Faber & Faber, London, Sept. 1995). It is also available from Viking Penguin, 1995, ISBN 0-670-86925-2. It tells the story of Operation Shampoo involving Armscor (Armaments Corporation of South Africa) and the Israeli Mossad in the efforts to procure Red Mercury. It gives evidence that the Mossad has been smuggling Red Mercury and has been murdering people and blowing up planes because of it.

Red Mercury is listed in *Jane's Review*, which alone is proof that it exists. Researchers might want to check the article in *International Defense Review*, 6/94, p. 79-81 which has a portrait of Boris Yeltsin with the caption: "Is there a pure fusion bomb for sale".

Another book is Red Mercury, A. Craig Copetas, William Morrow & Co. 1996, ISBN 0-688-12547-6.

Also articles in The Economist, May 22, 1993, p. 76; and Barrons, Feb. 15, 1993, p. 15-16.

To summarize what the literature says about Red Mercury, it is made from mercury, antimony and oxygen by being bombarded for 15 or 20 days in a 5MW nuclear reactor. Some say the half life is 35 or 40 days, others say it is 90 days. Some say Lithium or Lutetium is used in the reaction. There is currently (beginning March 1996) a court case ongoing in which Armscor claims the *Weekend Star* spread rumors about its involvement with Red Mercury, causing an airplane crash in November, 1987. If you ask the government for the truth about Red Mercury, they will tell you "it does not exist, it is a hoax, it is a fraud, and besides

it is highly classified and if you keep asking about it, we will kill you."

[END QUOTING OF PART 39] ...to be continued.